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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Introduction 
and back-
ground 

The Public Service Commission (PSC) has designed, piloted and implemented a Transver-
sal M&E System (System) that it uses to evaluate the performance of Public Service de-
partments against the nine constitutional values and principles (CVPs) governing public ad-
ministration.  The System measures compliance against the nine CVPs, which may be re-
garded as an operational definition for “good governance”.  Through an assessment using 
the System, this report provides a status of the quality of governance of departments, 
across nine performance areas as evident in the CVPs. 
 

Since the introduction of the System, the PSC has already assessed 132 departments and 
produced seven consolidated reports.  The sample of departments for the 2010/2011 re-
search cycle comprised 4 national and 17 provincial departments.  The sample included all 
agriculture departments and all Offices’ of the Premier, allowing the PSC to focus specifi-
cally on these two sectors. 
 

The Draft Report was forwarded in writing to the Department on 4 April 2011 with a request 
for comments within 10 days after receipt of the report.  Despite numerous requests, no 
comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 2011.  The PSC has, therefore, pro-
ceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
 

Reporting 
period 

This assessment of the department was conducted during the PSC’s 10/11 evaluation cycle 
and covers the following periods: 
 

 Principles 2, 6, and 7: Information obtained from the department’s AR for the 2009/10 
financial year. 

 Principles 1, 3, 4 5, 8 and 9: The most recent information obtained from the Department 
up to December 2010 is utilised, which is the date of the final draft report for the 
2010/11 evaluation cycle. 

 

Methodology The methodology applied by the System in essence involves assessing the actual perform-
ance of the department against a set of indicators and standards – refer to Appendix A for 
a complete list of these indicators and standards per principle.  Evidence about the actual 
state of practice for the nine CVPs was obtained by collecting and assessing policy and 
other documents, conducting interviews with samples of relevant persons and assessing 
qualitative and quantitative data according to templates and measures.  By interrogating the 
evidence against the indicators and standards, a sense of the performance of the depart-
ment against each of the nine CVPs was arrived at. 
 

Based on the assessment, a score is awarded to the department.  The rating scale, consist-
ing of five performance bands, is captured in the table below. 
 

Performance 
band Score description Score % 

5 Excellent performance against all the standards 4,25 – 5,00 81% - 100% 
4 Good performance against most of the standards 3,25 – 4,00 61% - 80% 
3 Adequate performance against several of the standards 2,25 – 3,00 41% - 60% 
2 Poor performance against most of the standards 1,25 – 2,00 21% - 40% 
1 No performance against all the standards 0,25 - 1,00 0% - 20% 

 

Since the same indicators are used year after year, the performance of a sample of depart-
ments in a specific year can be compared with the samples of previous years, departments 
can be compared with each other, and a department’s performance can be compared with 
its own performance in a previous year when that department comes up for re-assessment. 
 

(The detailed assessment framework is available on the PSC’s web page: www.psc.gov.za 
and a concise document is attached as an Appendix to this report). 
 

Research 
steps 

The process followed in the assessment of the performance of departments is captured in 
Diagram 1 below. As can be seen, the PSC has adopted a process, which engages the 
department throughout the cycle, in order to deepen the understanding of the System and 
promote learning through the application of the System. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Diagram 1 
 

Process of implementing the System in Departments
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Final result of 
evaluation 

Performance results for the 2010/11 assessment  
 

The following is a synopsis of how the Department has scored under each principle for the 
evaluation cycle.  
 

Principle Total 
Score % 

1. Professional Ethics 3,75 75% 
2. Efficiency, Economy and Effectiveness 2,00 40% 
3. Development-Oriented Public Administration 4,00 80% 
4. Impartiality and Fairness 4,25 85% 
5. Public Participation in Policy-making 5,00 100% 
6. Accountability 3,00 60% 
7. Transparency 4.50 90% 
8. Good Human Resource Management and Career Development 3,50 70% 
9. Representivity 3,50 70% 

Total  33,50 74% 
Average  3,72 74% 

 

According to the above figures the Department’s performance and compliance with the nine 
Constitutional values and principles for the 2010/11 evaluation cycle is 74%, which means 
that performance is good against most of the standards.  
 

Strengths 
 

The Department’s performance was between excellent and good under the following 
seven principles in the 2010/11 evaluation period: 
 

Principle Performance 
Principle 1: Professional Ethics   Good performance (75%) 
Principle 3: Development Oriented Good performance (80%) 
Principle 4: Impartiality and Fairness  Excellent performance (85%) 
Principle 5: Public Participation ain Policy Making  Excellent performance (100%) 
Principle 7: Transparency Excellent performance (90%) 

1. Notification to sampled departments 
 

 Send letters to department, Minister, Member of the Executive Council and Director-General (D-G)/Head of 
Department (HoD) explaining the purpose, process and requesting a contact person. 

 Attach the Assessment Framework of the System and list of documents needed. 

2. Introductory meeting with department 
 

 Obtain name of a contact person within the department 
 Meet with D-G/HoD and top management of department to explain the System and obtain buy-in. 

5. Final report 
 

 Include comments of department in report and make amendments if necessary. 
 Submit final report to PSC for approval. 
 Send approved report to department. 

6. Consolidated report 
 

 Collate information of individual reports into one consolidated report. 
 Submit report to Parliament and Executive Authorities. 

3. Produce draft report 
 

 Obtain and analyse information. 
 Assess performance against defined performance indicator(s) for each principle. 
 Identify areas of good practice and/or problem areas. 
 Write main and summary report. 

4. Presentation of draft results to department 
 

 Discuss results of assessment with D-G/HoD and top management of department. 
 Give opportunity to submit written comments within 10 days of presentation. 
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Principle 8: Good Human Resources Management and Career Development Good performance (70%) 
Principle 9: Representivity Good performance (70%) 

 

The excellent and good performance against these seven principles suggests that the De-
partment –  
 

 rigorously applies the Code of Conduct for the Public Service in the handling of miscon-
duct cases, by ensuring that reported cases are finalised within the prescribed time 
frame and that regular management reporting on progress with cases is done. 

 is actively involved in development oriented projects and ensures that beneficiaries fully 
participate in the design and implementation of such projects. 

 ensures that all decisions are taken in accordance with legislation and by duly author-
ised officials in terms of departmental delegated authority.  All decisions assessed were 
fair and complied with the requirements of the Promotion of Administrative Justice Act. 

 has a system for soliciting and considering public contributions to policy making in 
place, which is fully operational.  This system includes generating inputs through work-
shops and stakeholder consultations. 

 ensures that it is transparent in its reporting on performance. 
 applies recruitment and selection criteria and policy measures that comply with sound 

human resource practices and with the standards set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E 
System. 

 has an Employment Equity policy and plan, which comply with the requirements of the 
Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998), and has successfully achieved two 
of the three national equity targets in line with the Act. 

 

The Department’s performance was adequate against the following principle:  
 

Principle Performance 
Principle 6: Accountability  Good performance (60%) 

 

The Department’s performance against the principle of accountability was only adequate 
because it received a qualified audit opinion. 

 

Weaknesses  
 

The Department’s performance against the principle of effectiveness, efficiency and econ-
omy was poor, mainly because land reform objectives have not been achieved. 
 

Principle Performance 
Principle 2: Efficiency, Economy and Effectiveness Poor performance (40%) 

 
 

Recommen-
dations 

Recommendations  
 

The PSC made 7 recommendations in this Report that need to be implemented within spe-
cific time frames.  Within six months of delivery of this Report the PSC will do a follow-up on 
the progress made with the implementation of these recommendations using the list of rec-
ommendations at Appendix B as template for the feedback report.  The number of recom-
mendations per principle is captured in the Table below. 
 

Principle 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Total 
Recommendations 1 0 2 1 0 1 1 0 0 7 

 
 

Challenges Although cooperation was received from the Department with regard to the provision of in-
formation a few delays were experienced and information such as progress with the imple-
mentation of LRAD projects was not provided. 
 

 

1. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 1: PROFESSIONAL ETHICS 
• A high standard of professional ethics must be promoted and maintained. 
 

Performance 
Indicator 

Cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing has been conducted, comply with the 
provisions of the Disciplinary Code and Procedures for the Public Service. 
 

Underlying 
Assumption 

Departments that effectively deal with cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing has 
been conducted are generally maintaining a higher standard of ethics than those depart-
ments that do not. 
 

Standards 1. A procedure is in place for reporting, recording and managing cases of misconduct. 
 

2. All the managers surveyed have a working knowledge of the system. 
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3. All of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing is conducted 
are finalized within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days. 

 

4. Management reporting is done on cases of misconduct and acted upon. 
 

5. All the managers are capable to deal with cases of misconduct. 
 

6. Frequent training is provided on the handling of cases of misconduct. 
 

Rating 3,75 out of 5,00 (75%) = Good performance against several of the standards  
 

Results 1. A policy/guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place 
 

The existence of policy/guideline document 
 

The Department developed, approved and implemented a policy on the handling of cases of 
misconduct.  This policy, which sets out the procedures and timeframes to be followed by 
supervisors and managers when handling cases of misconduct, is aligned with PSCBC 
Resolution No. 2 of 1999, as amended. 
 

Survey on managers’ working knowledge of the policy/guideline 
 

All five sampled managers interviewed had a working knowledge of the department’s policy 
on the management of cases of misconduct and its requirements. Three of the managers 
interviewed had 3 and more years’ experience in dealing with cases of misconduct, while 
the remaining two had just gone through the Labour Relations training in 2010.  These offi-
cials should, therefore, be able to deal with cases of misconduct should they occur. 
 

2. Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct 
 

Cases where a hearing has been conducted 
 

The Department takes on average 127 working days to finalise a case of misconduct.  
About 7 (35%) cases submitted for assessment were finalised within the 20-80 working day 
period prescribed by the Discipline Code and Procedures. 
 

3. Regular management reporting on cases of misconduct 
 

Misconduct cases are reported on regularly 
 

Regular management reporting is done through quarterly and monthly reports submitted to 
management on the status of cases of misconduct.  Copies of the reports were submitted 
as evidence.   
 

Management’s response/action on these reports 
 

There is no evidence of management’s response/actions emanating from the progress re-
ports on finalising cases of misconduct. 
 

4. Capacity of the Department to handle cases of misconduct 
 

The Department indicated that 80% of the staff had been trained in Labour Relations issues.
 

5. Training on the management of cases of misconduct 
 

The training and capacity building provided by the Department covered all aspects of La-
bour Relations. 
 

Recommen-
dations 

Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct 
 

The Department should, within six months of the receipt of this report, put measures in 
place that will ensure that all cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing has been 
conducted are finalised within 20 - 80 working days as required by the Disciplinary Code 
and Procedures for the Public Service. 
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the results of 
the report 
 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
 

 

2. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 2:  EFFICIENCY, ECONOMY AND EFFECTIVENESS 
• Efficient economic and effective use of resources must be promoted 
 

Performance 1. Expenditure is in accordance with the budget. 



PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION         EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Public Service Monitoring and Evaluation System: 2010/11 Evaluation Cycle      6 
M&E Report on the National Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 

Indicators 2. Programme outputs are clearly defined and there is credible evidence that they have 
been achieved. 

 

Underlying 
Assumption 

Departments that have good systems for budgetary control and for verifying progress 
against outputs are more likely to be effective than those do not. 
 

Standards 1. Expenditure is as budgeted for and material variances are explained. 
 

2. More than half of each programme’s Performance Indicators (PIs) are measurable in 
terms of quantity, quality and time dimensions. 

 

3. Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked with each other as they appear in the strate-
gic plan (SP), estimates of expenditure and the departmental annual report (AR) for the 
year under review (the annual report, the strategic plan and the department’s budget 
must be consistent). 

 

4. Programmes are implemented as planned or changes to implementation are reasona-
bly explained. 

 

Rating 2,00 out of 5,00 (40%) = Poor performance against most of the standards 
 

Results 1. Planned expenditure vs actual expenditure 
 

Under-expenditure constitutes 8.4% of the amount voted during the 2009/10 financial year, 
which falls outside the generally accepted margin of 2% set by National Treasury.  Material 
variances were explained by the Department. 
 

2. The quality of the Department’s PIs 
 

All (100%) the performance indicators (PIs) of all the programmes were measurable in 
terms of quantity and time dimensions.  
 

3. The achievement of priority outputs 
 

An analysis of the Department’s outputs, PIs and targets as they appear in Table 2.2 at the 
end of chapter 2, indicates that the Department was able to achieve only 10 of its 33 
planned outputs, which falls within the less than 40% range of the PSC’s Transversal M&E 
System.  
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the Results of 
the report 
 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
 

 

3. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 3: DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION 
• Public administration must be development oriented 
 

Performance 
indicator 

The Department is effectively involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote develop-
ment and reduce poverty. 
 

Underlying 
Assumption 

Departments that effectively initiate and/or implement development projects to reduce pov-
erty are more development oriented than those that do not. 
 

Standards 1. Beneficiaries play an active role in the governance, designing and monitoring of projects. 
 

2. A standardised project plan format is used showing: 
 

a) All relevant details including measurable objectives. 
b) Time frames (targets).  
c) Clear governance arrangements. 
d) Detailed financial projections. 
e) Review meetings. 
f) Considering issues such as gender, the environment and HIV/AIDS. 

 

3. Poverty reduction projects are aligned with local development plans. 
 

4. Organisational learning takes place. 
 

5. Projects are successfully initiated and/or implemented. 

Rating 4,00 out of 5,00 (80%) = Good performance against most of the standards  
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Results 1. The participation of beneficiaries in the design of the project 

 

Six poverty reduction projects initiated by the Department but implemented at a local level 
were reviewed, and all six projects assessed reflected an acceptable standard in terms of 
beneficiary participation in the design thereof. 
 

2. Good project management standards 
 

All the project plans submitted for assessment are of an acceptable project management 
standard.  However, no monitoring and evaluation arrangements are reflected in the project 
plans. 
 

3. The alignment of programmes with local development plans 
 

All the projects were submitted through the respective municipality and the district. This 
means that although some of them are not part of the IDPs, they receive the endorsement of 
the municipality and the district.  
 

4. A system for recording lessons learnt is in place 
 

Lessons learnt are disseminated through a Land Reform for Agricultural Development 
(LRAD) implementation manual.  The content of the manual is based on a review of LRAD 
projects. 
 

5. Success of the projects 
 

The success of the projects could not be determined because project implementation reports 
were not provided. 
 

Recommen-
dations 

Good project management standards 
 

The Department should, before the end of the 2011/12 financial year, include a section in 
land reform project plans, which spells out the monitoring and evaluation arrangements for 
the project. 
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the Results 
of the report 
 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
 

 

4. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 4: IMPARTIALITY AND FAIRNESS 
• Services must be provided impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias 
 

Performance 
indicator 

There is evidence that the Department follows the prescribed procedures of the Promotion of 
Administrative Justice Act (PAJA) when making administrative decisions. 
 

Underlying 
assumption 

Departments whose decisions are duly authorised and comply with the provisions of the 
PAJA are more likely to behave in a manner that is fair and impartial than those that do not. 
 

Standards 1. All decisions are taken in accordance with prescribed legislation/policies and in terms of 
delegated authority. 

 

2. All decisions are justified and fair considering the evidence submitted in this regard. 
 

3. The procedures required in the PAJA in communicating administrative decisions are duly 
followed. 

 
Rating 4,25 out of 5,00 (85%) = Excellent performance against all the standards 

 
Results The extent to which decisions are authorised 

 

Decisions in terms of legislation/policies 
 

The Department in all (or 100%) of the 8 sampled cases assessed fully considers the impli-
cations of all decisions made in terms of relevant legislation and policies to ensure compli-
ance with the PAJA. 
 

Decisions in terms of delegations 
 

Clear delegations of authority exist in the Department and all of the sampled decisions as-
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sessed were taken in terms of appropriate legislation and by duly authorised officials.   
 

The decisions are just and fair 
 

The documentation submitted as evidence by the Department showed that the decisions 
taken were just and fair, because the decision-maker was duly empowered to make the deci-
sion, considered representations of persons affected by the decision and gave reasons for 
the decision. 
 

The communication of administrative decisions 
 

Although prior notice of administrative actions is given by means of a letter, it does not 
clearly state the opportunity to make representations, the right to appeal or review or the right 
to request reasons for decisions. 
 

Recommen-
dations 

The communication of administrative decisions 
 

The Department should, with immediate effect, adhere to the requirements of the PAJA with 
regard to the communication of administrative decisions, namely that the communication 
should indicate the opportunity to make representations, the right to appeal or review or the 
right to request reasons for decisions. 
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the Results 
of the report 
 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
 

 

5. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 5: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN POLICY-MAKING 
• People’s needs must be responded to and the public must be encouraged to participate in 

policy-making 
 

Performance 
indicator 
 

The Department facilitates public participation in policy-making. 

Underlying 
assumption 

Departments that have a policy and system for procuring public inputs to their policy-making 
processes are more responsive than those that do not and are more likely to integrate public 
opinion into their final policies. 

Standards  1. A policy and guideline on public participation in policy-making is in place.  
 

2. A system for soliciting public inputs on key matters is in use and effectively implemented. 
 

3. All policy inputs received from the public are acknowledged and formally considered. 
 

Rating 5,00 out of 5,00 (100%) = Excellent performance against all the standards.  
 

Results 1. The existence of a policy and guidelines 
 

The Department does have a guideline for engaging stakeholders in their policy processes. 
The Guideline was published on 14 November 2009.  The Directorate Policy Research and 
Legislation Development in the Branch: Support Services is responsible for policy co-
ordination, the facilitation of horizontal policy making processes with external stakeholders 
and ensuring internal policy alignment between the Branches and Chief Directorates within 
the Department.  
 

2. The existence of a system for soliciting participation 
 

A system for soliciting and managing public contributions is in place and fully operational.  
This system includes summits/mini-summits, panels of experts, workshops and other stake-
holder consultations. 
 

3. The extent to which public comments are formally considered 
 

The Department considers and acknowledges contributions obtained during their consulta-
tion processes.  The Department produced comprehensive reports on the results of the par-
ticipation processes and the recommendations flowing form this consultation. 
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the Results 
of the report 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
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6. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 6: ACCOUNTABILITY 
• Public administration must be accountable 
 

Performance 
indicators 

1. Adequate internal financial controls and performance management are exerted over all 
departmental programmes. 

2. Fraud prevention plans, based on thorough risk assessments, are in place and are im-
plemented. 

 

Underlying 
assumptions 

1. Departments that implement internal financial controls, that exert performance manage-
ment over all departmental programmes and that prepare and implement fraud preven-
tion plans are operating accountably. 

 

2. The Auditor-General’s assessments of departmental internal financial controls are an 
adequate review of their efficacy. 

 

Standards 1. The Auditor-General’s assessments of internal financial controls conclude that they are 
adequate and effective. 

 

2. A performance management (M&E) system on all departmental programmes is in opera-
tion. 

 

3. Fraud prevention plans are based on a thorough risk assessment. 
 

4. Fraud prevention plans are in place and are comprehensive and appropriate, and are 
implemented. 

 

5. Key staff for ensuring implementation of fraud prevention plans, especially investigation 
of fraud, are in place and operational. 

 

Rating 3,00 out of 5,00 (60%) = Adequate performance against most of the standards  
 

Results 1. The adequacy of internal financial controls 
 

The Auditor-General expressed a qualified audit opinion on the financial statements of the 
Department.  The A-G further raised concerns over internal controls such as material losses 
through criminal conduct, irregular expenditure, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, and funds 
committed to projects older than three years on which payments were not made on time.  
 

2. The existence of an operational performance management system 
 

The Department has a formal performance management (M&E) system for all departmental 
programmes in operation.  It tracks performance by means of quarterly reporting, and scores 
are allocated in terms of the targets achieved, exceeded, partially achieved and not 
achieved. The Department, therefore, complies with this standard set by the PSC’s Trans-
versal M&E System. 
 

3. A thorough risk assessment has been done 
 

The Department conducted a risk assessment exercise during which all activities and/or ap-
plications were assessed.  The seriousness of each risk was assessed, and was rated in 
terms of its consequences and impact.  Appropriate internal control measures were devised 
to address the risks in the Department.  Although the department had conducted the risk as-
sessment, of concern is the issues raised by the AG particularly relating to material losses 
through criminal conduct, and fruitless and wasteful expenditure. 
 

4. The existence of a fraud prevention plan 
 

A FPP is in place that complies with eleven of the 13 requirements set by the PSC’s Trans-
versal M&E System for a good fraud prevention plan.  The FPP is based on a thorough risk 
assessment. 
 

5. The implementation of the fraud prevention plan 
 

The Department could not provide evidence that the strategies of the fraud prevention plan 
have been implemented. 
 

Recommen-
dations 

The implementation of the fraud prevention plan 
 

The Department should, within six months of receipt of the approved Report: 
 

 Ensure that all the FPP strategies are implemented. 
 Determine its exact capacity requirements for the handling of fraud cases. 
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 Ensure that the necessary training in the handling of fraud cases is provided. 
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the Results 
of the report 
 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
 

 

7. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 7: TRANSPARENCY 
• Transparency must be fostered by providing the public with timely, accessible, and accurate 

information 
 

Performance 
indicators 

A. Departmental Annual Report (AR) 
 

 The Departmental AR complies with National Treasury’s (NT) Guideline on Annual Re-
porting. 

 

B. Access to Information 
 

 The Department complies with the provisions of the Promotion of Access to Information 
Act (PAIA). 

 

Underlying 
assumptions 

Departments that prepare their AR in accordance with NT’s Guideline on Annual Reporting 
and adhere to the requirements of the PAIA are committed to transparency, accountability 
and effective governance in other areas. 
 

Standards A. Departmental AR 
 

1. The AR is attractive and clearly presented and is well written in simple accessible lan-
guage. 

 

2. The content of the AR covers in sufficient detail at least 90% of the areas prescribed by 
NT and the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) 

 

3. The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two 
thirds of the programmes listed. 

 

B. Access to Information 
 

1. The Department has at least one deputy information officer (DIO) with duly delegated 
authority. 

 

2. The Department does have a manual on access to information (MAI) in place that com-
plies with the requirements of the PAIA. 

 

3. A system for managing requests for access to information is in place. 
 

Rating 4,50 out of 5,00 (90%) = Excellent performance against all the standards 
 

Results 1. The Departmental AR 
 

1.1 The presentation of the AR 
 

The Department’s AR is attractively presented, written in a language that is clear and easily 
readable and sheds light on the key responsibilities of the Department.  The Department, 
therefore, complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. 
 

1.2 The content of the AR 
 

The content of the AR covers in sufficient detail 78% of the areas prescribed by National 
Treasury and the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA), which is less 
than the standard of 90% set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. 
 

1.3 Reporting on performance in the AR 
 

The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds 
of the programmes listed. 
 

2. The implementation of PAIA 
 

2.1 The appointment of Deputy Information Officers (DIO) 
 

Chief directors, chief registrar, chief surveyor, registrars, surveyors and director M&E are 
appointed deputy information officers and have been delegated responsibilities by the DG to 
manage information within their sections. 
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2.2 The availability of a Manual on Access to Information (MAI) 
 

The Department has a MAI in place, which complies with at least 11 (or 79%) of the 14 re-
quirements set by section 14 of the PAIA, 2000 (Act No 2 of 2000).  However the MAI has 
not been updated and is still under the name of the Department of Land Affairs. 
 

2.3 Procedures to handle requests for access to information 
 

Procedures for handling requests as well as a tracking mechanism to monitor requests for 
access to information are in place.  The Department does submit the section 32 report the 
Human Rights Commission (HRC) on an annual basis. 
 

Recommen-
dations 

The content of the departmental AR 
 

The Department should, with regard to the 2010/11 annual report, ensure that the content of 
the AR complies with the requirements for annual reporting set by the National Treasury and 
the DPSA. 
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the results 
of the report 
 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
 

 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 8: GOOD HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND CAREER-
DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES 
• Good human resource management and career-development practices, to maximise human 

potential, must be cultivated 
 

Performance 
indicators 

A. Recruitment  
 

 Vacant posts are filled in a timely and effective manner. 
 

B. Skills Development  
 

 The Department complies with the provisions of the Skills Development Act. 
Underlying 
assumptions 

A. Recruitment  
 

1. Effective recruitment policies and practices are a key indicator of good human resource 
management practice. 

 

2. Departments that handle recruitment effectively and which fill their posts quickly and well 
are more likely to be maximising human potential than those that are not. 

 

B. Skills Development  
 

1. Skills needs analyses are good instruments for assessing training needs and depart-
ments that draw upon them to prepare training strategies are working according to best 
practice.  

 

2. Taking care to monitor performance against plan suggests that Departments are commit-
ted to real human resource development. 

Standards A. Recruitment 
 

1. A recruitment policy complying with good practice standards and spelling out a detailed 
procedure is in place.  

2. Vacant posts are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time. 
 

3. Regular management reporting on recruitment is done and acted upon. 
 

B. Skills development  
 

1. A skills development plan, based on a thorough skills needs analysis, is in place  
 

2. Activities planned for are implemented  
 

3. The results achieved through skills development are monitored and recorded. 
Rating 3,50 out of 5,00 (70) = Good performance against most of the standards 

 

Results 1. Recruitment 
 

1.1 The existence of a policy on recruitment 
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A detailed recruitment and selection policy is in place that complies with good practice and 
with a detailed procedure spelled out.  The policy complies with all the legislative frameworks 
governing recruitment and selection in the Public Service. 
 

1.2 Time taken to fill a vacancy 
 

The average time taken to fill a vacant post is 141 days (5 months).  This is far beyond the 
standard of three months or less set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  Only three of 
the twenty most recently filled posts were finalised within the standard time frame of three 
months set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  However, considering the guideline of 
12 months on maximum to fill a vacancy set by PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2007, 20 (or 100%) 
of the posts were filled within the time frame of 12 months. 
 

1.3 Regular management reporting on recruitment 
 

The Department does report on recruitment to management on a regular basis and appropri-
ate management action is taken on the basis of the reports. 
 

2. Skills Development 
 

2.1 The existence of a skills development plan 
 

A skills development plan is in place which outlines all the critical skills needed by the De-
partment, and the training activities planned for the year 2010/11.  The WSP includes crucial 
data such as the cost of specific planned training interventions, timeframes for such interven-
tions and the scarce skills required per occupational category. The Skills Development Plan 
is aligned to the strategic objectives for the Department, especially the Comprehensive Rural 
Development Programme.  
 

2.2 Performance against the skills development plan 
 

The Department was able to implement all (or 100%) of the 2 983 planned activities.  How-
ever, no evidence could be found that the impact of staff development on service delivery 
was assessed.   
 

Recommen-
dations 

Recruitment – Time taken to fill a vacancy 
 

The Department should, before the end of the 2011/12 financial year, review its processes 
for the filling of posts and put in place measures that will improve performance on the time 
spent to fill funded vacant posts. 
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the Results 
of the report 
 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
 

 

9. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 9: REPRESENTIVITY 
• Public administration must be broadly representative of SA people 
 

Performance 
indicator  

The Department is representative of the South African people and is implementing diversity 
management measures. 
 

Underlying 
assumptions 

If Departments meet all their representivity targets and demonstrate sound approaches to 
diversity management, then they are likely to become representative in due course without 
compromising personnel management practices based on ability, objectivity and fairness. 
 

Standards  1. An employment equity policy and plan are in place and reported upon. 
 

2. All representivity targets are met. 
 

3. Diversity management measures are implemented. 
 

Rating 3,50 out of 5,00 (70%) = Good performance against most of the standards 
 

Results 1. The existence of an employment equity policy and plan 
 

The Department does have an Employment Equity Plan (EEP) and policy, which comply with 
the requirements of the Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998), and it has been 
formally approved and implemented.  
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2. The achievement of representivity targets 
 

At the end of the 2009/10 financial year the Department had 77% Blacks at senior manage-
ment level, which exceeds the target of 75% set for 30 April 2005.  Women at senior man-
agement level comprise 37%, which represents a deficit of 13% against the target of 50% set 
for 31 March 2009.  People with disabilities comprise 2,1%, which marginally exceeds the 
target of 2%. 
 

3. Regular management reporting on representivity 
 

Apart from the prescribed reporting to the Department of Labour, the implementation of the 
EEP is reported quarterly to the Director-General (D-G) and top management.  Management 
action is taken on the basis of the report to ensure that employment equity requirements are 
met. 
 

4. The implementation of diversity management measures 
 

The Department implemented some measures aimed at managing diversity; for example the 
Department’s recruitment and selection policy addresses representivity in the workforce.  
The Department complied with at least 74% of the diversity management checklist of the 
PSC’s M&E transversal system. 
 

Comment 
from the De-
partment on 
the Results 
of the report 
 

Note by the PSC:  The results contained in this section were forwarded to the Department in 
writing on 4 April 2011 with a request for comments within 10 days after receipt of the Re-
port.  Despite numerous requests, no comments were submitted on the due date of 18 April 
2011.  The PSC has, therefore, proceeded with the finalisation of the Report. 
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MAIN REPORT 

 

Principle 1:  Professional Ethics  
 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
Principal 
 

A high standard of professional ethics must be promoted and maintained. 

2. Performance 
Indicator 

Cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing has been conducted, comply with the 
provisions of the Disciplinary Code and Procedures for the Public Service. 
 

3. Standards 
and scores 

 

DESCRIPTION POINTS 

1. A policy/guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place 
 

 A policy/guideline document is in place that sets out the procedure and time frames to be followed 
when handling cases of misconduct.  

 All the managers surveyed have a working knowledge of the system. 

 
 

0,50 
 

0,50 

2. Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct 
 

 80% to 100% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was con-
ducted were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days. 

OR 
 60% to 79% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted 

were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days.  
OR 

 40% to 59% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted 
were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days. 

OR 
 20% to 39% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted 

were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days. 
OR 

 Less than 20% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was con-
ducted were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days. 

 

 
1,00 

 
 
 

0,75 
 
 
 

0,50 
 
 

0,25 
 
 
 

0,00 
3. Regular management reporting on cases of misconduct 
 

 Cases of misconduct are regularly reported upon in management reports.  
 Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available. 

 

 
0,50 
0,50 

4. Capacity of the Department to handle misconduct cases 
 

 80% to 100% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct. 
OR 

 60% to 79% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct. 
OR 

 40% to 59% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct. 
OR 

 20% to 39% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct.  
OR 

 Less than 20% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct. 

 
 

1,00 
 

0,75 
 

0,50 
 

0,25 
 

0,00 
5. Training on the management of cases of misconduct 
 

The managing of cases of misconduct is reflected in training materials and is covered in capacity building 
processes. 

 

 
1,00 

 

Maximum possible score 5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. A policy/ 
guideline on 
managing 
cases of mis-
conduct is in 
place 

Overview: 
 

1. Existence of policy/guideline document 
 

The Department has adopted its own policy on Labour relations, in addition to Public 
Sector Co-ordinating Bargaining Council (PSCBC) Resolution 2 of 1999, as amended by 
Resolution No. 1 of 2003, which includes the prescribed “Disciplinary Code and Proce-
dures” for the public service. The policy was approved and adopted for implementation 
on 1 May 2008.  The policy covers a number of labour relations issues, namely, unionisa-
tion, collective bargaining, dispute resolution, discipline, misconduct, financial miscon-
duct, suspensions, appeals, grievances, communication and other related matters. The 
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Department developed a presentation booklet for the year 2010/2011 on “Managing La-
bour Relations in the Workplace” for staff on level 9-12. The focus of the booklet is to 
capacitate line managers on how to deal with day to day labour relations issues.  
 

2. Supervision of cases of misconduct within the Department 
 

Acting Director: Human Resource Management (D: HRM), is responsible for supervising 
the handling of cases of misconduct in the Department and the appointment of the des-
ignated grievance officers (investigators).   
 

3. Reporting level 
 

The Acting Director reports to the Acting Chief Director: Organisational Development. 
The Acting Chief Director: OD approves the appointment of investigators for cases of 
misconduct. After the approval the Acting Director: HRM appoints the investigating offi-
cers 
 

4. Preliminary investigation 
 

The supervisor/immediate senior official bring the allegation(s) of misconduct to the at-
tention of the Labour Relations Sub-directorate (LRSD), which will then perform the pre-
liminary investigation(s).  The labour relations official who carried out the preliminary in-
vestigation will then offer advice to the relevant manager on the information gathered as 
well as on the appropriate steps to be taken.  In addition, the LRSD will then offer the 
necessary assistance in the event the alleged misconduct requires formal investigation. 
Managers are advised to conduct preliminary investigations themselves in order to estab-
lish a case before a matter is reported to the Labour Relations Directorate.  
 

5. Appointment of investigating officers, employer representatives and hearing chair-
persons 

 

The Acting Director: HRM approves the appointment of the investigators.  
 

Survey on managers’ working knowledge of policy: 
 

Five sampled senior managers were interviewed with a view to determine their general 
awareness on the application of the policy/guideline.  Based on their responses, it was 
deduced that they have a good understanding of the policy/guideline, from counselling to 
dealing with serious cases of misconduct.  Table1.1 below provides an overview of the 
managers’ responses during the interviews: 
 

Table 1.1: Survey of directors’ working knowledge of misconduct procedures 

Manager Overview of response Has a working knowledge of 
the procedures YES/NO 

Manager 1 Acting Director Yes  
Manager 2 Deputy Director  Yes  
Manager 3 Deputy Director  Yes  
Manager 4 Assistant Director  Yes  
Manager 5 Assistant Director  Yes  

 

All five sampled managers interviewed had a working knowledge of the department’s 
policy on the management of cases of misconduct and its requirements. Three of the 
managers interviewed had 3 and more years’ experience in dealing with cases of mis-
conduct, while the remaining two had just gone through the Labour Relations training in 
2010.  These officials should, therefore, be able to deal with cases of misconduct should 
they occur.  During the interview it was reported that about 80% of managers in the De-
partment have been trained on Labour relations guidelines.  
 
 

Rating: 1,00 out of 1,00 
 

The Department developed, approved and implemented a policy on the handling of 
cases of misconduct.  This policy, which sets out the procedures and timeframes to be 
followed by supervisors and managers when handling cases of misconduct, is aligned 
with the PSCBC Resolution No. 2 of 1999 as amended.  The Department complies with 
this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. A score of 0.50 out of 0.50 is 
awarded.  
 

All five sampled managers interviewed have a working knowledge of the department’s 
policy on the management of cases of misconduct and its requirements.  These officials 
should, therefore, be able to deal with cases of misconduct should they occur.  The De-
partment complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A score of 
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0.50 out of 0.50 is awarded. 
 

5. Time taken to 
resolve the 
most recent 
cases of mis-
conduct 

Overview: 
 

Cases where a disciplinary hearing was conducted 
 

1. Average length of time taken to process cases 
 

About 101 cases of misconduct were submitted for assessment, of which 20 were se-
lected for evaluation – refer to Table 1.2 and the end of this chapter.  It takes the De-
partment on average 127 working days to process and finalise a case of misconduct.  
The longest time taken to finalise a case was 351 working days and the shortest was 11 
working days.  A verdict of guilty was obtained in   14cases, 4 not guilty and 2 resigned.  
Given the prescribed steps that should be followed in accordance with the Disciplinary 
Code and Procedures, the average length of 124 working days, which the Department 
spends to process a case of misconduct is not acceptable compared to 20-80 days pre-
scribed by the Discipline Code and Procedures. 
 

2. Number of cases preceding year 2009/10  
 

Of the 17 selected cases 16 were reported during the 2009/10 financial year while only 3 
were reported in 2008.  
 

3. Pending cases 
 

None  
 

4. Most common offence(s) 
 

The most common offence is fraud, theft and variety of offences.  
 

Appeals 
 

1. Number of cases that went on appeal 
 

Two cases went on appeal.  
 

2. Average length of time taken to process appeal cases 
 

The Department took an average time of 24 days to deal with the appeal cases. The two 
cases that went on appeal were dealt with within 24 working days, which is less than the 
period of 30 working days allowed by PSCBC Resolution No. 2 of 1999, as amended. 
 
 

Rating: 0,25 out of 1,00 
 

The Department takes on average 127 working days to finalise a case of misconduct.  
About 7 (35%) cases submitted for assessment were finalised within the 20 – 80 working 
day period, which falls within the 20%-39% range of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System 
for a score of 0,25 out of 1,00.  The longest time taken to finalise a case was 351 working 
days and the shortest was 11 working days. 
 
 

Area for improvement: 
 

The Department should, with immediate effect, ensure that all cases of misconduct in 
which a disciplinary hearing has been conducted are finalised within 20 - 80 working 
days as required by the Disciplinary Code and Procedures for the Public Service. 
 

6. Regular man-
agement re-
porting on 
cases of mis-
conduct 

Overview: 
 

1. Availability of regular management reports on cases of misconduct 
 

The Sub-directorate: Labour Relations regularly submits progress reports to the Chief 
Director: Corporate Service on grievances management, management of misconduct, 
dispute resolutions, training and information sharing sessions. The Department submitted 
a copy of misconduct statistics dated 18 November 2010. The report indicates the name 
of the official, Persal number, directorate, rank, date the case was reported, race, gen-
der, nature of the misconduct, status of the case, supervisor, outcome of the case, ap-
peal/not, date finalised, and the responsible official or manager. 
 

2. Management’s response/action on these reports 
 

Although these reports serve to improve the management system in the Department, no 
evidence of management response/actions emanating from the reports could be ob-
tained. 
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Rating: 0, 50 out of 1, 00 
 

1. Availability of regular management reports on cases of misconduct 
 

Regular management reporting is done through quarterly and monthly reports submitted 
to management on the status of cases of misconduct.  Copies of the reports are submit-
ted as evidence.  A full score of 0, 50 are awarded.  
 

2. Management’s response/action on these reports 
 

There is no evidence of management response/actions emanating from the progress 
reports on finalising cases of misconduct.  A score of 0, 00 out of 0, 50 is awarded. 
 

7. Capacity of 
the Depart-
ment to han-
dle cases of 
misconduct 

Overview: 
 

Table 1.3 below indicates the Department’s assessment of the number and competency 
level of managers dealing with misconduct: 
 

Table 1.3: Competency level of managers to deal with cases of misconduct 
Number of Officials 
Competence 

Salary Band 
Number of 
Officials on the 
Establishment 

Still gaining 
experience – 
Less than 1 year 
experience 

Adequate – 
More than 1 
year but less 
than 3years 
experience 

Highly compe-
tent – Three 
years and 
more experi-
ence 

Percentage of 
Highly Compe-
tent Officials for 
Salary Band 

Assistant Director 756   3 0,4 
Deputy Director 546   2 0,4 
Director 93   1 1 
Chief Director 29    0 
Deputy Director-General 14    0 
Director-General 1    0 
TOTAL 1 439   6 0,4% 

 

The Department has 1 439 managers, of which only 0,4% are highly competent, which 
means that they have three years and more experience in dealing with cases of miscon-
duct. 
 
 

Rating: 0,00 out of 1,00 
 
 

The Department indicated that 80% of the staff had been trained in Labour Relations is-
sues.  This competency level falls within  the range of 80 to a 100% set by the PSC’s 
Transversal M&E System for a score of 1,00 out of 1,00. 
 

8. Training on 
the manage-
ment of cases 
of miscon-
duct 

Overview: 
 

1. Existence of training material 
 

Training on labour relations is conducted to all employees.  A copy of the 2010/11 Pres-
entation on Managing Labour Relations in the work place for level 9-19 was submitted. 
The objective of the training are the following: 
 

 To capacitate line managers on how to deal with day to day labour relations matters,  
 Resolve grievances at the point of origin,  
 To create conducive working environment through the application of code of conduct 

in the public service, and  
 To promote relationship between supervisors and supervisees. 

 

2. Content of training material 
 

Training on the Basic Principles of Labour Relations was conducted for level 1-8 employ-
ees during the 2009/10 financial year.  The training manual covers the following: 
 

 Part 2: Management of absenteeism, abscondment and desertion. 
 Part 3: Discipline management and procedures. 
 Part 4: Grievance management and procedures. 

 

The Department submitted statistics indicating that 80% of managers were trained during 
2010.  However, it is not clear how many of these managers are competent in dealing 
with cases of misconduct.  It is also not clear whether the Department conducts an an-
nual assessment of the impact of training.  
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3. Frequency of training  
 

The Department conduct information sessions or training on labour relations once a year. 
 

4. Prominence of Code of Conduct 
 

The disciplinary code and procedure s and the code of good practice are included in the 
training manual for training of all employees in the department regardless of the rank.  
 
 

Rating: 1,00 out of 1,00 
 

The training and capacity building training provided by the Department covered all as-
pects regarding Labour Relations issues.  The Disciplinary code and procedure, Griev-
ance rules for public service, code of good practice, discipline and dismissal, and the 
Labour Relations policy form part of the training.  A full score of 1; 00 is awarded. 
 

Rating 
 

9. Score  
 

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. A policy/guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place 
 

 A policy/guideline document is in place that sets out the procedure and timeframes to be followed 
when handling cases of misconduct.  

 All the managers surveyed have a working knowledge of the system. 

 
 

0,50 
 

0,50 

2. Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct 
 

 20% to 39% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted 
were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days. 

 

 
0,25 

3. Regular management reporting on cases of misconduct 
 

 Cases of misconduct are regularly reported upon in management reports.  
 Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available. 

 

 
0,50 
0,00 

 

4. Capacity of the Department to handle misconduct cases 
 

 80% to 100% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct. 

 

 
1,00 

5. Training on the management of cases of misconduct 
 

The managing of cases of misconduct is reflected in training materials and is covered in capacity building 
processes. 

 

 
1,00 

Total score 3,75 
 
 

Sources 
 

10. References Sources consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Documents: 
 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Land Affairs. HRM Labour Relations Policy. 
1 may 2008. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Mis-
conduct statistics. 18 November 2010 

 

3. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
2010/2011 Presentation on Managing Labour Relations in the workplace. Level 9-12. 
2010.  
 
 

Interviews: 
 

1. Kganticoe, M. Deputy Director: HRM. Department of Rural Development and Land 
Reform. Pretoria. 14 February 2011. 
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Table 1.2 – Overview of the most recent cases of misconduct 
 

 

Number of Working Days Spent on 
Misconduct Cases where a Disci-
plinary Hearing was Conducted 

Number of Working Days Spent on 
Appeal Cases 

Post Designation 
Nature of offence 

(Annexure A of Disciplinary 
Code) 

Date of 
Notice of 
Discipli-

nary 
Enquiry 

Date of 
Final 

Conclu-
sion of 

Discipli-
nary 

Hearing 

Total 
Number 
of 
Working 
Days 
Spent 
on Case 

Outcome of 
case 

 
(Guilty/ 

Not guilty) 

Did it go 
on Ap-

peal 
 

(Yes/No) 
Date 
Case 

Went on 
Appeal 

Date 
Fina-
lised 

Total Num-
ber of Work-

ing Days 
Spent on 
Appeal 
Case 

Decision 
Varied 

on Appeal 
 

(Yes/No) 

Dispute 
Declared – 
Referred 

to Sectoral 
Council 
(Yes/No) 

Decision 
Varied in 
Sectoral 
Council 
(Yes/No) 

Comments 

1. Assistant Director  Prejudice the administration, 
discipline or efficiency of the 
department , office or institution  

09/4/08 01/10/08 118 Guilty   Yes  01/10/08 14/11/0
8 

26     

2. Assistant Director: 
HRM  

Prejudice the administration, 
discipline or efficiency of the 
department , office or institution 

09/04/08 08/10/08 123 Guilty Yes  08/10/08 14/11/0
8 

22     

3. Chief Deeds Registra-
tion Clerk  

Fraudulently  setting of informa-
tion/documents 

01/12/09 09/07/10 243 Not guilty          

4. Data Typist: Deeds 
PTA  

Alleged theft of 64 official com-
puters  

21/05/09 21/01/10 171 Guilty dis-
missal  

        

5. Snr deeds Examiner Fraud: Registration of one 
property to two individuals 

17/11/09 11/03/10 80 Guilty          

6. Snr deeds Examiner Fraud: Registration of one 
property to two individuals 

17/11/09 11/03/10 80 Not guilty          

7. Manager :SPI Possible fraudulent & irregular 
procurement procedure 

09/10/09 16/08/10 234 Official re-
signed  

        

8. Senior planner  Transport and Accommodation 
misuse 

13/05/10 06/07/10 37 Not guilty 
Allegation 
dismissed.  

        

9. Senior HC officer  Disrespectful and unbecoming 
behaviour towards supervisor 

30/08/10 15/09/10 11 guilty         

10. Senior Manager Refusal to implement written 
warning  

10/07/09 18/11/09 92 Not guilty          

11.  Verbal and attempted physical 
assault 

3/02/09 19/07/10 114 Guilty final 
written warn-
ing  

        

12. DD: Spatial Planning  Alleged irregular S &T claims, 
submitted  

25/03/09 31/07/09 108 Official resign          

13. RLCC: EC Fraudulent certificates  02/02/09 29/07/09 123 Guilty dis-
missal  

        

14. Snr Admin Clerk  Accident with GG car 01/10/08 22/09/09 246 Guilty suspen-
sion  

        

15. Deeds: PTA Fraud: child support  21/08/09 19/10/09 61 Guilty suspen-
sion  

        

16. Commissioner  Mismanagement of office, inter 
alia delay in finalising section 
42D submission, irregular 
appointment of her PA.  

10/09/09 2/03/10 135 Guilty         
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Number of Working Days Spent on 
Misconduct Cases where a Disci-
plinary Hearing was Conducted 

Number of Working Days Spent on 
Appeal Cases 

17. Deputy Manager Non-compliance to PSR ap-
pointment 

09/10/09 12/02/10 108 Guilty          

18. Manager  Irregularities on acquisition of 
3G cards 

10/05/10 19/07/10 50 Guilty written 
warning  

        

19. Project officer Mismanagement of projects  01/04/09 19/07/10 351 Guilty suspen-
sion without 
pay 

        

20. Various officials  Theft of computers  09/06/09 21/08/09 52  Guilty final 
written warn-
ing  

        

TOTAL WORKING DAYS SPENT 2537 TOTAL WORKING DAYS SPENT 48 
AVERAGE WORKING DAYS 127 AVERAGE WORKING DAYS 24 

AVERAGE WORKING WEEKS 18 AVERAGE WORKING WEEKS 3 
AVERAGE WORKING MONTHS 5 AVERAGE WORKING MONTHS 0.9 
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Principle 2:  Efficiency, Economy and Effectiveness 
 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
principle 

 

Efficient, economic and effective use of resources must be promoted 

2. Performance 
indicator 

1. Expenditure is in accordance with the budget. 
 

2. Programme outputs are clearly defined and there is credible evidence that they have 
been achieved. 

3. Standards 
and scores 

 

DESCRIPTION POINTS 

Planned expenditure vs actual expenditure 
 

 Expenditure stated in the AR is as budget for in the estimates of expenditure. 
 Material variances are explained. 

 

 
0,50 
0,50 

The quality if the Department’s Performance Indicators 
 

 More than half of each programme’s PIs are measurable in terms of quantity, quality and time 
dimensions. 

 Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked with each other as they appear in the SP, estimates 
of expenditure and the AR for the year under review (the annual report, the strategic plan and 
the department’s budget must be consistent). 

 
 

0,50 
 

0,50 
 

The achievement of priority outputs 
 

 80% and more of the priority outputs have been met. 
OR 

 60% - 79% of the priority outputs have been met.  
OR 

 40% - 59% of the priority outputs have been met.  
OR 

 Less than 40% of the priority outputs have been met. 

 

 
3,00 

 
2,00 

 
1,00 

 
0,50 

Maximum possible score 5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. Planned Ex-
penditure vs. 
Actual Ex-
penditure 

Overview 
 

Expenditure stated in the AR is as budgeted for in the estimates of expenditure 
 

During the 2009/10 financial year an amount of R 6,391 million was allocated to the De-
partment after adjusted appropriation.  Expenditure for the said period was R 5,854 mil-
lion resulting in an under-expenditure of R536, 370or 8, 4% of the amount voted, which 
is outside the generally accepted margin of 2%- for detail refer to Table 2.1and the end 
of this report. 
 

Material variations between expenditure and amount voted per programme 
 

Material variations between departmental expenditure and the amount voted are found 
primarily in the programmes and sub-programmes listed in the Table below: 
 

Programme % Variation 
1. Administration  12,1% 
2. Surveys and Mapping  4,4% 
3. Cadastral Surveys  9,3% 
4. Restitution  0,3% 
5. Land Reform  13,4% 
6. Spatial Planning and Information 34,6% 
7. Auxiliary and Associate Services 6,0% 

Variation on total budget 8,4% 
 

According to the Auditor-General’s (A-G) report the main reasons for the variations were 
the following: 
 

Programme 1: Administration 
 

Under-spending of R79 million constitutes 12,1% of the programme total budget due to 
the delays in the approval of the new Departmental structure and the changing of man-
date. Another factor that contributed to overspending is the decrease in recruitment cost 
as a result of doing certain services internally as opposed to using recruitment agencies. 
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Programme 2: Surveys and Mapping  
 

Under-spending of R3,9 million constitutes 4,4% of the programme’s total budget which 
is outside the limit of 2%. Under-spending is due to the inability to recruit and retain em-
ployees due to poor salaries, as well as the delay in the implementation of the job 
evaluations and Occupational Specific Dispensation (OSD).  
 

Programme 3: Cadastral Surveys  
 

The programme’s under-spending of R13,1 million represent 9,3% of the programme’s 
total budget, which is way above the required acceptable limit of 2%.  Under-spending 
was mainly due to delays experienced with office accommodation at the Eastern Cape 
and North West Offices, which further contributed to the delay of several projects. Some 
contributing factors relate to the billing systems from SITA being faulty and resulting in 
unprocessed and unpaid invoices.  
 

Programme 4: Restitution  
 

The programme under-spending of R6,7 million constitutes 0,3% of the programme‘s 
total budget which is still within the required variance of 2%.  
 

This was mainly due goods and services as results of the capital transfers to households 
funding being depleted by June 2009 and the corresponding current expenditure not 
being able to take place.  
 

Programme 5: Land Reform  
 

The programme under-spending of R407 million represents 13,4% which is way above 
the 2% acceptable limit. Under-spending under the sub-programme: rural development 
was due to the late appropriation of funds during the 2009 AE processes, which resulted 
in it, not being possible for the sub-programme to spend their committed funds as 
planned.  
 

Programme 6: Spatial Planning and Information  
 

The programme under-spending of R22,2 million constitutes 4,1% which outside the ac-
ceptable limit of 2%. This was due to unanticipated lack of capacity in the created sub-
programmes of Disaster Management and Technology Research and Development to 
support the Rural Development Programme.  
 

Programme 7: Auxiliary and Associate Services  
 

The programme under-spending of R4 million constitutes 6% which is above the accept-
able limit of 2%. This was mainly due to goods and services, where the Department of 
Public Works had not finalised the Capital Works projects pertaining to the Department 
of Rural Development and Land Reform by the end of the financial year as anticipated.  
 
 

Rating: 0,50 out of 1,00 
 

Under-expenditure constitutes 8.4% of the amount voted during the 2009/10 financial 
year, which falls outside the generally accepted margin of 2% set by the National Treas-
ury.  Material variances are explained.  A score of 0,50 is awarded.  
 

5. The quality of 
the Depart-
ment’s PIs 

Overview: 
 

Measurability of outputs and indicators 
 

The Department’s outputs, PIs and targets as they appear in the SP for 2009-2012 and 
2010/13, the estimates of expenditure for 2009/10 and the AR for 2009/2010were ana-
lysed to determine whether they are measurable in terms of quality, quantity and time 
dimensions. The measurability of the PIs per programme is summarised in the Table 
below (for more detail refer to Table 2.2 at the end of this report): 
 

Programme Number of PIs 
Number PIs meas-
urable in terms of 
quantity and time 
dimensions 

% PIs measurable in terms of 
quantity and time dimensions 

1. Administration 3 3 100% 
2. Surveys and Mapping 5 5 100% 
3. Cadastral Surveys 7 7 100% 
4. Restitution 3 3 100% 
5. Land Reform 4 4 100% 
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6. Spatial Planning and Information 4 4 100% 
7. Auxiliary and Associate Services 7 7 100% 

Total 33 33 100% 
 

An assessment was conducted on the 33 performance indicators (PIs) as they appear in 
the Annual Report. All 33 indicators are measurable in terms of quantity and time dimen-
sions. The targets are clearly linked to the indicator and the actual performance ex-
plained. Where an output is not achieved or partially achieved an explanation is given in 
the AR. 
 

The annual report, the strategic plan and the department’s budget must be consistent. 
 

The programmes as they appear in the strategic plan of 2009-2012 are not the same as 
in the strategic plan of 2010-2013 since more components were added to the structure 
of the Department. The number of programmes in the revised budget is 5 while the AR is 
reporting on 7 programmes and an additional 3 branches added to the structure of the 
Department. 
 
 

Rating: 1,00 
 

All (100%) the performance indicators (PIs) of all the programmes were measurable in 
terms of quantity and time dimensions. The Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked 
with each other as they appear in the SP, estimates of expenditure and the AR for the 
year under review. A score of 1,00 out of 1,00 is awarded. 
 

6. The achieve-
ment of prior-
ity outputs 

Overview: 
 

To determine whether the Department has succeeded in achieving its priority outputs, 
each programme’s outputs were compared with the achievements as they were reported 
on in the AR for the period 2009/10.  Partially achieved outputs were regarded as not 
achieved, on-going outputs were regarded as achieved and those outputs, which 
changed during the course of the year, were not taken into account. 
 

The following priority outputs per programme were achieved: (For more detail refer to 
Table 2.2 at the end of this chapter.) 
 

Programme Number of 
priority outputs  

Number of outputs 
achieved 

% of outputs 
achieved 

1. Administration 3 0  
2. Surveys and Mapping 5 4  
3. Cadastral Surveys Management 7 3  
4. Restitution 3 0  
5. Land Reform 4 0  
6. Spatial Planning and Information 4 2  
7. Deeds Registration and Auxiliary 

Services  
7 1  

Total 33 10 30% 
 

Overall, the Department has achieved only 10 out of the 33 planned outputs for the 
2009/10 financial year.   
 

The extent to which the Department has achieved its planned priority outputs under the 
individual programmes for the 2009/10 financial year, is discussed below: 
 

Programme 1: Administration  
 

The three outputs were partially achieved but enough information is not provided to 
make an informed judgement of the performance of the programme. 
Programme 2: Surveys and Mapping 
 

This programme performed very well with 4 of the 5 targets achieved or exceeded and 
the fifth 87% achieved. 
 

Programme 3: Cadastral Surveys 
 

The programme achieved 3 out of 7 targets.  Two of the targets that were not achieved 
are time standards, namely: 
 

 95% of diagrams, general plans and sectional title plans is approved within 15 days; 
and 

 Update and archive hard copy records within 15 days 
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The actual achievement for both of these standards was 18 days, which is not poor per-
formance even though the target was not reached. 
 

Programme 4: Restitution  
 

The Department achieved none of the outputs for programme 4 but this is because of a 
budget that has no relation to the land restitution targets.  The targets should be ad-
justed to be in line with the medium term budget. 
 

Programme 5: Land Reform  
 

The Department achieved none of the 4 planned outputs. The reason for not achieving 
the redistribution target is the re-allocation of part of the redistribution budget to other 
purposes.  For detail see Table 2.2 at the end of this chapter.  With regard to tenure se-
curity it seems that there are still a number of unresolved legal issues that cause delays 
in finalising cases.  Innovative solutions will have to be found in this regard.  With regard 
to the administration of state land the target was not achieved because the departments 
who are the custodians of the land did not submit the required documentation to the De-
partment of Land Reform because of a lack of capacity for the land administration func-
tion. 
 

Programme 6: Spatial Planning and Information  
 

The Department achieved 2 of the 4 planned outputs. Two of the targets that were not 
achieved relate to the finalisation of legislation and regulations, where some of the de-
lays can be argued to be deliberate, that is, a deliberate decision to first undertake a 
Regulatory Impact Assessment. 
 

Programme 7: Deeds Registration 
 

The Department achieved only one of 7 targets.  The one target that was achieved is, 
however, probably the main target, namely to register a title deed within 7 days.  Three 
of the seven targets are outside the control of the Department, since they are affected by 
the level of economic activity, namely the number of deeds registered, the monetary 
value of transfers, and the monetary value of bonds.  The Department should probably 
not use targets such as these as performance targets. 
 

Other factors influencing the performance of the Department is the fact that considerable 
management time went into the establishment of the new rural development function 
and budgets were also diverted to this function.  The Department also struggled to inte-
grate the rural development programme into the municipal governance and planning 
system.  In integrating the CRDP the Department embarked on reviewing the vision of 
the department, which include re-branding. The Department was restructured, and the 
staff establishment, performance agreements and budget allocations reviewed.  
 

Rating: 0,50 
 

An analysis of the Department’s outputs, PIs and targets as they appear in Table 2.2 at 
the end of this chapter, indicates that the Department was able to achieve only 10 (or 
30%) of 33 planned outputs, which falls within the less than 40% range of the PSC’s 
Transversal M&E System for a score of 0,50 out of 3,00.  Reasons for the non-
achievement of outputs have been provided by the Department. 
 

Rating 
 

7. Score  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
Planned expenditure vs. actual expenditure 
 

 Expenditure stated in the AR is as budget for in the estimates of expenditure. 
 Material variances are explained. 

 

 
0,00 
0,50 

The quality if the Department’s Performance Indicators 
 

 More than half of each programme’s PIs are measurable in terms of quantity, quality and time 
dimensions. 

 Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked with each other as they appear in the SP, estimates of 
expenditure and the AR for the year under review (the annual report, the strategic plan and the 
department’s budget must be consistent). 

 
 

0,50 
 

0,50 
 

The achievement of priority outputs 
 

 40% - 59% of the priority outputs have been met. 

 

 
0,50 

Total score 2,00  
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Sources 
 

8. References Sources consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Documents: 
 

1. Republic of South Africa. The Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Annual Report 1 April 2009 -31 March 2010. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. National Treasury. Estimate of National Expenditure 2010 
 

3. Republic of South Africa. The Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Strategic plan 2009-2012. 

 

4. Republic of South Africa. The Department of Land Affairs. Strategic plan 2005-
2010.Sustainable Land and Agrarian Reform: A Contribution to Vision 2014” March 
2005. 

 

5. Republic of South Africa. The Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Strategic plan 2010-2013. 
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sources to 
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2. Republic of South Africa. National Treasury. Treasury Guidelines on preparing 
budget submissions for the year under review. 2008. 

 

3. Republic of South Africa. National Treasury. Treasury Guide for the Preparation of 
Annual reports of departments for the financial year ended 31 March. 2008. 

 

4. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Fifth Consolidated Monitoring 
and Evaluation Report. 2008.  

 

5. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on Batho Pele Princi-
ple of Value for Money. 2008. 

 

6. Republic of South Africa. Statistics South Africa. The South African Statistical Qual-
ity Assessment Framework (SASQAF). First edition.2007. 

 
 

Table 2.1 – Planned vs. actual expenditure 
 

 

Programmes (From Estimates of Expenditure) 
Revised Budget 

Allocation 
R’000 

Actual Expend. 
R’000 

Percentage Vari-
ance Revised 

Budget Allocation 
Programme 1: Administration  
Sub-programme 1.1: Minister  1,765 1762 0,2% 
Sub-programme 1.2:: Deputy  Minister  2,382 2,379 0,1% 
Sub-programme 1.3:  Management 113,940 90,301 18,75% 
Sub-programme 1.4:: Corporate  Services  395,528 340,434 14 % 
Sub-programme 1.5: Property Management  138,629 138,349 0,2% 

Total Programme 1 652 244 573 225 12.1% 
Programme 2: Surveys and Mapping  
Sub-programme 2.1: Surveys and Mapping  88,455 84,529 4.4% 

Total Programme 2 88,455 84,529 4.4% 
Programme 3: 
Sub-programme 3.1: Cadastral Surveys  140,824 127,662 9.3% 

Total Programme 3 140,824 127,662 9.3% 
Programme 4: Restitution 
Sub-programme 4.1: Restitution National Office  37,339 36,073 2.5% 
Sub-programme 4.2: Restitution Regional Office  331,699 327,743 21.1% 
Sub-programme 4.3: Restitution Grants 1,969,355 1,967,596 0.1% 

Total Programme 4 2,338,393 2,331,634 0.3% 
Programme 5: Land Reform  
Sub-programme 5.1: Land Reform National Office  77,378 72,977 27.7% 
Sub-programme 5.2: Land Reform Provincial Office  271,205 245,092 8.06% 
Sub-programme 5.3: Land Reform Grants 1,303,331 1,206,571 13.4% 
Sub-programme 5.4: Kwazulu-Natal Ingonyama Trust Board 3,056 3,056  
Sub-programme 5.5: Land Reform Empowerment Facility  1 -  
Sub-programme 5.6: Communal Land Rights Programme  1,449 789 38,5% 
Sub-programme 5.7: Agricultural Land Holding Account  1,041,116 1,041,116  
Sub-programme 5.8: Rural Development 252,340 62,991 58% 

Total Programme 5 3,039,876 2,632,592 13,4% 
Programme 6: Spatial Planning and Information 
Sub-programme 6.1: SPI Management and Support Services  41,790 21,930 28,5% 
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Programmes (From Estimates of Expenditure) 
Revised Budget 

Allocation 
R’000 

Actual Expend. 
R’000 

Percentage Vari-
ance Revised 

Budget Allocation 
Sub-programme 6.2: Spatial Planning and Information  20,024 17,690 20,2% 
Sub-programme 6.3: South African Council for Planners  2,288 2,288 0% 

Total Programme 6 64,102 41,908 34,6% 
Programme 7:  Auxiliary and Associated Services  
Sub-programme 7.1: Government Motor Transport  - - -% 
Sub-programme 7.2 : registration of Deeds Trading Account  57,593 57,592 0 % 
Sub-programme7.3  Sector Education and training Authority 1 -  
Sub-programme 7.4:  Capital Works  9,603 5,579 41,9 

Total Programme 7 67,197 63,171 6% 
Total Department 6,391,091 5,854,721 8,4% 
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Table 2.2 – The achievement of objectives 
 

 

Table 2.2: The achievement of outputs  

Programme/Sub-
programme Outputs per sub-programme PIs Target 

PI  
measurable 

Yes/No 
Actual performance and reasons for non-

performance/change of output(s) 

Output & 
target 

achieved 
 

Yes/No 
Programme 1: Administration 
 
Measurable objective: Creation of an enabling environment or improved service delivery through leadership alignment and appropriate organization culture and architecture.  

1. Optimised business architecture that achieves 
Department strategic objectives. 

90% achieved 
objectives 

Yes Target partially achieved.  The Human Resource Plan has 
been completed & the process of implementation is under 
way to address the current & future human resource needs 
of the department.  The reviewed organizational structure 
was approved by the Minister of Rural Development & Land 
Reform on16 October 2009 & forwarded to the Minister of 
Public Service & Administration for perusal & guidance. 

No Enabling environment (service delivery) 

2. Degree of compliance to corporate services 
scorecard. 

100% Yes Target partially achieved Customer care workshops were 
held in Western Cape (WC) & National Office & 338 staff 
members were trained. 

No 

Sub-programme 1: 
Administration  

Implementation of Empowerment programmes 
facilitated 

3. Comprehensive report indicating success & 
challenges in the implementation of youth & dis-
ability empowerment programmes. 

One report Yes Target partially achieved. The disability & youth policies 
were implemented as part of empowerment programmers. 

No 

Total number of PIs for programme 3 Total number of outputs  3 
Total number of PIs measurable for programme 3 Total number of outputs achieved  0 

% of PIs measurable for programme 100% % of outputs achieved  0% 
Programme 2: Surveys & Mapping 
 
Measurable objective: Provision of accurate, up-to-date & accessible maps & other geo-spatial information, imagery & an integrated spatial reference framework to enhance planning & monitoring of l& reform, national infrastructure & sustainable 
development, nationally & regionally. 

1. The National Integrated Spatial Reference 
Framework covering the whole country estab-
lished & maintained in accordance with pre-
scribed standards, in the reporting period. 

1 050 reference 
stations main-
tained by 31 
March 2010 

Yes Target achieved.  1 019 reference stations were main-
tained.  One beacon builder out of three was on long sick 
leave. 

Yes 

2. Acquisition of earth imagery at 0.5m ground 
sample distance(GSD) of 40% of South Africa 
every three years (488 000 km2) & the remain-
ing areas every five years (732 000 km2), & at 
20m GSD of the whole country (1, 22 million 
km2) annually, in accordance with user needs 
& prescribed standards, in the reporting period.  

290 000 km2 at 
0.5m GSD ac-
quired by 31 
March 

Yes Target exceeded.  430 600 km2 of earth imagery at 0.5m 
ground sample distance (GSD) acquired. 

Yes  

3. Captured & revised topographical data in the 
integrated database off fundamental geo-
spatial information for the whole country (1,22 
million km2), in accordance with prescribed 
standards, in the reporting period. 

194 000 km2 of 
topographic Data 
captured by 31 
March 

Yes Target partially achieved 168 125 km2 of topographic data 
was captured & revised in the integrated database of fun-
damental geospatial information for the whole country. 

No 

Sub-programme 2.1: 
Provide fundamental 
geo-spatial informa-
tion services to the 
nation 

Fundamental geo-spatial information as a 
national asset, consisting of an integrated 
spatial reference framework, national earth 
imagery & mapping covering the whole country 
in accordance with user needs.  

4. Up-to-date maps produced/revised in compli-
ance with prescribed standards in the reporting 
period. 

 

1 650 maps by 31 
March 

Yes Target exceeded 1 900 maps were produced & revised in 
compliance with prescribed standards by the end of the 
financial year. 

Yes  
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Table 2.2: The achievement of outputs  

Programme/Sub-
programme Outputs per sub-programme PIs Target Actual performance and reasons for non-

performance/change of output(s) 

Output & 
target 

achieved 
PI  

measurable 
Yes/No  

Yes/No 
Sub-programme 2.2: 
Participation in re-
lated land & agrarian 
reform activities & 
programmes aimed 
at consolidation of 
the African Agenda 

Participation in development projects in Africa, 
in particular Southern African Development 
Community (SADC), & regional & Sub regional 
structures as approved. 

5. Narrative on achievements of meetings & 
projects or outcomes of particular meetings & 
projects, including achievements & actions 
specifically connected with component’s contri-
bution to the Regional Structures & Projects.  

Report within six 
weeks of meeting 
or completion of 
project phase 

Yes Target achieved.  Assistance with the presentation of the 
Mapping Africa for Africa & African Reference Frame 
(AFREF) workshop in Nairobi was provided.  Report on 
Governing Council of Regional Centre for Mapping of 
Resources for Development (RCMRD) submitted within 
four weeks. 

Yes  

Total number of PIs for programme 5 Total number of outputs  5 
Total number of PIs measurable for programme 5 Total number of outputs achieved  4 

% of PIs measurable for programme 100% % of outputs achieved  50% 
Programme 3: Cadastral Survey Management 
 
Measurable objective: Approval, maintenance & archiving of cadastral survey documents submitted by l& surveyors, facilitating the regulation of cadastral surveys & supply of cadastral information, in order to support & facilitate economic develop-
ment, with special emphasis on l& tenure reform & rural development.  

1. No of cadastral documents processed & total 
no of land parcels created. 

13 400 (220 
000)* 

Yes Target partially achieved 11 662 (181 047) projects were 
processed & land parcels created. 

Yes Register able diagrams, general plans & sec-
tional title plans approved in terms of the Land 
Survey Act, 1997 & Sectional Titles Act, 1986. 2. No of days taken to examine & approve 95% of 

diagrams, general plans & sectional title plans 
under abnormal workload. 

15days Yes Target not achieved 95% of the diagrams, general plans & 
sectional title plans were examined within 18 days under 
normal working days. 

No 

Sub-programme 3.1: 
Provision of tenure 
security that creates 
socio-economic 
opportunities 

Cadastral surveys Management services 
supplied in all provinces. 

3. Office of the Surveyor-General established in 
terms of the Land Survey Act. 

North West Yes Target partially achieved. Structure for NW was approved, 
posts to be filled through advertising, transfers & also 
through land surveyors-in-training. Posts for transfers were 
approved.  Survey Officers trained in PTA waiting for relo-
cation. 

No 

Complete & current cadastral information 
pertaining to every land parcel in South Africa, 
in both paper & digital format. 

4. No of days taken to update & archive hard copy 
records. 

15 days Yes Target not achieved 18 days were taken to update & ar-
chive hard copies records. 

No 

5. Implement the Surveying/Geomatics Profes-
sions Act to transform the surveying profession. 

Subm of legisla-
tion to Minister 
(via Policy Unit) 

Yes Target partially achieved.  Awaiting the Bill to be tabled in 
Parliament during the 2010 session. Consultations have 
taken place since the beginning of the financial year 
2009/10.  The Bill was changed from Surveying Profession 
to Geomatics Profession, which included the Geo informa-
tion practitioners (GIS). 

Yes 

Sub-programme 3.2: 
Provision of efficient 
land use & l& admini-
stration services Amend surveying Legislation implemented to 

support government’s aims & objectives on 
economic development & poverty reduction. 

6. Amend regulations framed under Land Survey 
Act to improve the efficiency of cadastral sur-
veys & to accommodate any other land related 
legislation. 

New regulations 
to accommodate 
Global Navigation 
Satellite System 
technology 

Yes Target partially achieved.  Proposed amendments are still 
being consolidated. 

No 

Sub-programme 3.3: 
Development of pro-
grammes for em-
powerment of des-
ignated groups 

Trained professional Land Surveyors, Profes-
sional Surveyors, Survey technicians & Survey 
officers from target groups. 

7. No of bursary beneficiaries (professional land 
surveyors-in-training, cadastral technicians, 
cadastral officers & interns) successfully com-
pleting the required training courses & experi-
ential training. 

106 Yes Target exceeded.  Training offered to 37 land surveyors-in 
training & cadastral technicians.  Training was offered to 87 
beneficiaries. 

Yes 

Total number of PIs for programme 7 Total number of outputs  7 
Total number of PIs measurable for programme 7 Total number of outputs achieved  3 

% of PIs measurable for programme 100% % of outputs achieved  0% 
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Table 2.2: The achievement of outputs  

Programme/Sub-
programme Outputs per sub-programme PIs Target Actual performance and reasons for non-

performance/change of output(s) 

Output & 
target 

achieved 
PI  

measurable 
Yes/No  

Yes/No 
Programme 4: Restitution 
 
Measurable objectives: Resolve restitution claims within the target period through negotiated settlements that restore land rights or award alternative forms of equitable redress to claimants. 

All lodged claims settled. 1. All the remaining 4 560 land claims validated, 
gazetted, verified & settled by 2011 in terms of 
the Restitution of Land Rights Act. 

1 695 Yes  Target not achieved.  33 land claims settled & finalised.  
The programme experienced a huge budget deficit during 
the year under review; as a result most of the claims that 
were in the pipeline could not be settled. 

No 

Contribution of claimed/alternative land to the 
department target to redistribute 30% white 
owned agriculture land by 2014. 

2. Total number of hectares of land claimed 
restored which contributes 30% of departmen-
tal target of 1 513 712 ha. 

556 234 ha Yes Target not achieved.  145 492 ha were restored.  Same 
reasons as above. 

No 

Settlement of all 
outstanding land 
claims by 2011. 

Settlement support process of land claims with 
development aspect facilitated to ensure 
sustainable development. 

3. Effective implementation of all settled projects Action plan in 
place for roll-out 
of post settlement 
framework 

Yes Target partially achieved The action plan has been partly 
implemented. 

No 

Total number of PIs for programme 3 Total number of outputs  3 
Total number of PIs measurable for programme 3 Total number of outputs achieved  0 

% of PIs measurable for programme 100% % of outputs achieved  0% 
Programme 5: Land Reform & Tenure 
 
Measurable objective: Ensure that sustainable benefits of economic growth accrue to previously disadvantaged communities, groups & individuals. 

1. 24,9 million hectares of productive white owned 
land provided to 60 000 individual black South 
Africans by 2014 (including PLAS & labour ten-
ants). 

656 000 ha Yes Target not achieved.  239,990 ha. The budget for land 
reform (households) was reprioritized through the adjust-
ment estimates by an amount of R505 million to accommo-
date the new rural development programme, which had no 
allocation. A further R208 million from the Agricultural Land 
Holding Account (PLAS) was set aside to provide security 
to the Land Bank for farmers who were facing reposses-
sion. R254,5 million was set aside during the budget ad-
justment process to recapitalize PLAS farms in distress. 
The R505 million set aside for rural development was 
reallocated within the department after the budget adjust-
ment process.  There was under-expenditure under grants 
(households) to the amount of R186 million. 

No Sub-programme 5.1: 
Redistribution 30% 
of white-owned 
agricultural land by 
2014 for sustainable 
agricultural devel-
opment. 

Productive white-owned agricultural land 
provided to black South Africans for sustain-
able agricultural development. 

2. Individuals/beneficiaries. 12 890 benefici-
aries 

Yes Target partially achieved 11 362 No 

Sub-programme 5.2: 
Provision of tenure 
security that creates 
socioeconomic 
opportunities for 
people living & 
working on farms & 
in communal areas 

Land rights confirmed. 3. Number of people whose rights have been 
confirmed. 

11 587 people’s 
land rights con-
firmed 

Yes Target not achieved.  438 people’s rights were confirmed. 
Target not achieved due to delays in resolving cases.  A 
large number of cases are pending finalisation in relation to 
cases resolved.  It must, however, mentioned that the 
reduction in no of people who seek departmental interven-
tion could also mean that the current intervention could be 
proving to be a deterrent against farmers who are inclined 
to violate the rights of farm dwellers. 

No 

Sub-programme 5.3: 
Provision of efficient 
State land manage-
ment that supports 

State land proactively Vested. 4. Number of parcels vested. 19 735 parcels 
vested 

Yes Target not achieved.  5 523 land parcels were pro-actively 
vested. The target was not achieved largely due to custo-
dian departments not submitting PSLDC recommendations 
to the department for the DG’s approval & general lack of 

No 
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Table 2.2: The achievement of outputs  

Programme/Sub-
programme Outputs per sub-programme PIs Target Actual performance and reasons for non-

performance/change of output(s) 

Output & 
target 

achieved 
PI  

measurable 
Yes/No  

Yes/No 
development capacity in custodian departments for the land administra-

tion function. 
Total number of PIs for programme 4 Total number of outputs  4 

Total number of PIs measurable for programme 4 Total number of outputs achieved  0 
% of PIs measurable for programme 100% % of outputs achieved  0% 

Programme 6: Spatial Planning & Information 
 
Measurable objective: Provision of legislative, institutional & technical skills support to regulate & guide settlement development, land use management & spatial information management. 

1. Draft Land Use Management Bill (LUMB) final-
ized. 

March 2010 Yes Target partially achieved.  A meeting was held with the 
Presidency with regard to the Regulatory Impact Assess-
ment (RIA) being undertaken on the LUMB.  The depart-
ment formed part of the redraft of the LUMB after the study 
by the Presidency on the LUMB was completed.  The 
department also participated in the Presidency RIA proc-
ess. 

No Policy interventions development to halt unde-
sirable settlement growth patterns 

2. Draft Planning Profession Act Regulations 
developed 

March 2010 Yes Target partially achieved.  Service provider appointed.  
Draft regulations are available. 

No 

Municipal Land Use Management Systems 
(LUMSs), Spatial Development Frameworks & 
GIS capacity Programmes developed & im-
plemented. 

3. Number of nodal areas identified for land use 
support 

Five by March 
2010 

Yes Target achieved.  Seven municipalities were supported. 
Rural municipalities were identified & draft terms of refer-
ence for SDFs for 25 rural municipalities developed & 
service provider appointed.  Support for the formulation of 
SDFs & LUMS provided in Limpopo & other provinces 
assisted with preparation of terms of reference. The evalua-
tion of SDF is still being undertaken in various provinces. 

Yes 

Provision of efficient 
land use & land 
administration ser-
vice 

South African spatial data Infrastructure estab-
lished & implemented. 

4. Spatial Metadata Discovery (SMD) portal 
established.  

SMD established 
by June 2010 

Yes Target achieved.  System up & running with two district 
municipalities connected. 

Yes 

Total number of PIs for programme 4 Total number of outputs  4 
Total number of PIs measurable for programme 4 Total number of outputs achieved  2 

% of PIs measurable for programme 100% % of outputs achieved  67% 
Programme 7: Deeds Registration 
 
Measurable objective: To provide a high-quality deeds registration system whereby secure titles are registered & speedy & accurate information is provided. 

1. No of days from lodgment until examination is 
completed (in accordance with legislation, 
practice & procedure). 

Not more than 
seven days 

Yes Target exceeded.  Six days were taken from lodgment until 
examination is completed to register title deeds. 

Yes 

2. No of days after registration until registered 
deeds/documents are delivered (in accordance 
with legislation, practice & procedure). 

Not more than 
eight days 

Yes Target not achieved.  Average of 25 days was taken after 
registration until deeds/ documents were delivered in ac-
cordance with legislation, practice & procedure. 

No 

3. Number of deeds registered. 320 000 Yes Target not achieved. No 
4. Monetary value of transfers (effect on the 

economy). 
R432,3 billion Yes Target not achieved. The total value of transfers was 

R257,8 billion. 
No 

Registered title deeds. 

5. Monetary value of bonds (effect on bond 
economy). 

R3, 037 trillion Yes Target partially achieved The total value for bonds was R2, 
559 trillion. 

No 

Provision of efficient 
land use & admini-
stration services 

A transformed cadastre. 6. A functional-cadastre by 2 015reducing turn-
around times. 

Draft electronic 
Deeds Registra-
tion Bill 

Yes Target partially achieved.  The draft Bill was completed & 
revised in line with comments received from the legal 
fraternity & Registrars. 

No 
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Table 2.2: The achievement of outputs  

Programme/Sub-
programme Outputs per sub-programme PIs Target 

PI  
measurable 

Yes/No 
Actual performance and reasons for non-

performance/change of output(s) 

Output & 
target 

achieved 
 

Yes/No 
  7. Enterprise Architectural Design implementation 

plan 
Enterprise Archi-
tectural Design 
implementation 
plan 

Yes Target not achieved.  Initial phase completed. No 

Total number of PIs for programme 7 Total number of outputs  7 
Total number of PIs measurable for programme 7 Total number of outputs achieved  1 

% of PIs measurable for programme 100% % of outputs achieved  0% 
 

Total number of PIs for the Department: 32 Total number of outputs 21 
Total number of PIs measurable for the Department: 32 Total number of outputs achieved 4 

% of PIs measurable for the Department: 100% % of priority outputs achieved 19% 
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Principle 3:  Development-Oriented Public Administration 
 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
principle 

 

Public Administration must be development-oriented. 

2. Performance 
Indicator  

The department is effectively involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote de-
velopment and reduce poverty. 

3. Standards  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. At least half the projects are of an acceptable standard in terms of beneficiary participation 1,00 
2. At least half the project plans are of an acceptable project management standard 1,00 
3. At least half of the projects are aligned with local development plans  1,00 
4. A system is in place for systematically institutionalising lessons learnt 1,00 
5. Success of projects 
 

 At least half the projects achieved success in at least 51% - 100% of their objectives. 
 At least half the projects achieved success in at least 31% - 50% of their objectives. 
 At least half the projects achieved success in at least 0% - 30% of their objectives. 

 

 
1,00 
0,50 
0,25 

Maximum possible score 5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. Participation 
of beneficiar-
ies in the de-
sign of the 
project 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted a sample of 6 projects for assessment against this standard 
– refer to Table 3.1 Column A at the end of this Chapter. 
 

The Department submitted 6 project proposals for projects in which the land was ac-
quired through the Land Redistribution for Agricultural Development (LRAD) grant.  
 

 Mahube-a-naka, Modimolle municipality fresh vegetable produce. 
 Mankopane project farming Mookgopong municipality, Poultry and livestock farming. 
 Hlalefo Framing project in Mogalakwena municipality Vegetable and Poultry Farm-

ing.     
 ZEGRO investment Project, Lephalale Municipality production of table grapes, and 

vegetables.  
 Ramuthudi Farming Enterprise Projects, Mogalakwena Municipality. Livestock and 

crop farming. 
 Lebogang Trust, Lephalale Municipality. Livestock production. 

 

The purpose of LRAD is to ensure that beneficiaries of land are able to make a living 
and even make profit through farming activities. LRAD is also meant to improve the qual-
ity of lives of previously disadvantaged individuals by decreasing poverty and unem-
ployment.  
 

After acquiring land, beneficiaries design and define their project type, and size.  The 
district municipality and the province assist beneficiaries in the development of business 
plans. Beneficiaries also make a contribution in kind or cash according to their abilities in 
order to make the project work. The project proposals are submitted though the Munici-
pality, District, province and finally to the National Department of Rural Development and 
Land Reform.  
 
 

Rating: 
 

Six poverty reduction projects initiated by the Department but implemented at a local 
level were reviewed, and all six projects assessed reflected an acceptable standard in 
terms of beneficiary participation in the design thereof.  The Department, therefore, 
complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  However, these pro-
jects are not directly implemented by the Department and therefore, not individually re-
flected in the Department’s AR.A score of 1, 00 out of 1, 00 is awarded. 
 

5. Good project 
management 
standards 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted a sample of 6 projects for assessment against this standard 
– refer to Table 3.1 Column B at the end of this chapter. 
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Measurable objectives 
 

All the six projects submitted clearly identify objectives. The common objectives to ac-
cess funds to buy farm though LRAD. Some objectives are divided in to short term, me-
dium and long term objectives.  
 

Time frames (targets) 
 

The time frame is not clearly stated since the projects are long term in nature. The na-
ture of the project is to acquire land through LRAD, and then develop land though agri-
cultural purposes such as poultry, crop and livestock farming. The project is expected to 
expand for sustainability purposes. In this case targets for projects could include the 
profit per year, workers employed per year and the average produce made per year.  
 
 

Clear governance arrangements 
 

Projects have clear governance arrangement with roles and responsibilities clarified 
among beneficiaries.  
 

LRAD requires beneficiaries to make contribution in cash or in kind which means that 
beneficiaries becomes part of the institutional arrangement of the project. Beneficiaries 
bring different skills to the project, for example, in the case of Mankopane Farming pro-
ject; there is a farm manager, poultry manager, Piggery manager, marketing manager, 
finance manager and five seasonal works. All managers are beneficiaries of the project.  
 

Detailed financial projections 
 

All the project proposals have detailed financial projections. The projections included the 
price for the land, infrastructure, and the training needs per responsibility. The total cost 
for the project is included in each business plan.  
 

Review meetings 
 

The monitoring and evaluation of projects is not clearly articulated in the project propos-
als.  Review meetings are supposed to be held with the district and the province to as-
sess the implementation of projects.  
 

Consideration of gender, the environment and HIV/AIDS. 
 

All the project submitted made considerations for gender and youth,  and natural re-
sources available such as grazing, and fallow land  
 
 

Rating:1,00 out of 1,00  
 

All the project plans submitted for assessment are of an acceptable project management 
standard, which complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. A 
score of 1.00 is awarded.  
 
 

Area for improvement: 
 

The Department should, before the end of the 2011/12 financial year, include a section 
in land reform project plans, which spells out the monitoring and evaluation arrange-
ments for the project. 
 

6. The alignment 
of pro-
grammes with 
local devel-
opment plans 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted a sample of 6 projects for assessment against this standard 
– refer to Table 3.1, Column C at the end of this chapter. 
 

All the projects were submitted through the municipality and the district. This means that 
although some of them are not part of the IDPs, they receive the recognition of the mu-
nicipality and the district. It is not clear in the project proposals whether the projects are 
part of the Municipality’s IDP or not. 
 

Rating: 
 

All the projects were submitted through the respective municipality and the district. A 
score of 1,00 is awarded. 
 

7. A system for 
recording les-
sons learnt is 
in place 

Overview: 
 

The Department undertook a review for LRAD in order to document lessons learnt dur-
ing LRAD implementation. The Department submitted the LRAD Implementation Manual 
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Version 2, October 2008. The manual gives a background and principles underlying 
LRAD since its inception in 2001.  The Department also commissioned an independent 
study titled “Review of LRAD project performance (2001-2006)”, completed in 2008.   
 
 

Rating: 
 

Lessons learnt are disseminated through an implementation manual.  A score of 1,00 
out of 1,00 is awarded. 
 

8. Success of 
the projects 

Overview: 
 

The success of each of the 6 sampled projects in achieving their objectives is highlighted 
below– refer to Table 3.2 and the end of this chapter for more detail: 
 

It is difficult to measure the success of each project because implementation/ progress 
reports were not submitted together with the project plans. The project plans have objec-
tives to be achieved but the Department did not submit a report indicating whether the 
project is non-operational, in decline, in the balance or successful, nor any data on the 
success of projects. 
 

Rating: 0, 00 out of 1, 00 
 

The success of the projects could not be determined because project implementation 
reports were not provided.  Therefore, a score of 0,00 out of 1,00 is awarded.  
 

Area for improvement: 
 

The Department should, before the end of the 2011/12 financial year, put procedures 
and systems in place that will collect data and produce reports on the success indicators 
of land reform projects. 
 

Rating 
 

9. Score  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. At least half the projects are of acceptable standard in terms of beneficiary participation 1,00  
2. At least half the project plans are of an acceptable project management standard 1,00  
3. At least half of the projects are aligned with local development plans 1,00  
4. A system is in place for systematically institutionalising lessons learnt 1,00 
5. Success of projects 0,00 

Total score 4,00 
 
 

Sources 
 

10. References Sources consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Documents: 
 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform Ba-
hube-a-Naka- supply of fresh produce, Pretoria 2009. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform Le-
bogang Trust –Livestock production. Pretoria. 2009. 

 

3. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Mankopane Farming Project - Poultry and Livestock Farming. Pretoria. 2009. 

 

4. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform Mo-
releba Project – vegetable production. Pretoria 2009. 

 

5. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform Ra-
muthudi Farming Enterprise Project- Livestock and Crop farming. Pretoria. 2009. 

 

6. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
ZEGRO investment project – Grapes and Vegetable produce. Pretoria 2009. 

 

11. Useful 
sources to 
consult on 
this principle 

1. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Evaluation of 
the Implementation of the Batho Pele Principle of Consultation. October 2007. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Evaluation of 
Government’s Poverty Reduction Programme. October 2007. 
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Table 3.1 – Beneficiary participation, quality of project plan quality and linkage with LDPs 
 

 

A B C 
BENEFICIARY PARTICIPATION QUALITY OF PROJECT PLAN LOCAL PLANS 

Do beneficiaries participate in planning and are 
they properly involved in implementation? 

Is a standardized format used showing all relevant details including objec-
tives, clear governance arrangements and detailed financial projections and 

also considering issues such as gender, the environment and HIV/AIDS? 
Is local development plans considered? 

PROJECTNAME 

YES or NO and comment Rate each plan as Acceptable/Not acceptable and comment State YES or NO 
 and describe how 

1. Bahube-a-Naka- supply of fresh produce Yes  Acceptable Yes  
2. ZEGRO investment project – Grapes and Vegetable produce Yes  Acceptable Yes  
3. Lebogang Trust –Livestock production Yes Acceptable Yes  
4. Mankopane Farming Project - Poultry and Livestock Farming  Yes Acceptable Yes  
5. Moreleba Project – vegetable production Yes Acceptable Yes  
6. Ramuthudi  Farming Enterprise Project- Livestock and Crop 

farming 
Yes Acceptable Yes  

 
 

Table 3.2 – Performance of the developmental project against planned objectives 
 

 

PROJECT NAME PROJECT OBJECTIVES TOTAL BUDGET 
OBJECTIVES ACHIEVED 
100% - 51% ACHIEVED/ 

50% - 31 ACHIEVED/  
0% - 30% ACHIEVED 

COMMENTS/REASONS 
FOR PERFORMANCE 

1. Bahube-a-Naka- supply of fresh 
produce  

Short term objectives  
 Merge the activities of a strong wholesale/retail business entity within a black interest group and a strategic partner 

involved in logistics. 
 Capacitate and train management and staff to enable them to effectively play their respective roles. 

Medium to long term objectives  
 Develop the export market and create the necessary logistics and facilities. 
 Identify opportunities for SMMEs in the industry such as transportation, local distribution, finance and packaging.  

R3 676 702.10 Progress report not submitted   

2. ZEGRO investment project – 
Grapes and Vegetable produce  

Short term objectives  
 Accessing land and enterprise ownership, control skilled occupation and management of existing and new agricul-

tural enterprises. 
 Accessing investment in infrastructure to ensure viability in the farming activities of Zegro Investment project. 

Medium to long term objectives 
 To farm profitably in order to expand the enterprises of Zegro Investment project. 
 Employ additional permanent and seasonal workers thereby contributing to poverty alleviation.  
 Contribute to the economic growth of the district of Lephalale Municipality and Waterberg District at Large. 

R 8 961 557.00 Progress report not provided  

3. Lebogang Trust –Livestock 
production  

Short term objectives 
 Accessing land and enterprise ownership, control, skilled occupation and management of existing and new agricul-

tural enterprises. 
 Accessing investment in infrastructure to ensure viability in the farming activities of Lebogang farming Project.  

Medium to Long term objectives 
 To farm profitably in order to expand the operations of the project. 
 Use the farms to its full potential by developing the farm into first class feed lot. 
 Employ additional two permanent workers thereby contributing to poverty alleviation within the surrounding communi-

ties. 

R5 289 660.00 Progress report not provided  
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PROJECT NAME PROJECT OBJECTIVES TOTAL BUDGET 
OBJECTIVES ACHIEVED 
100% - 51% ACHIEVED/ 

50% - 31 ACHIEVED/  
0% - 30% ACHIEVED 

COMMENTS/REASONS 
FOR PERFORMANCE 

 Contribute to the economic growth of the district of Waterberg and province at large 
4. Mankopane Farming Project - 

Poultry and Livestock Farming  
 

Short term objectives 
 To acquire funds to buy farm through LRAD. 
 To continue to farm efficiently and effectively for productive purposes. 

Medium term objectives 
 To farm profitably and increase household income. 
 Contribute to poverty alleviation.  
 Employ 5 Permanent workers by first year. 

Long term  objectives 
 To contribute to the economic growth of Mookgopong municipality. 

R2 754 849.81 Progress report not provided   

5. Moreleba Project – vegetable 
production  

Short term objectives  
 Accessing land ownership for agricultural development. 
 Accessing investment in infrastructure to ensure viability in the farming activities. 

Medium to long term objectives 
 To farm profitably in order to expand the operation of farm business by introducing vegetables. 
 Use the farm to its full potential in order to maximise farm profit from various enterprises produced on the farm. 
 Create employment thereby contributing to poverty alleviation within the surrounding communities. 
 Contribute to the economic growth of the district of Elias Motswaledi District Municipality. 

R2 442 079.00 Progress report not provided  

6. Ramuthudi  Farming Enterprise 
Project- Livestock and Crop 
farming  

Objectives  
 To develop sustainable and responsibility farming practices. 
 To expand opportunities for aspirant youth. 
 Assist in poverty eradication. 
 Creating jobs and developing skills. 
 Stimulate economic growth through agriculture. 

R 5 465 697.00 Progress report not provided  
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Principle 4:  Impartiality and Fairness  
 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
principle 

 

Services must be provided impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias. 

2. Performance 
indicator 

There is evidence that the Department follows the prescribed procedures of the PAJA 
when making administrative decisions. 

3. Standards  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
A. Duly authorised decisions  
 

A.1  Decisions in terms of legislation/policy 
 

 All the decisions were taken in terms of the appropriate legislation/policy. 
OR 

 Fifty percent and more of the decisions were taken in terms of the appropriate legisla-
tion/policy. 

OR 
 Less than fifty percent of the decisions were taken in terms of the appropriate legislation/policy. 

 
A.2  Decisions in terms of delegations 
 

 All the decisions were taken by duly authorised officials in terms of the departmental delega-
tions of authority. 

OR 
 Fifty percent and more of the decisions were taken by duly authorised officials in terms of the 

departmental delegations of authority. 
OR 

 Less than fifty percent of the decisions were taken by duly authorised officials in terms of the 
departmental delegations of authority. 

 
 
 
 
 

1,50 
 
 

0,75 
 
 

0,00 
 
 
 
 

1,50 
 
 

0,75 
 
 

0,00 

B. The decisions are just and fair 
 

 100% of the decisions were just and fair. 
OR 

 50% to 99% of the decisions were just and fair. 
OR 

 25% to 49% of the decisions were just and fair. 
OR 

 0% to 24% of the decisions were just and fair. 

 
 

1,00 
 

0,50 
 

0,25 
 

0,00 
C. Communicating administrative decisions 
 

 Prior notice to administrative action is given in all cases. 
 Opportunities are provided in all the cases reviewed to make representations before action is 

taken. 
 In 100% of the cases administrative decisions that adversely affect anyone’s rights are clearly 

communicated with adequate notice of the right to appeal or review or request reasons for de-
cisions is given. 

 Requests for the reasons for decisions are properly answered in at least one third of the cases 
reviewed. 

 
 

0,25 
0,25 

 
0,25 

 
 

0,25 
 

Maximum possible score 5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. Duly authorised 
decisions 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted a sample of 8documents to determine whether decisions 
were taken in accordance with prescribed legislation, polices and/or delegated author-
ity – refer to Table 4.1 at the end of this chapter for the list of these decisions. 
 

Decisions in terms of legislation/policies 
 

In all (or 100%) of the 8cases assessed, the provisions of the legislation/policy in 
terms of which the decisions were taken, are clearly stated.  The following is a sum-
mary of the applicable legislation indicated in the relevant decisions: 
 

The two land restitution claims were approved in terms of section 42D of the Restitu-
tion of Land Rights Act, 1994 as amended. The remaining redistribution cases, are 
request for the release of funds in terms of section 10 (1) (b) (ii) and (iv) of the Provi-
sion of Land and Assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) for the purposes of acquiring 
land for beneficiaries.  
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Decisions in terms of delegations 
 

It was found that the necessary Departmental Delegations of Authority (DDA) exist for 
all (or 100%) of the 8 cases assessed, and that the decisions on each of these cases 
were taken by duly authorised officials in line with the level of delegated powers.   
 
 

Rating: 3.00 out of 3.00 
 

The Department in all (or 100%) of the 8 sampled cases assessed fully considers the 
implications of all decisions  made in terms of relevant legislation and policies to en-
sure compliance with the PAJA in decision-making.  Clear delegations of authority 
exist in the Department and all of the sampled decisions assessed were taken in 
terms of appropriate legislation and by duly authorised officials.  The Department, 
therefore, complies with this standard set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System for 
a score of 3  out of 3,00. 
 

5. The decisions 
are just and fair  

Overview: 
 

Documentation in each of the following 8sampled cases submitted for assessment 
was analysed to establish whether the decisions made were fair and just in terms of 
the PAJA– refer to Table 4.2 at the end of this chapter for the list of these documents: 
 

Based on the assessment of the content of these documents and evidence submitted, 
it was found that all (or 100%) out of the 8 sampled decisions were just and fair.   
 
 

Rating: 1.00 out of 1.00  
 

The documentation submitted as evidence by the Department showed that the deci-
sions taken were just and fair, because the decision-maker was duly empowered to 
make the decision, considered representations of persons affected by the decision 
and gave reasons for the decision.  The Department complies with this standard of 
the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. A score of 1,00 out of 1,00 is awarded.  
 

6. Communicating 
administrative 
decisions 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted a sample of nine documents for assessment against this 
standard – refer to Table 4.2 at the end of this chapter for a list of these decisions. 
 

Prior notice of proposed administrative action 
 

In terms of the redistribution of land, an offer to purchase land is submitted in the form 
of a letter to the owner of the land. The letter states the intention of the State to pur-
chase the land and the price. The letter further indicates that in the event that feasibil-
ity studies become negative, the department will not proceed with the purchase. The 
letter serves as a prior notice before the actual decision to purchase land is taken.  
 

Opportunities to make representations  
 

The notice does not give the owner of the farm the opportunity to make any represen-
tation or the letter does not give him the advice to do so. The letter does not clarify 
that in case of dissatisfaction the owner of the land has the right to appeal.  
 

Reasons on request 
 

The offer to purchase letter does not alert the owner of the land that he has the right 
to request reasons for the decision and that reasons will be given within 90 days.  
 
 

Rating:0,50 out of 1.00  
 

Although prior notice of administrative actions is given by means of a letter, the letter 
does not clearly state the opportunity to make representations, the right to appeal or 
review or the right to request reasons for decisions.  The Department does not fully 
comply with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. A score of 0.50 out 
of 1.00 is awarded.  
 
 

Area for improvement: 
 

The Department should, with immediate effect, adhere to the requirements of the 
PAJA with regard to the communication of administrative decisions, namely that the 
communication should indicate the opportunity to make representations, the right to 
appeal or review or the right to request reasons for decisions. 
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Rating 
 

7. Score  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
A. Duly authorised decisions 
 

A.1  Decisions in terms of legislation/policy 
 

 All the decisions were taken in terms of the appropriate legislation/ policy. 
 

A.2  Decisions in terms of delegations 
 

 All the decisions were taken by duly authorised officials in terms of the departmental delega-
tions of authority. 

 
 
 
 

1,50 
 
 
 

1,50 

B. The decisions are just and fair 
 

 100% of the decisions were just and fair. 

 
 

1,00 

C. Communicating administrative decisions 
 

 Prior notice to administrative action is given in all cases. 
 Opportunities are provided in all the cases reviewed to make representations before action is 

taken. 
 In 100% of the cases administrative decisions that adversely affect anyone’s rights are clearly 

communicated with adequate notice of the right to appeal or review or request reasons for deci-
sions is given. 

 Requests for the reasons for decisions are properly answered in at least one third of the cases 
reviewed. 

 

 
0,25 
0,00 

 
0,00 

 
 

0,00 
 

Total score 4,25 
 
 

Sources 
 

8. References Sources consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Documents: 
 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Delegation; Restitution of Land Rights Act, 1994 (Act 22 of 1994). 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Delegations Provision of Land and Assistance Act, 1993(Act No. 126 of 1993). 

 

3. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Granting of subsidies inn terms of section  10(1)(c)(i) and (iv) of the provision of 
land and assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) and  in terms of delegations signed 
by the Minister on the 28th April 2001, for the acquisition of portion 52 of the farm 
Gemspost 288 IQ , portion 53 of the farm Gemspost 288 IQ , portion 16 of the 
farm Gemspost 288  IQ ,portion 34 of the farm Gemspost 288 IQ and portion 23 
of the farm Gemsbokfoentein 290 IQ in Westonaria Local Municipality, Gauteng 
Province. 

 

4. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Memorandum, Good Administrative Conduct. 28/04/2003. 

 

5. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Memorandum, Implementation of Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 3 of 
2000. 

 

6. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Request for the Ministerial approval of proposed section 42D in terms of the Res-
titution of Land Rights Act No. 22 of 1994 as amended: Land Claim on the land 
now  known as Breidbach  Township , King Williams Town District , Province of 
the Eastern Cape. 

 

7. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Request for approval in terms of section 10(1) (b) (iii), of Land Reform: The provi-
sion of land and assistance by way of an advance, subsidy, grant or otherwise to 
any person for the acquisition, maintenance, planning, development or improve-
ment of property; for portion 14 of the farm Volgelstruitfontein 263IQ for Mulondo 
Agricultural Farming project situated in the district of Mogale City in the Krugers-
dorp area. 

 

8. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 10(1) (b) (i) 
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(ii) and (iv) of the provision of land and assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) for 
the purpose of acquiring portion 24 of the farm Dewargendrift 417 JR, measuring 
21.415hectares, situated in Metsweding District, Gauteng Province, Through the 
proactive Land Acquisition strategy (PLAS). 

 

9. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 10(1) (b) (i) 
(ii) and (iv) of the provision of land and assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) for 
the purpose of acquiring portion189 of the farm Honingnestkrans 269 JR, measur-
ing 21, 7495 hectares, situated in city of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality Gau-
teng Province, through the Proactive Land Acquisition Strategy (PLAS). 

 

10. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 10(1) (b) (i) 
(ii) and (iv) of the provision of land and assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) for 
the purpose of acquiring portion 91 of the farm Bultfontein 107JR, measuring 8, 
5653 hectares, situated in City of Tshwane Metropolitan, Gauteng Province, 
though the Proactive Land Acquisition Strategy (PLAS). 

 

11. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Submission in terms of section 42D read with section 14 (3) of the Restitution of 
Land Rights Act  1994  (Act no . 22 of 1994) as amended for finalising the matter 
of the Smith Family Land Claim concerning erves11 and 593 in Dordrecht, 
EMalahleni Local Municipality , Chris Hani  District , Eastern Cape Province. 

 

12. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Submission in terms of section 42D read with section 14 (3) of the Restitution of 
Land Rights Act  1994  (Act no . 22 of 1994) as amended for finalising the matter 
of the Smith Family Land Claim concerning erves11 and 593 in Dordrecht, 
EMalahleni Local Municipality , Chris Hani  District , Eastern Cape Province. 

 

13. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Submission in terms of section 42D read with section 14(3) of the Restitution of 
Land Rights Act, 1994 (Act no22 of 1994) as amended in the matter of Johannes 
family concerning ERF 1375&281, Adelaide, in Inxuba municipality District of 
Amathole, Eastern Cape Province. 

 

9. Useful sources 
to consult on 
this principle 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Justice and Constitutional Development. 
Regulations on Fair Administrative Procedures. 2002. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Promotion of 
Administrative Justice Act, (Act 3 of 2000). 

 
3. Republic of South Africa. Department of Justice and Constitutional Development. 

The promotion of Administrative Justice Act: Administrators’ Guide. 
 
 

Table 4.1 – Duly authorised decisions 
 

 

A B C 

Administrative decisions taken in this department 
Decision is in accor-

dance with prescribed 
legislation/policy 

(Yes/No) 

Decision-maker is 
authorised to make 

the decision 
(Yes/No) 

1. Request for the Ministerial approval of proposed section 42Din terms of the Restitution of Land Rights Act 
No. 22 of 1994 as amended: Land Claim on the land  now known as Breidbach  Township , King Williams 
Town District , Province of the Eastern Cape   

Yes Yes 

2. Submission in terms of section 42D read with section 14(3) of the Restitution of Land Rights Act , 1994  (Act 
no22 of 1994) as amended in the matter of Johannes family concerning ERF 1375&281, Adelaide , in 
Inxuba municipality District of Amathole , Eastern Cape Province  

Yes Yes 

3. Request for approval in terms of section 10(1) (b) (iii), of the Provision of Land and Assistance Act by way of 
an advance, subsidy, grant or otherwise to any person for the acquisition, maintenance, planning, develop-
ment or improvement of property; for portion 14 of the farm Volgelstruitfontein 263IQ for Mulondo Agricul-
tural Farming project situated in the district of Mogale City in the Krugersdorp area.  

Yes Yes 

4. Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 10(1) (b) (i) (ii) and (iv) of the Provision 
of Land and Assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) for the purpose of acquiring portion 24 of the farm Dewar-
gendrift 417 JR, measuring 21.415hectares, situated in Metsweding District, Gauteng Province, Through the 
proactive Land Acquisition strategy (PLAS). 

Yes Yes 

5. Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 10(1)(b)(i)(ii) and (iv) of the Provision of 
Land and Assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) for the purpose of acquiring portion189 of the farm Honing-
nestkrans 269 JR, measuring 21,7495 hectares, situated in city of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality Gau-

Yes Yes 



PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION       MAIN REPORT: PRINCIPLE 4 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Public Service Monitoring and Evaluation System: 2010/11 Evaluation Cycle      42 
M&E Report on the National Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 

A B C 

Administrative decisions taken in this department 
Decision is in accor-

dance with prescribed 
legislation/policy 

(Yes/No) 

Decision-maker is 
authorised to make 

the decision 
(Yes/No) 

teng Province, through the Proactive Land Acquisition Strategy (PLAS) 
6. Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 10(1)(b)(i)(ii) and (iv) of the Provision of 

Land and Assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) for the purpose of acquiring portion 91  of the farm Bultfon-
tein 107JR, measuring 8,5653 hectares, situated in City of Tshwane, Gauteng  Province, though the Proac-
tive Land Acquisition Strategy (PLAS) 

Yes Yes 

7. Granting of subsidies inn terms of section 10(1) (c) (i) and (iv) of the Provision of Land and Assistance Act 
(Act No 126 of 1993) and in terms of delegations signed by the Minister on the 28th April 2001, for the acqui-
sition of portion 52 of the farm Gemspost 288 IQ, portion 16 of the farm Gemspost 288 IQ, portion 34 of the 
farm Gemspost 288 IQ and portion 23 of the farm Gemsbokfoentein 290 IQ in Westonaria Local Municipal-
ity, Gauteng Province.  

Yes Yes 

8. Submission in terms of section 42D read with section 14 (3) of the Restitution of Land Rights Act  1994  (Act 
no . 22 of 1994) as amended for finalising the matter of the Smith Family Land Claim concerning erves11 
and 593 in Dordrecht, Emalahleni Local Municipality , Chris Hani  District , Eastern Cape Province .  

Yes Yes 

 
 

Table 4.2 – Communicating administrative decisions 
 

 

A B C D E 

Administrative decisions taken in this department Prior Notice is 
given (Yes/No) 

Opportunities for 
representation 

(Yes/No) 

Decisions that adversely 
affect people are com-

municated 
(Yes/No) 

Reasons 
provided on 

request 
(Yes/No) 

1. Request for the Ministerial approval of proposed section 42Din terms of 
the Restitution of Land Rights Act No. 22 of 1994 as amended: Land 
Claim on the land  now known as Breidbach  Township , King Williams 
Town District , Province of the Eastern Cape   

Yes No  Yes No   

2. Submission in terms of section 42D read with section 14(3) of the Resti-
tution of Land Rights Act , 1994  (Act no22 of 1994) as amended in the 
matter of Johannes family concerning ERF 1375&281, Adelaide , in 
Inxuba municipality District of Amathole , Eastern Cape Province 

Yes No  Yes No  

3. Request for approval in terms of section 10(1) (b) (iii), of Land Reform: 
The provision of land and assistance by way of an advance, subsidy, 
grant or otherwise to any person for the acquisition, maintenance, plan-
ning, development or improvement of property; for portion 14 of the farm 
Volgelstruitfontein 263IQ for Mulondo Agricultural Farming project situ-
ated in the district of Mogale City in the Krugersdorp area. 

Yes No  Yes No  

4. Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 
10(1) (b) (i) (ii) and (iv) of the provision of land and assistance Act (Act 
No 126 of 1993) for the purpose of acquiring portion 24 of the farm De-
wargendrift 417 JR, measuring 21.415hectares, situated in Metsweding 
District, Gauteng Province, Through the proactive Land Acquisition 
strategy (PLAS). 

Yes No  Yes No   

5. Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 
10(1)(b)(i)(ii) and (iv) of the provision of land and assistance Act (Act No 
126 of 1993) for the purpose of acquiring portion189 of the farm Hon-
ingnestkrans 269 JR, measuring 21,7495 hectares, situated in city of 
Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality Gauteng Province, through the Pro-
active Land Acquisition Strategy (PLAS) 

Yes No  Yes No  

6. Request for the approval for the release of funds in terms of section 
10(1)(b)(i)(ii) and (iv) of the provision of land and assistance Act (Act No 
126 of 1993) for the purpose of acquiring portion 91  of the farm Bultfon-
tein 107JR, measuring 8,5653 hectares, situated in City of Tshwane  
Metropolitan , Gauteng  Province, though the Proactive Land Acquisition 
Strategy (PLAS) 

Yes No  Yes No  

7. Granting of subsidies inn terms of section  10(1)(c)(i) and (iv) of the 
provision of land and assistance Act (Act No 126 of 1993) and  in terms 
of delegations signed by the Minister on the 28th April 2001, for the ac-
quisition of portion 52 of the farm Gemspost 288 IQ , portion 53 of the 
farm Gemspost 288 IQ , portion 16 of the farm Gemspost 288  IQ 
,portion 34 of the farm Gemspost 288 IQ and portion 23 of the farm 
Gemsbokfoentein 290 IQ in Westonaria Local Municipality, Gauteng 
Province. 

Yes No  Yes No  

8. Submission in terms of section 42D read with section 14 (3) of the 
Restitution of Land Rights Act  1994  (Act no . 22 of 1994) as amended 
for finalising the matter of the Smith Family Land Claim concerning 
erves11 and 593 in Dordrecht, Emalahleni Local Municipality , Chris 
Hani  District , Eastern Cape Province . 

Yes No  Yes No  
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Principle 5:  Public Participation in Policy-making 
 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
principle 

 

People’s needs must be responded to and the public must be encouraged to participate 
in policy-making. 

2. Performance 
indicator 

 

The Department facilitates public participation in policy-making. 

3. Standards   

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. An approved policy/ guideline on public participation in policy-making is in place. 1,00 
2. The existence of a system for soliciting participation 
 

 A system is in place and used for generating inputs in more than half the cases. 
OR 

 A system is in place, but not always used. 

 

 
2,00 

 

1,00 
 

3. The extent to which public comments are formally considered 
 

 In at least half the cases contributions are acknowledged and considered. 
OR 

 In at least half the cases contributions are acknowledged, but not considered.  

 

 
2,00 

 

1,00 
 

Maximum possible score 5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. The existence 
of a policy/ 
guidelines 

Overview: 
 

The existence of a policy/guideline 
 

The Department does have a guideline for engaging stakeholders in their policy proc-
esses. The Guideline was published on 14 November 2009.  The Directorate Policy Re-
search and Legislation Development in the Branch: Support Services is responsible for 
policy co-ordination, the facilitation of horizontal policy making processes with external 
stakeholders and ensuring internal policy alignment between the Branches and Chief 
Directorates within the department.  
 

Staff awareness of policy and guideline 
 

The Department ensures that all staff members participate in policy engagements. Draft 
policies are circulated within the DRDLR staff to stimulate engagements within the De-
partment, the Provincial Land Reform Offices and the Commission on Restitution of 
Land Rights. The Directorate: Policy Research and Legislation ensures that internal pol-
icy alignment between Branches and Chief-Directorate takes place by ensuring that all 
staff participates in the engagements.  
 

The availability of policy and guideline 
 

Copies of the guidelines for engaging stakeholders in the DRDLR policy process are 
available in the Department through the Directorate Policy Research and Legislation 
Development in the Branch: Support Services.   The Directorate is also responsible for 
department wide –policy  co-ordination and support function 
 

The quality and scope of policy and guideline 
The guidelines for engaging stakeholders in the DRDLR policy processes was devel-
oped for the following purposes: 
 

 To improve the engagements of Branches , PRLOs and the Commission in the pol-
icy making and review processes; 

 The create stronger horizontal linkages and transversal policy making with key part-
ner departments; 

 To improve public participation and stakeholder engagement; and  
 To ensure the comprehensive management, communication and achieving of poli-

cies.  
 

The guideline document also outlines the procedure for consulting with internal stake-
holders, sister departments, and other stakeholders and members of the public.  
 

The guideline also outlines different clusters of stakeholders namely, citizens, civil soci-
ety institutions, tertiary institutions, private sector , governance institutions and the legis-
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lature  
 

Methods of information dissemination  
 

The Department engages in a number of methods for stakeholders to engage in policy 
dialogue and review. These are formal submission, focus groups, policy dialogue 
/Izimbizo, online discussion, panel of experts, summit /mini-summits and the farm equity 
schemes workshops.  
 
 

Rating: 1, 00 out of 1, 00 
 

The Department does not have a policy for public participation but utilises a formal 
guidelines for stakeholder engagement in the DRDLR policy making processes.  A full 
score of 1.00 is warded. 
 

5. The existence 
of a system 
for soliciting 
participation 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted 2 documents for assessment against this standard – refer to 
Table 5.1 at the end of this chapter for the list of these documents. 
 

The Department submitted the report on “Taking the Land Summit recommendations 
forward: A Framework”.  In order to solicit public participation the Department engaged 
with the business sector, other government departments, social movements and organ-
ised commercial agricultural associations in formulating the content of the summit.  A 
summary of the main areas of resolutions is outlined in the reports as well as the way 
forward in terms of prioritisation of intervention issues.  A list of tasks to ensure imple-
mentation of recommendations and priority interventions with time frames and the lead 
stakeholders are outlined in the document.  
 

Another report submitted by the Department is “Report and Recommendations of the 
Panel of Experts on the development of policy regarding land ownership by foreigners in 
South Africa”.  The method for soliciting information in this case was a panel of experts 
on the development of policy regarding land ownership by foreigners in the country.  The 
panel was given a brief to investigate, consider and make recommendations regarding 
the nature, extent, trends and impact of acquisition, use and investment in land in South 
Africa by foreigners.  
 

Farm equity scheme workshops are also used by the Department for the participation of 
farmers in policy making.  Due to the number of farmers and farm workers in the country 
a Council of Stakeholders was established to represent different stakeholders and to 
ensure proper participation.  This council of stakeholders represents different stake-
holders and they attend meetings and provide feedback to the beneficiaries/stakeholders 
they represent.  
 

The provincial offices of the Department further hold mini-provincial summits to deal with 
province specific issues affecting farmers and farm workers.  
 
 

Rating: 2,00 out of 2,00 
 

A system for procuring and managing public contributions is in place and fully opera-
tional.  This system includes, for example, generating inputs conducted in the form of 
summits/mini-summits, panel of experts, workshops and other stakeholder consultations. 
A full score of 2,00 out of 2,00 is awarded.  

6. The extent to 
which public 
comments are 
formally con-
sidered 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted 2 documents for assessment against this standard – refer to 
Table 5.1 at the end of this chapter for the list of these documents. 
 

Result of the participation processes 
 

The Department submitted two reports as results of the participation processes, namely, 
“Taking the Land Summit recommendations forward: A Framework” and “Report and 
Recommendation by the Panel of Experts on the development of policy regarding land 
ownership by foreigners in South Africa”.  
 

Acceptance of recommendations  
 

The reports were accepted and debated by both the stakeholders and the Department 
resulting in a list of actionable recommendations with time frames for the implementation 
of priority interventions.  
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Rating: 2, 00 out of 2, 00 
 

The Department considers and acknowledges contributions obtained during their consul-
tation processes, which complies with this standard set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E 
System. A full score of 2, 00 is awarded.  
 

Rating 
 

7. Score  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. An approved policy/guideline on public participation in policy-making is in place. 1,00 
2. The existence of a system for soliciting participation 
 

 A system is in place and used for generating inputs in more than half the cases. 

 

 
2,00 

3. The extent to which public comments are formally considered 
 

 In at least half the cases contributions are acknowledged and considered. 

 

 
2,00 

Total score 5,00 
 
 

Sources 
 

8. References Sources consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Documents: 
 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. A 
policy process for the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Discus-
sion Document version 1- 31st July 2009. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Guidelines for engaging stakeholders in the DRDLR policy process. Discussion 
document version 1.0 14 November 2009. 

 

3. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Re-
port and recommendations by the panel of experts on the development of policy re-
garding Land Ownership by foreigners in South Africa. Pretoria, August 2007. 

 

4. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Tak-
ing the Land Summit Recommendations Forward: A Framework. 2006. 

 
 

Interviews: 
 

1. Dr. S. Govender: Director: Policy and Legislation Republic of South Africa. Depart-
ment of Rural Development and Land Reform. Pretoria, 23 November 2010.  

 

9. Useful 
sources to 
consult on 
this principle 

1. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Evaluation of 
the Implementation of the Batho Pele Principle of Consultation. October 2007. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa: Public Service Commission. Step-By-Step Guide to Hold-
ing Citizens’ Forums. Pretoria. September 2005. 

 
 
 

Table 5.1 – System for soliciting participation 
 

 

A B C 

Policy name / area Inputs solicited 
(Yes/No) 

Inputs responded to 
and incorporated 

(Yes/No) 
1. Taking the Land Summit recommendations forward: A Framework.  Yes  Yes  
2. Report and Recommendations by the Panel of Experts on the development of policy regarding land ownership 

by foreigners in South Africa. 
Yes  Yes  
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Principle 6:  Accountability 
 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
principle 

 

Public administration must be accountable. 

2. Performance 
indicator 

1. Adequate internal financial controls and performance management are exerted 
over all departmental programmes. 

 

2. Fraud prevention plans, based on thorough risk assessments, are in place and are 
implemented. 

3. Standards  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. The adequacy of internal financial controls 
 

 The Auditor-General issued an unqualified audit opinion and concluded that the internal financial 
control measures are adequate in all respects with no areas flagged as needing attention. 

OR 
 The Auditor-General concluded that the internal financial control measures are mostly adequate 

with certain important areas flagged as needing attention. 

OR 
 The Auditor-General issued a qualified/an adverse/a disclaimer of opinion, concluded that the 

internal financial control measures are inadequate and flagged important areas as needing atten-
tion. 

 
 

1,00 
 
 
 

0,50 
 

 
0,00 

2. The existence of an operational performance management system. 1,00 
3. A thorough risk assessment has been done 
 

 All the Department’s activities/applications have been addressed. 
 The seriousness of each risk has been assessed. 
 The risks have been prioritised. 
 Internal control measures have been devised. 

 
 

0,25 
0,25 
0,25 
0,25 

4. The existence of a fraud prevention plan 
 

 A comprehensive and appropriate fraud prevention plan is in place 
 The fraud prevention plan is based on a thorough risk assessment. 

 
 

0,50 
0,50 

5. The implementation of the fraud prevention plan 
 

 Sufficient staff members to investigate cases of fraud are in place. 
 

AND 
 

 All strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented 
OR 

 At least 80% - 100% of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented. 
OR 

 At least 50% - 79% of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented. 
OR 

 Less than 50% of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented. 

 
 

0,25 
 
 

0,75 
 

0,50 
 
 

0,25 
 

0,00 
 

Maximum possible score 5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. The adequacy 
of internal fi-
nancial con-
trols 

Overview: 
 

Audit of financial statements 
 

Based on the appropriateness of accounting policies used and overall presentation of 
financial statements the A-G issued a qualified audit opinion. The following results 
supported the A-G’s opinion: 
 

Emphasis of matter 
 

The Auditor-General emphasised the following issues:  
 

The Department recorded the material losses of R53,301 million as a results of fraudu-
lent activities identified through forensic investigations conducted in three land reform 
projects in KZN. 
 

Claims instituted against the department amount to R566,176 million, subject to the 
outcome of legal proceedings with no outcomes to show for the amount spent.  
 

The Department incurred irregular expenditure of R4,177 million as results of non-
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compliance with supply chain management procedures and overpayment of restitution 
commitments.  
 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R3,324 million was incurred as a result of interest 
paid to suppliers and instances where the normal procurement processes were not fol-
lowed.  
 

An amount of R420 million is included as part of a commitment of R8,364 as a result of 
projects older than three years on which no payments were made due to changes in 
restitution settlement options, community disputes, tribal disputes, family disputes or 
untraceable claimants.  
 
 

Rating: 0,00 out of 1,00 
 

The Auditor-General expressed a qualified audit opinion on the financial performance 
of the Department.  The A-G further raised concerns over internal controls such mate-
rial losses through criminal conduct, significant uncertainties, irregular expenditure, 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure, and funds committed to project older than three 
years on which payment were not made in time.  This raises a concern about the De-
partment’s ability to exercise accountability over financial resources.  The Department, 
therefore, does not comply with this standards set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E Sys-
tem. A score of 0,00 out of 1,00 is awarded. 
 

5. The existence 
of an opera-
tional per-
formance 
management 
(M&E) system 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted the 2009/10 quarterly reports and a 16 July QRM report for 
assessment.  
 

The Directorate Monitoring and Evaluation monitors and evaluates progress on all de-
partmental programmes through quarterly organisational performance reports.  The 
purpose of the reports is to give an overview of what transpired in each an every quar-
ter of the financial year.  The reporting format takes the form of progress per pro-
gramme, Branch, output, performance indicator, target per quarter, M&E comments, 
performance score, source of document, and location of evidence/source.  
 

A summary of the achievement in terms of scores is indicated. This summarises the 
total number of targets, target exceeded, targets fully achieved, targets partially 
achieved, and targets not achieved.  
 
 

Rating:1,00 out of 1,00 
 

The Department has a formal performance management (M&E) system for all depart-
mental programmes in operation.  It tracks performance by means of quarterly report-
ing, and scores are allocated in terms of the targets achieved, exceeded, partially 
achieved and not achieved. The Department, therefore, complies with this standard set 
by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. 
 

6. A thorough 
risk assess-
ment has 
been done 

Overview: 
 

The identification of risks 
 

The Department currently developed Strategic risk register and Operational risk register 
2010-2011 in terms of Section 38(i) (a) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) 
during the 2010/11 financial year.  The Department is fully committed to the importance 
of effective risk management in ensuring that strategic objectives are met and risks are 
managed to an acceptable level. The registers are still at an initial stage and have not 
been approved by the Director-General.  
 

The seriousness of risks have been assessed 
 

Each business unit within the department participated in the assessment and identifica-
tion of the risk. The Department risk assessment look at the following ;strategic objec-
tives, measurable output,  risks, contributing factors, risk category, sub risk category, 
control title, control procedures, adequacy assessment effective, impact, likelihood, risk 
rating, risk owner, mitigation, action and action description action starting and action 
due date. Operational as well as strategic risks were assessed in terms of the impact. 
The impact of each risk is weighed before and after considering control strategies. Ac-
tion or recommendations are made for each risk identified either operational or strate-
gic.  
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The prioritisation of risks 
 

Risks are categorises into strategic, operational financial and legislative. Prioritisation of 
risks is done in terms of the impact it can have, therefore all the risks are rated at of 1- 
12.  
 

Control measures have been devised 
 

Once the risk have been identified, categorised and weighed, the control procedure is 
put in place. The control measure could be in the form of a planning and maintenance, 
monitoring, engagements with stakeholder and other control measures. Control meas-
ures are tailor made per the work of the business unit not a blanket approach.  
 
 

Rating: 1,00 out of 1,00 
 

The Department conducted a risk assessment exercise during which all activities 
and/or applications were assessed.  The seriousness of each risk was assessed, and 
was rated in terms of its consequences and impact.  Appropriate internal control meas-
ures were devised to address the risks in the Department.  Although the Department 
had conducted the risk assessment of concern is the issues raised by the AG particu-
larly relating to material losses through criminal conduct, fruitless and wasteful expendi-
ture.  A score of 1,00 out of 1,00 is awarded. 
 

7. The existence 
of a fraud pre-
vention plan 

Overview: 
 

The Department’s fraud prevention plan (FPP) was assessed against the standards set 
in Table 6.1 for a good FPP at the end of this chapter.  Following is a brief discussion 
on the Results against each standard: 
 

The existence of a comprehensive FPP 
 

The draft Fraud Prevention Plan which served as an update from the Fraud Prevention 
plan for the previous Department of Land Affairs is in place. The purpose of the plan is 
to document DRDLPs approach to the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption, 
recognises fraud and corruption prevention measures and identifies strategic fraud and 
corruption risks that must be addressed.  
 

Basis of FPP and strategies 
 

The Department underwent fraud and corruption risks identification as part of depart-
mental wide fraud risk assessment process.  The FPP serves as a measure to assist 
the Department in the limitation of fraud and corruption risk. In order to combat fraud 
and corruption the Department will provide awareness on the code of conduct and en-
sure compliance of systems, policies, procedures, rules and regulations. Among the 
strategies, the Department will ensure that disciplinary code and procedures are taken 
to resolve disciplinary matters. The FPP also focuses on internal control measures 
which will ensure that staff is trained on internal control and the conduct of day to day 
duties.  
 

The Department undertook to train all employees regarding fraud prevention during 
2010 financial year.  Training material was submitted as evidence. The training focused 
on the principles underlying fraud prevention, corruption and the private sector, fraud 
triangle, occupational fraud and abuse categories, loss through fraud cases in South 
Africa impact of fraud in the department fraud laws, regulations and code of conduct, 
and fraud prevention and anti-corruption strategy.  
 

Fraud Data Base 
 

The Department does not have a separate data base for fraud in place.  
 

Responsibility to contribute towards eliminating fraud 
 

The Department will put preventive measures that will contribute towards elimination of 
fraud in place. Measures will include authorisation or approval of decisions by appropri-
ate persons, physical controls for the custody of assets, which involve procedures and 
security measures designed to ensure that access to assets is limited to authoriser’s 
personnel. The Department will also ensure that management reviews are carried out 
by, or on behalf of, the management personnel having direct responsibility for the sys-
tems policies and procedures.  
 

Detection of fraud and corruption will done by ensuring that basic controls within re-
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cording function are properly authorised, and accurately processed security of record is 
checked. Detection will include supervision and management of information  
 

Community awareness 
 

Awareness of employees as well as stakeholders will be promoted and whistle blowers 
encouraged to report incidents. 
 

Reporting line of fraud and corruption  
 

Reporting will include monitoring processes by raising awareness and to deter potential 
fraudsters and corrupt individuals by making all employees and other stakeholders 
aware that DRDLR is not a soft target.  
 

Protected disclosure 
 

The Fraud Policy Response plan indicates that anyone who reports fraud and corrup-
tion may remain anonymous and should not be a target of any penalty or retribution.  
 

No discretion in external reporting of fraud 
 

Incidents of fraud will be referred to SAPS and other law enforcement agencies.  
 

Provision for investigating fraud and corruption 
 

The DRDLR Fraud Policy Response Plan indicates that upon receiving a fraud case, a 
manager must start preliminary investigation work within 7 working days. 
 

Prompt investigation of all instances of suspected fraud 
 

All fraud matters are investigated within seven days as indicated above and investiga-
tions will be followed by disciplinary action, institution of civil action to recover losses, 
initiation of criminal prosecution and other appropriate and legal remedies.  
 

No interference in investigation from management 
 

All matters regarding fraud and corruption received or investigated by the Department 
will be treated confidentially. The Department however did not address the issues of 
interference by managers in the investigation of fraud and corruption cases.  
 

Skilled officers to undertake investigations 
 

The Department does not have enough capacity in the form of skilled officers to inves-
tigate fraud and corruption. Only three (0, 2%) out of 1439 officials highly competent 
and have received formal training on fraud.  
 

Code of Conduct for the Public Service 
 

The Code of conduct remains the main strategy to combat fraud and corruption. The 
department ensures that all ethical principles contained in the Code are applicable to all 
employees. The Department indicated in the FPP that workshops will be arranged to 
create awareness of the code of Code as part of the overall Fraud Awareness Training 
for all employees.   
 
 

Rating: 1,00 out of 1,00  
 

An FPP is in place that complies with eleven (100%) of the 13 requirements set by the 
PSC’s Transversal M&E System for a good fraud prevention plan.  The FPP is based 
on a thorough risk assessment. A score of 1.00 is awarded. 
 

8. The imple-
mentation of 
the fraud pre-
vention plan 

Overview: 
 

Key staff to investigate cases of fraud 
 

According to the Department there is capacity shortage in terms of the staff involved in 
investigating fraud in the Department. The department indicated that only two officials 
are highly competent and are directly involved in the implementation of the FPP.  See 
Table 6.2 at the end of this chapter.  
 

Implementation of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan 
 

Contained in the draft FPP is the implementation and maintenance strategy of the plan. 
The Department aims to create awareness among employees by informing the em-
ployees on a regular basis regarding fraud and corruption and encouraging employees 
regarding whistle blowing.  The Department also intends to communicate with employ-
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ees and other stakeholders about the plan. Communication will increase the prospect 
of fraud and corruption being reported and improve DRDLR’s prevention and detection 
ability.  
 

In terms of maintenance the Department evaluates reports of fraud and corruption re-
ceived and highlights areas of risks within the department.  The Director-General is re-
sponsible for the maintenance and review of the FFP.  The Department undertook to 
train all officials regarding risk of fraud, and how to prevent corruption and fraud in the 
department.  
 
 

Rating: 0,00 out of 1,00 
 

The Department could, however, not provide evidence that the strategies of the fraud 
prevention plan have been implemented.   A score of 0.00 out of 1.00 is awarded.  
 
 

Area for improvement: 
 

The Department should, within six months of receipt of the approved Report: 
 

 Ensure that all the FPP strategies are implemented. 
 Determine the exact capacity requirements for the handling of fraud cases. 
 Ensure that the necessary training in the handling of fraud cases is provided. 

 

Rating 
 

9. Score  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. The adequacy of internal financial controls 
 

 The Auditor-General issued a qualified/an adverse/a disclaimer of opinion, concluded that the 
internal financial control measures are inadequate and flagged important areas as needing atten-
tion. 

 

 
0,00 

2. The existence of an operational performance management system. 1,00 
3. A thorough risk assessment has been done 
 

 All the Department’s activities/applications have been addressed. 
 The seriousness of each risk has been assessed. 
 The risks have been prioritised. 
 Internal control measures have been devised. 

 
 

0,25 
0,25 
0,25 
0,25 

4. The existence of a fraud prevention plan 
 

 A comprehensive and appropriate fraud prevention plan is in place 
 The fraud prevention plan is based on a thorough risk assessment. 

 
 

0,50 
0,50 

5. The implementation of the fraud prevention plan 
 

 Sufficient staff members to investigate cases of fraud are in place. 
 Less than 50% of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented. 

 
 

0,00 
0,00 

Total score 3,00 
 
 

Sources 
 

10. References Sources consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Documents: 
 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform.  
Fraud Prevention Awareness training and Audit Committee progress reports. 2010. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Draft Fraud Prevention and Detection Plan. November 2010. 

 

3. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Risk Register. 2010. 

 
 

Interviews: 
 

1. Mr. Dondolo, M. Director: Risk Management. Republic of South Africa. Department 
of Rural Development and Land Reform.  14 December 2010. 

 

2. Mr. Van Rensburg, R. Director: Forensic Auditing and Investigations. Republic of 
South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 14 December 
2010. 
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11. Useful 
sources to 
consult on 
this principle 

1. Republic of South Africa. National Treasury. Framework for Managing Programme 
Performance Information. May 2007. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. National Treasury. Fraud Prevention Strategy Template, 
Inclusive of Policy, Control Strategies and Procedures for Investigations. Pretoria. 
April 2009. 

 

3. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. A guide for Public Service 
Managers promoting Public Sector Accountability Implementing the Protected Dis-
closures Act. Undated. 

 

4. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Basic Concepts in Monitoring 
and Evaluation. Pretoria. February 2008. 

 

5. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Conceptual Framework for 
Meta-Evaluation. December 2007. 

 

6. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. National Anti-Corruption Hot-
line Toolkit. 2006. 

 

7. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Implementa-
tion of Fraud Prevention Plans in the Public Sector. November 2007. 

 

8. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Audit of Re-
porting Requirements and Departmental Monitoring and Evaluation Systems within 
Central and Provincial Government. 2007. 

 

9. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Implementa-
tion of Fraud Prevention Plans in the Public Service. 2008. 

 

10. Republic of South Africa. The Presidency. Policy for the Government-wide Monitor-
ing and Evaluation System. November 2007.  

 
 

Table 6.1 – Checklist for a good fraud prevention plan 
 

 

Standard √  
1. A comprehensive implementation plan and responsibility structure must be developed to implement and give effect to the department's fraud control 

strategy. √ 

2. Fraud prevention strategies must be based on a thorough risk assessment. √ 
3. A fraud database, which complies with Cabinet Memo 45 of 2003, should be in place (Not own Hotline). X 
4. It must be clear that every employee has a responsibility to contribute towards eliminating fraud. √ 
5. Service users, suppliers and the broader community should be made aware of the department's stance on fraud and corruption. √ 
6. It should be clear to everybody to whom and how fraud should be reported √ 
7. A clear policy on protected disclosures must be in place. √ 
8. Accounting officers must be clear that there is no discretion in the reporting of fraud to either the police or other independent anti-corruption agencies. √ 
9. Provision must be made for the investigation of fraud once reported. √ 
10. All instances of suspected fraud must be promptly examined by the department to establish whether a basis exists for further investigation. √ 
11. Fraud investigations must be conducted without interference from management. X 
12. Investigations must be undertaken by skilled officers. √ 
13. The expected standards of conduct (code) must be clear.  The Code of Conduct for the Public Service must be applied to the specific circumstances of 

the department. √ 

Total Requirements to comply with 13 
Number of Requirements met (yes) 11 
Number of Requirements not met (no) 0 

 

% of requirements met 100% 
 

Source: Australia.  New South Wales Premier's Department.  Office of Public Management.  Fraud Control:  Developing an effective 
strategy.  Vol. 2, 1994. 

 
 

Table 6.2 – Competency levels of fraud investigators 
 

 

Number of Officials 
Competence 

Salary Band Number of Officials 
on the Establishment Still gaining experience 

(Less than 1 year experi-
ence 

Adequate 
(More than 1 year but 

less than 3 years experi-
ence 

Highly competent 
(Three years and more 

experience) 

Percentage of Highly 
Competent Officials 

for Salary Band 

Assistant Director   1  % 
Deputy Director    1 % 
Director    1 % 
Total 1 439  1 2 0,2% 
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Principle 7:  Transparency 
 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
principle 

Transparency must be fostered by providing the public with timely, accessible and ac-
curate information. 

2. Performance 
indicator 

A. Departmental AR 
 

 The AR complies with NT’s Guideline on Annual Reporting. 
 

B. Access to Information 
 

 The Department complies with the provisions of the PAIA2000 (Act 2 of 2000). 
 

3. Standards  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
A. Departmental Annual Report (AR)  
A.1  The presentation of the AR 
 

 The AR is attractively and clearly presented. 
 The AR is well written in simple accessible language. 

 
 

0,25 
0,25 

A.2  The content of the AR 
 

The AR covers in sufficient detail at least 90% of the areas prescribed by National Treasury and the 
Department of Public Service and Administration. 

 
 

0.50 
 

A. 3  Reporting on performance in the AR 
 
The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds of the 
programmes listed. 

 
 

2,00 

B. Access to Information  
B.1  The appointment of DIOs to deal with requests for access to information 
 
The department has at least one DIO with duly delegated authority. 

 
 

0,50 

B.2  The availability of a Manuel on Access to Information (MAI) 
 

The department does have a MAI in place that complies with the requirements of the PAIA. 

 

 
0, 50 

 

B.3  Procedures to manage request for access to information 
 

Systems for managing requests for access to information are in place. 

 

 
1,00 

Maximum possible score 5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. The presenta-
tion of the 
annual report 

Overview: 
 

The title and date of the AR 
 

Annual Report 1 April 2009-31 March 2010, Department of Rural Development and 
Land Reform. 
 

The impression it conveys 
 

The AR is attractively presented.  It includes various colour pictures and tables, and is 
reader-friendly.  Information is portrayed in a logical fashion and details on the 
achievement of targets are included.   
 

The overall quality of the AR 
 

The AR makes a favourable impression as it is printed on a quality paper and is written 
in clear and understandable English with special attention to spelling and grammar.  
Colour pictures, maps and tables contribute to the overall impression of quality. 
 
 

The level of readership to which it is aimed 
 

The AR is written in clear, simple language accessible to the public. 
 

Accessibility and usefulness to ordinary people 
 

The AR provides a detailed summary of the work performance of the Department for 
the period under review and conveys an impression of the commitment of officials in 
the Department to execute their duties in a responsible and accountable manner. 
 

Rating: 0,50  
 

The Department’s AR is attractively presented, written in a language that is clear and 
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easily readable and sheds light on the key responsibilities of the Department.  The De-
partment, therefore, complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E Sys-
tem. A score of 0, 50 is therefore awarded.  
 

5. The content 
of the annual 
report 

Overview: 
 

The content of the AR was assessed against the requirements of National Treasury for 
annual reporting listed in Table 7.1 at the end of this chapter.  A summary of the re-
sults appear below followed by short overview of the results on each main area. 
 

Name of main areas to be addressed Number of areas to 
be addressed 

Actual number of 
areas addressed 

% Devia-
tion 

1. General information 11 10 9% 
2. Programme performance 66 37 43% 
3. Audit reports, financial statements and other financial 

information 
13 13 0 

4. Human resource oversight report 56 54  3.5% 
Total 146 114 78% 

 

1. General information 
 

Under general information the department reported on the Accounting Officer’ over-
view, the Ministry, Vision, mission, statements and the legislation implemented by the 
department. The Department implemented 10 out of 11 areas specified by National 
Treasury.  
 

2. Programme performance 
 

The Department reported the performance of each and every programme. The report 
included the purpose of the programme, measurable objectives, service delivery objec-
tives and indicators, service delivery achievements and challenges. The Department 
implemented 50 out of 66 areas specified by National Treasury. However, it is not 
clears where issues relating capital investment, maintenance and asset management 
are reported on in the AR. Mention is made of asset management in the AR but lacks 
detail as required by the National Treasury.  
 

3. Audit reports, financial statements and other financial information 
 

The Audit report, financial statement, and other financial information were reported on 
under programme performance and departmental expenditure.  
 

4. Human resource oversight report 
 

The Department reported on 54 out 56 issues required by the Nation Treasury.  
 
 

Rating: 0,00  
 

The content of the AR covers in sufficient detail 78% of the areas prescribed by Na-
tional Treasury and the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA), 
which is less than the standard of 90% set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. 
Areas that are not covered by the AR or are covered insufficiently include the details of 
official visits abroad by the Minister, asset management, maintenance, and capital in-
vestment.  
 
 

Area for improvement: 
 

The content of the Department’s AR for 2010/11 must fully comply with the require-
ments for annual reporting set by the National Treasury and the DPSA. 
 

6. Reporting on 
performance 
in the annual 
report 

Overview: 
 

The extent to which the Department reported in its AR on its performance against 
planned outputs for the financial year 2009/10 in accordance with National Treasury 
requirements, appears in Table 7.1, paragraph B.10 at the end of this report.  An ex-
position of the detail per programme is highlighted below followed by a short discussion 
on the findings: 
 

Programme number and name 

Performance is indicated in ac-
cordance with the ENE/Budget 
Statement and strategic plan. 

 
(YES/NO) 

Achievements for each sub-
programme under a pro-

gramme are clearly reported. 
 

(YES/NO) 
1. Administration Yes  Yes  
2. Surveys and Mapping Yes  Yes  
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3. Cadastral Surveys  Yes  Yes  
4. Restitution  Yes  Yes  
5. Land Reform Yes  Yes  
6. Spatial Planning and Information  Yes  Yes  
7. Deeds Registration and Auxiliary Services  Yes  Yes  

 

Explanation of how much was achieved 
 

Programmes are indicated in accordance with the ENE and the strategic plan 2005-
2010 for the Department of Land Affairs. In addition, the Department also gave a brief 
report on the additional programmes since the integration of the Rural Development 
component.  
 

Reasons for performance/non-performance 
 

Each programme reported on the purpose, measurable objectives, output, perform-
ance indicators, targets, actual performance, and service delivery achievements as 
well as challenges where applicable. 
 
 

Rating: 
 

The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs for all the pro-
grammes.  A score of 2,00 out of 2,00 is awarded. 
 

7. The appoint-
ment of DIOs 
to deal with 
requests for 
access to in-
formation 

Overview: 
 

The Department submitted its PAIA Manual for assessment. The Manual indicated that 
the Director-General as the information officer. A description of the functions and ser-
vices of the department are also outlined as well as the job description of the informa-
tion officer. It was ,however noted that the Commission on Restitution of Land Rights is 
considered a separate public body and application for access to records held by the 
Commission should be submitted directly to the Commission’s Information Officer.  
 

The number of deputy information officers (DIOs) in the department 
 

The Department has 33 DIOs at the time when the Manual was developed for the De-
partment of Land Affairs. The Manual does not include the information of the integra-
tion of rural development components as from 2009/10.  A letter dated 12 November 
2002 was signed by the Director-General, Dr. Mayende in the appointment of DIOs.  
Each Chief-Director was appointed the DOI responsible for information in their chief-
directorates. The following people were appointed DIOs in relation  to the services that 
are directly offered to the public:  
 

 Chief Directors. 
 Chief Registrars of Deeds. 
 Chief Surveyor-General. 
 Registrars (excluding those in the Chief Registrar’s Office). 
 Surveyor-General. 
 Director: Monitoring and Evaluation.  

 

A copy of the Performance Agreement for the Chief Information Officer was submitted, 
however the job specifications are not aligned to those of the DIO but ICT related.  
 

DIOs are appointed in writing 
 

Although the DIOs were appointed in writing letters were not provided by the Depart-
ment. The names and the chief-directorates as well and the contact numbers were in-
dicated in the manual. The services rendered by each chief-directorate are also out-
lined. 
 

DIOs have authorisation to deal with requests for access to information 
 

Due to the size of the Department and the regional offices outside the head office, 
DIOs are authorised to deal with requests in their areas of work.  
 

DIOs do have job descriptions and performance contracts 
 

The job descriptions of the DIO were outlined in the Manual as well as services ren-
dered to the public by each component. Although performance agreement was signed, 
copies were not submitted for assessment. A copy of the Performance Agreement for 
the Chief Information Officer was submitted however his duties are more IT related 
than those of the DIOs. 
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Rating: 0,50 
 

Each chief director, chief registrar, chief surveyor, registrars, surveyors and director 
M&E are appointed  deputy information officers and have been delegated responsibili-
ties by the D-G to manage information within their sections.  A score of 0,5 out of 0,5 
are awarded.  
 

8. The availabil-
ity of a Man-
ual on Ac-
cess to In-
formation 

Overview: 
 

The content of the Department’s MAI was assessed against the requirements of PAIA 
listed in Table 7.3 at the end of this chapter.  A short overview of the Results is high-
lighted below. 
 

Language 
 

The manual is available in English.  
 

Department’s structure and functions 
 

The Department’s structure and functions are included in the manual.  However the 
new integrated functions are not listed in the structure.  
 

Contact details 
 

Contact details of the Information Officer and all the 26 DIOs are listed in the Manual. 
 

Access to the guide 
 

According to the Manual the guide should be available in every Post Office, selected 
libraries, every legally established tertiary education, every Department of Justice and 
every public body.  
 

Access to a record 
 

In order to access the records the applicant should know which record he/she wants. 
Each DIO holds the subjects and categories of information held by them.  Each DIO is 
also responsible for deciding whether or not to grant access to records under his/her 
control.  The applicant will need to complete a form obtainable from any DIOs office. 
The application should contain as may particulars as an applicant is able to furnish.  
Applications should be submitted, faxed, e-mailed, posted or couriered to the relevant 
DIO.  For applicants who cannot write, the DIOs will assist. 
 

Application can also be transferred, if it found that the information is residing in any 
other government body.  For disabled applicant, the DIO will make available a form that 
can be read, viewed or heard and no extra access fees will be levied.  
 

Description of subjects of records 
 

Description of the subjects of records listed as the function of the DIO who is responsi-
ble for overseeing the overall functions of Department.  The functions in the Manual 
only depict those of Land Affairs before the integration of Rural development. 
 

The following functions were listed. 
 

 Redressing the injustice of racially based land dispossessions through implemen-
tation of restitution programme; 

 Addressing the inequitable distribution of land ownership; 
 Promoting security of tenure for all ; 
 Recording and registering all rights with respect to property; 
 Providing spatial information; and  
 Providing information on cadastral surveys and the spatial database by the Sur-

veyors-General  
 

Categories of records available 
 

Information held by the department are classified under the following categories 
throughout the department: 
 

 Organising and control; 
 Office Auxiliary Services  
 Legislation; 
 Composition and meetings of bodies and other gatherings and 
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 Functional responsibilities ( for example monitoring and evaluation) 
 

Submission of categories of records to the Minister of Justice 
 

The manual does not indicate the submission of records to the department of Justice 
and Constitutional Development although mention was made that the guide will be 
available in all the department of Justice and Constitutional Development  
 

Description of services available 
 

The Manual gave a description of all the services rendered by the Department to the 
public.  The following services are available to he public: 
 

 Cadastral Surveys 
 Surveys and mapping 
 Deeds Registry; and 
 Land Reform Implementation and Co-ordination.  

 

Participation in the formulation of policy 
 

The Manual outlined how the public can influence the formulation of policy, this include:
 

 When the Department wishes to introduce a new major policies; 
 Draft bills or summaries are published for the public to comment ; and  
 Department consults with the public during the drafting of the Bill, and any person 

is welcome to write to the Department with suggestions regarding new policies. 
 

Remedies available 
 

A number of remedies are included in the manual in case someone is dissatisfied with 
an action or failure by the Department to act.  This include  the following actions by the 
dissatisfied person: 
 

 Bringing the matter to the attention of the Departments Information Officer/D-G. 
 Following the internal review proceeding in chapter 1 of part4 of the Act. 
 Applying to the High Court for the review of the DOI’s decision. 
 In respect of failure by the official, the supervisor to the official can be contacted 

and also complains can be send to the D-G.  
 

Updating and publishing 
 

The Manual still talks to the information of the Department of Land Affairs not the new 
Department of Rural Development and Land Reform.  Therefore, a need for an up-
dated and published copy is urgent.  
 

Availability of manual at place of legal deposit 
 

The manual indicated that the guide can be obtained at any post office, every Magis-
trate office and at every department of Justice and Constitutional Development.  
 

Telephone directory, notice boards and departmental website 
 

Information regarding the contact details of all the IO, DIOs, and departmental structure 
and website is available in the manual  
 
 

Rating:0,50  
 

The Department has a MAI in place, which complies with at least 11 (or 79%) of the 14 
requirements set by section 14 of the (PAIA), 2000 (Act 2 of 2000).  The Department, 
therefore, complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A score 
of 0, 50 out of 0, 50 is awarded. 
 

9. Procedures to 
manage re-
quests for 
access to in-
formation 

Overview: 
 

Record keeping 
 

Each Chief Directorate is responsible for record keeping of their own records.  
 

Responsible component 
 

There is no particular component responsible for keeping records, each branch and 
Chief Directorate are responsible for keeping their records.  
 

Tracking mechanism to monitor requests and responses to requests 
 

The Department has categorised records in terms of their decryptions so that they are 
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easily tracked for example in the office auxiliary records, there are staffing, HR, acqui-
sition, services and accommodation files.  
 

Average time to respond to a request 
 

The Manual does not indicate the every time taken to taken to finalise a case.  
 

Information to clients of their right to appeal 
 

The manual describe in detail the right to appeal and access to court.  

Internal appeal mechanism 
 

The manual describe in detail how to ledge an appeal and access to court.  The appli-
cant has 30 days from a date of refusal to lodge an internal appeal, if thirds parties 
have to be notifies.  If late lodgement is unavoidable, sufficient reasons for the late 
lodgement should be provided for consideration by the relevant authority.  
 

Communication of appeal decisions 
 

The communication will contain adequate reasons for the decision, quoting any rele-
vant provisions of the Act, and a statement that the parties involved may lodge a court 
application against the decision.  
 

Section 32 reports to the Human Rights Commission (HRC) 
 

The Department submitted a copy of the section 32 report submitted to the Human 
Rights Commission.  The report indicate that 21 PAIA request were made for informa-
tion that needed formal response from the Deputy Information Officers in terms of the 
Act for the period 01 April 2009 to 31 March 2010.  However, the report does not state 
each case and how long it took the department to solve them.  
 
 

Rating: 1,00 out of 1,00 
 

A system for handling requests as well as a tracking mechanism to monitor requests 
for access to information is in place.  The Department does submit the section 32 re-
port the Human Rights Commission (HRC) on an annual basis. A score of 1.00 out of 
1.00 is awarded. 
 

Rating 
 

10. Score  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
A. Departmental Annual Report (AR)  
A.1  The presentation of the AR 
 

 The AR is attractively and clearly presented. 
 The AR is well written in simple accessible language. 

 
 

0,25 
0.25 

A.2  The content of the AR 
 

The AR covers in sufficient detail at least 90% of the areas prescribed by National Treasury and the 
Department of Public Service and Administration. 

 
 

0,00 
 

A. 3  Reporting on performance in the AR 
 
The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds of the 
programmes listed. 

 
 

2,00 

B. Access to Information  
B.1  The appointment of DIOs to deal with requests for access to information 
 

The department has at least one DIO with duly delegated authority. 

 

 
0,50 

B.2  The availability of a Manuel on Access to Information (MAI) 
 

The department does have a MAI in place that complies with the requirements of the PAIA. 

 

 
0,50 

B.3  Procedures to manage request for access to information 
 

Systems for managing requests for access to information are in place. 

 

 
1,00 

Total score 4.50 
 
 

Sources 
 

11. References Sources consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Documents: 
 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Memorandum: Designation as Deputy Information Officer In terms of the Promotion 
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of Access to Information Act, 2 of 2000. 12 November 2002.  
2. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 

PAIA Manual, (no DG signature and date of publication). 
 

3. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Section 32 Report in terms of the Promotion of Access to Information Act, two of 
2000. 31 March 2010. 

 

12. Useful 
sources to 
consult on 
this principle 

1. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Implementa-
tion of the Batho Pele Principle of Openness and Transparency in the Public Ser-
vice. February 2008. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Implementa-
tion of the Promotion of Access to Information Act, (Act No 2 0f 2000). Undated. 

 

 
 

Table 7.1 – Content checklist for the annual report 
 

 

CONTENT 

Required 
level of 
detail 

provided: 
Yes/No 

 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION 
1. Submission of annual report to executive authority. Yes  
2. Introduction by head of the institution. Yes 
3. Information on the Ministry:     a)  The work involved in Yes  

b)  Names of institutions falling under Minister’s control Yes   
c)  Bills submitted during reporting period Yes  
d) Official visits abroad – dates and purpose No  

4. Mission statement Yes  
5. Legislative mandate a) that governs the existence of the department and its operations (core mandates). Yes  
b) Trading and/or public entities controlled by the department indicating: 
                                                 i) Legislation under which established. Yes  
                                                ii) Functions of each trading and/or public entity. Yes  
                                               iii) Accountability arrangements between HoD and trading and/or public entity. Yes  

Total out of 11 areas reported on A 10 
B. PROGRAMME AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
B.1 Programme performance – Information to be reported. 
1. Voted funds indicating information in accordance with the following framework: 
 

Appropriation Main Appropriation Adjusted Appropria-
tion 

Actual Amount 
Spent 

Over/Under Expendi-
ture 

Department to  complete figures    
Responsible Minister Title of responsible Minister  
Department Name of relevant Department 
Accounting Officer Title of Responsible Director-General/Head of Department 

 
 

Yes  

2. Aim of vote. No  
3. Key Measurable objectives – in line with legislative mandate. Yes  
4. Programmes – Brief description of each programme through which the department’s activities are conducted. Yes  
5. Achievements - Brief description of any significant achievements/progress in relation to stated measurable objectives. Yes  

Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on B.1 4 
B.2 Overview of service delivery environment. 
Overall performance – outlining key outputs relating to services rendered directly to the public providing. 
1. A list of all key services rendered to the public indicating: 

 Number of people utilising the service. 
 Number of people that were turned away/not served.  
 Quality of service. 

Yes   

2. Problems encountered with rendering of the service. Yes  
3. Corrective steps taken in dealing with service delivery problems.  No  
4. Reasons for any additions to virement between the main appropriation allocations. Yes  
5. Report on any rollovers from previous years. Yes   
6. Description of any significant developments, external to the department, which might have impacted on service delivery. No  

Sub-total out of 6 areas reported on B.2 3 
B.3 Overview of organisational environment. 
1. An overview of the organisational challenges experienced that might have impacted on departments ability to deliver on strategic plan such as: 

 Resignation of key personnel (Accounting Officer/Chief Financial Officer); 
 Strike by significant portion of personnel; 
 Restructuring efforts; 
 Significant system failures; and 
 Cases of corruption. 

No  

2. Measures that were adopted to mitigate the impact of these events on service delivery. No  
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CONTENT 

Required 
level of 
detail 

provided: 
Yes/No 

Sub-total out of 2 areas reported on B.3 0 
B.4 Strategic overview and key policy developments. 
1. Major, relevant policy developments/legislative changes that may have effected the Department’s operations during review or future period(s). Yes  

Sub-total out of 1 area reported on B.4 1 
B.5 Departmental revenue. 
1. Detail on how the department has delivered on the plans for collecting revenue Yes  
2. Reasons for under performance and indication of measures taken to keep on target and future measures to rectify under performance. Yes 
3. Reasons for exceeded performance. Yes 
4. Breakdown of sources of revenue in following Table format: 
 

Source of income 20076/07 
Actual 

2007/08 
Actual 

2008/09 
Actual 

2009/10 
Target 

2009/10 
Actual 

% Deviation 
from target 

Tax revenue       
(Specify)       
Non-tax revenue       
(Specify)       
Sales of capital assets (Capital Revenue)       
(Specify)       
Financial transactions (Recovery of loans and advances)       
TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL RECEIPTS        

Yes  

Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on B.5 4  
B.6 Departmental expenditure 
1. Per programme in Table format showing: 
 

Programmes Voted funds 
for 2009/10 

Roll-overs 
and adjust-

ments 
Virement Total voted Actual ex-

penditure Variance 

 
 

Yes  

2. How actual expenditure differ from planned expenditure Yes  
3. Impact of variance on service delivery. Yes  
4. Measures adopted to improve the efficiency and economy of spending on each programme.  Yes  

Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on B.6 4 
B.7 Transfer payments – if applicable  
1. List/summary of transfers made in the following Table format. 
 

Name of institution Amount Trans-
ferred 

Estimate Expendi-
ture 

 
 

 

2. Narrative of services provided by each entity. Yes  
3. An assessment of the actual amount spent by each entity (excluding individuals or social grant payments). Yes  
4. Indication when full spending report on each entity can be expected. Yes  
5. Comment on monthly monitoring systems or the lack thereof to monitor spending on such transfers. Yes  
6. Details on difficulties experienced and steps taken (if any) to rectify difficulties where monitoring did take place. No  

Total out of 6 areas reported on B.7 5 
B.8 Conditional grants and earmarked funds 
 
B.8.1 The transferring department 
1. A summary of all grants transferred to provinces/municipalities in the following Table format:                                                                                               yes  
 

GRANT ALLOCATION TRANSFERRED PROCESS 
Division 
Revenue 

Act 
Adjustments 

Estimate 
Roll 

Overs 
Total 

Available 
Actual 

Transfers 
Amount not 
transferred 

% of avail-
able trans-

ferred 
Payment Sched-

ule Transfers Variance 
Grant 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % Date  Amount Date Amount 
Accredited 
amount 
number 

Day/Month Amount 

 

2. An outline of the purpose and expected outputs for each grant. Yes  
3. Explanation of whether transfers were made as scheduled. Yes  
4. Reasons if payments were delayed (not paid according to schedule) or withheld (non-transfers) and the extent of compliance with DORA.  No  
5. Description of nature of administration cost (if any) retained by national department. Yes  
6. Analysis of spending trends for each grant, indicating the extent to which compliance with conditions of grant was monitored. yes 
7. Highlights of specific areas where compliance fell short of requirements and steps taken where a province/municipality failed to comply. No  
8. An indication of the extent to which outputs were achieved, providing a comparative analysis of provincial performance against targets. 

 
No 

9. An outline of reasons where performance fell short of expectations and measures taken to improve performance in coming years if grant is con-
tinuing. 

No  

10. An overall assessment of compliance with the DORA (both by the department and the receiving spheres and an explanation of measures taken 
where there was non-compliance. 

No  

Sub-total out of 10 areas reported on B.8.1 5 
B.8.2 Receiving department should include the following information in the annual report on conditional grants received. 
1. A summary of all grants transferred to provinces/municipalities in the following table format:                                                                                           yes  
 

GRANT ALLOCATION TRANSFERRED PROCESS Grant 

Division Adjustments Roll Total Actual  Unspent % of Payment Sched- Receipts Variance 
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CONTENT 

Required 
level of 
detail 

provided: 
Yes/No 

Revenue 
Act 

Estimate Overs Available available 
spent 

ule 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % Date  Amount Date Amo
unt 

Accredited 
amount number Day/Month Amount 

 
 

2. An overview of grants received, including types and total amount received. Yes  
3. An indication of the total amount of actual expenditure on all allocations. Yes  
4. Confirmation that all transfers were deposited into the accredited bank account of the Provincial/Municipal Treasury. Yes  
5. An indication of the extent to which the objectives were achieved, providing a comparative analysis of provincial performance against targets. No 
6. An outline of reasons where performance fell short of expectations and measures taken to improve performance in coming years if grant is con-

tinuing. 
No  

7. An overall assessment of compliance with the Act and an explanation of measures taken where there was non-compliance. No  
Sub-total out of 7 areas reported on B.8.2 4 

B.9 Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan  
 
B.9.1 Capital investment 

1. List of building projects currently in progress with an indication when they are expected to be completed. No  
2. Plans to close down or down-grade any current facilities. Non 
3. The current maintenance backlog and plans on how to deal with the backlog over the Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF). No 
4. Development relating to the above that are expected to impact on the department’s current expenditure. No  

Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on B.9.1 0 
B.9.2 Maintenance 
1. How the actual expenditure compares to what the department planned to spend on maintenance. No  
2. Whether the expenditure is more or less than the property industry norms. No  
3. Progress made in addressing the maintenance backlog – has it grown or become smaller. No  
4. Is the rate of progress according to plan?  If not, why not and what measures have been taken to keep on track?  No  

Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on B.9.2 0 
B.9.3 Asset management (Departments are required to provide an overview of the fixed and significant movable assets under the control of the department). 
1. Details on how asset holdings have changed over the period under review, including information on disposals, scrapping and loss due to theft. No  
2. Measures to ensure that the department’s asset register remained up-to-date during the period under review. No  
3. The current state of the department’s capital stock – for example, what percentage is in good, fair or bad condition? No 
4. Major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under review. No  
5. Facilities that were closed down or down-graded during the period under review. No  
6. Projects that will be carried forward to the forthcoming financial year. No  
7. New projects that will commence in the forthcoming financial year. No 
8. Process in place for the tendering of projects. No  

Sub-total out of 8 areas reported on B.9.3 0 
B. 10. Summary of programme performance. 
1. Performance is indicated in accordance with the ENE/Budget Statement as tabled in Parliament/the Legislature and the strategic/performance 

plan for the reporting period. 
Yes 

2. Reporting is done on each programme’s specified service delivery objectives, performance measures and targets in the exact order as specified 
in the ENE/Budget Statement and strategic/performance plan. 

Yes 

3. The same numbering used in strategic plan/performance plan is used in AR  Yes 
4. Deviations or no information is explained explicitly.  Yes 
5. Summary (list) of department’s programmes – including Administration Yes 
6. Then per programme – including Administration: 

6.1 Purpose: (Department to describe the purpose of the programme). Yes  
6.2 Measurable objective: (Department to describe the measurable objective(s) relating to the programme). Yes  
6.3 Service delivery objectives and indicators: (Department to describe the delivery objectives and indicators relating to the programme). Yes  
6.4 Service delivery achievements: 

 

Actual performance against target 
Sub-programme Outputs 

Output performance meas-
ures/service delivery indica-

tors Target Actual 
Curriculum and Assessment 
Development and Learner 
Achievement 

Basic literacy pro-
grammes 

Number of literacy programmes 
developed for learners and 
educators 

800 000 adult learn-
ers in literacy and 
ABET programs 

825 000 adult learn-
ers in literacy and 
ABET programs 

 

Yes  

7. Recent outputs  
7.1 Brief synopsis on how the achievement of targets has contributed towards achieving the department’s outcomes. Yes  
7.2 Reasons for major variances (Departments to state the reasons for major variances between target and actual) Yes  

Sub-total out of 11 areas reported on B.10 11 
Total out of 66 areas reported on B  

C. AUDIT REPORTS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
1. Report of the departmental Audit Committee. Yes  
2. Report of the Accounting Officer. Yes  
3. Auditor-General’s report. Yes  
4. Statements of accounting policies & related matters. Yes  
5. Appropriation Statements. Yes  
6. Notes on the Appropriation Statements. Yes  
7. Statement of financial performance – Income statement. Yes 
8. Statement of financial position – Balance Sheet. Yes  
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CONTENT 

Required 
level of 
detail 

provided: 
Yes/No 

9. Statement of changes in net Asset/Equity. Yes  
10. Cash Flow Statement. Yes  
11. Notes to the Financial Statements. Yes  
12. Disclosure notes to the Annual Financial Statements. Yes  
13. Annexure to the Annual Financial Statements. Yes  

Total out of 13 areas reported on C 13 
D. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT REPORT – Department of Public Service and Administration  
D.1 Service delivery. 
1. Main services provided and standards. Yes  
2. Consultation arrangements with customers. Yes  
3. Service delivery access strategy. Yes 
4. Service information tool. Yes 
5. Complaints mechanism. Yes  

Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on D.1 5 
D.2 Expenditure. 
1. Personnel costs by programme. Yes 
2. Personnel costs by salary bands. Yes 
3. Salaries, overtime, homeowners allowance and medical assistance by programme. Yes  
4. Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical assistance by salary bands. Yes  

Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on D.2 4 
D.3 Employment and vacancies. 
1. Employment and vacancies by programme. Yes  
2. Employment and vacancies by salary bands. Yes 
3. Employment and vacancies by critical occupation. Yes  

Sub-total out of 3 areas reported on D.3 3 
D.4 Job evaluation. 
1. Job evaluation done during financial year under review by salary band.  Yes  
2. Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded by race, gender & disability. Yes 
3. Employees whose salary level exceeds the grade determined by job evaluation by occupation. Yes  
4. Profile of employees whose salary level exceeds the grade determined by job evaluation by race gender & disability. Yes  
5. No cases where the remuneration bands exceed the grade determined by job evaluation. No  

Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on D.4 4  
D.5 Employment changes. 
1. Annual turnover rates by salary band. Yes  
2. Annual turnover rates by critical occupation. Yes  
3. Reasons why staff are leaving the department. Yes  
4. Promotions by critical occupation. Yes  
5. Promotions by salary band. Yes  

Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on D.5 5 
D.6 Employment equity. 
1. Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in occupational categories, race & gender. Yes  
2. Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in occupational bands, race & gender. Yes  
3. Recruitment for the period under review by occupational band, race & gender. Yes 
4. Promotions for the period under review by occupational band, race & gender. Yes  
5. Terminations for the period under review by occupational band, race & gender. Yes  
6. Disciplinary actions for the period under review by race & gender. Yes  
7. Skills development for the period under review by occupational categories, race & gender. Yes  

Sub-total out of 7 areas reported on D.6 7 
D.7 Performance Rewards. 
1. Performance rewards by race, gender, and disability. Yes  
2. Performance rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management Service. Yes 
3. Performance rewards by critical occupations. Yes 
4. Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for Senior Management Service. Yes  

Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on D.7 4 
D.8 Foreign workers. 
8.1 Foreign workers by salary band comparing previous with current financial year and indicating the deviation (number and percentage). Yes  
8.2 Foreign workers by major occupation comparing previous with current financial year and indicating the deviation (number and percentage). Yes  

Sub-total out of 2 areas reported on D.8 2 
D.9 Leave utilisation for the period 1 January to 31 December. 
1. Sick leave by salary band. Yes  
2. Disability leave (temporary and permanent) by salary band. Yes  
3. Annual leave by salary band. Yes  
4. Capped leave by salary band. Yes 
5. Leave payouts for the period 1 April to 31 March No  

Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on D.9  
D.10 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes. 
Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure. Yes  
Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes. Yes  

Sub-total out of 2 areas reported on D.10  
D.11 Labour relations. 
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CONTENT 

Required 
level of 
detail 

provided: 
Yes/No 

1. Collective agreements/No agreements Yes 
2. Outcomes of misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised/No disciplinary hearings Yes  
3. Types of misconduct addressed at the disciplinary hearings. Yes 
4. Grievances lodged. Yes 
5. Disputes lodged with Councils. Yes 
6. Strike actions. Yes  
7. Precautionary suspensions. Yes  

Sub-total out of 7 areas reported on D.11 7 
D.12 Skills development. 
1. Training needs identified by occupational category & gender. Yes  
2. Training provided by occupational category & gender. Yes  

Sub-total out of 2 areas reported on D.12 2 
D.13 Injury on duty. 
Nature of injury on duty indicating: Required basic medical attention, temporary/permanent disabled, fatal. Yes  

Sub-total out of 1 area reported on D.13 1 
D.14 Utilisation of consultants. 
1. Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds.  Yes  
2. Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals. Yes   
3. Report on consultant appointments using donor funds. Yes  
4. Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals. Yes  

Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on D.14 4 
Total out of 56 areas reported on D  
Total level of detail to comply with 146 

Level of detail met (Yes) 114 
Level of detail not met (No) 32  

% level of detail met 78% 
 

Source: Republic of South Africa. The National Treasury. Guide for the preparation of annual reports. National/Provincial Departments 

for the year ended 31 March 2010. Issue date 31 March 2009. 
 
 

Table 7.2 – Capacity to deal with requests for access to information 
 

 

Name of component No of 
DIOs 

Were they ap-
pointed in writing? 

 
YES/NO 

Do they have delegated authority to 
provide access to information? 

 
YES/NO 

Are their tasks reflected in their 
performance agreements? 

 
YES/NO 

1. Office of the Director General  2 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  
2. Chief Directorate Financial management  1 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  
3. Corporate Services  1 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  
4. Communication  1 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  
5. Information Technology  1 Yes  Yes  No  
6. Deeds Registration  10 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  
7. Cadastral Survey  5 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  
8. Surveys and  Mapping  1 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  
9. Spatial Planning and Information  1 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  
10. Land Reform Implementation & Coordina-

tion  
10 Yes  Yes  PA not provided  

11. Land Reform Systems and Support  1 Yes  Yes  PA not provided.  
Total 33    

 
 

Table 7.3 – Content checklist for the manual on access to information 
 

 

Standard √ 
1. The manual is published in three official languages. X 
2. A description of the department’s structure and functions appears in the manual. √ 
3. Information on the postal and street address, phone and fax number and, if available, electronic mail address of the information offi-

cer and of every deputy information officer appears in the manual. √ 

4. A description of the guide on how to use the Act and how to obtain access to the guide is provided. √ 
5. Sufficient detail to facilitate a request for access to a record is provided. √ 
6. A description of the subjects on which the department holds records and the categories of records held on each subject is provided. √ 
7. The categories of records of the department which are available without a person having to request access in terms of the Act are 

listed. √ 

8. A description of the categories of records of the department that are automatically available without a person having to request ac-
cess in terms of the Act is submitted to the Minister of Justice on an annual basis. √ 

9. A description of the services available to members of the public from the department and how to gain access to those services. √ 
10. A description of any arrangement or provision for a person, by consultation, making representations or otherwise, to participate in or √ 
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Standard √ 
influence the formulation of policy. 

11. A description of all remedies available in respect of an act or a failure to act by the department. √ 
12. The manual is updated and published at least once a year. X 
13. The manual is available at every place of legal deposit as defined in sec. 6 of the Legal Deposit Act,1997 1, SA Human Rights Com-

mission, every (regional) office of the department; Government Gazette and Website if any X 

14. The department’s contact details including details of the information and the deputy information officer are available in every tele-
phone directory, notice boards and departmental website. √ 

Total Requirements to comply with 14 
Number of Requirements met (yes) 11 

Number of Requirements not met (no) 3 

 

% of requirements met 79% 
 
Source: Republic of South Africa. Department of Justice and Constitutional Development. Promotion of Access to 

Information Act 2000, Act Number 2 of 2000. Chapter 2. Siber Ink Tokai. 2006. 
 

                                            
1
Legal deposit in terms of the Legal Deposit Act is defined as City Library Services (Bloemfontein), the Library of Parliament (Cape 

Town), the National library (Pietermaritzburg), the South African Library (Cape Town), the State Library (Pretoria), the National Film, 
Video and Sound Archive for the purpose of certain categories of documents prescribed (Pretoria), or any other library or institution pre-
scribed by the Minister for purposes of certain prescribed categories of documents. 
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Principle 8:  Good Human Resource Management and Career Develop-
ment Practices 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
principle  

Good human resource management and career development practices, to maximize 
human potential, must be cultivated. 
 

2. Performance 
indicator 

A. Recruitment  
 

Vacant posts are filled in a timely and effective manner. 
 

B. Skills Development  
 

The Department complies with the provisions of the Skills Development Act.  
 

3. Standards  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
A. Recruitment  
A.1  The existence of a human resource policy on recruitment 
 

A recruitment policy is in place that complies with good practice standards and spells out a detailed 
recruitment procedure. 

 
 

1,00 

A. 2  Time taken to fill a vacancy 
 

 All vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time.  
OR 

 75% of vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time. 
OR 

 50% of vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time. 
OR 

1. Less than 50% of vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time. 

 
 

1.00 
 

0,50 
 

0,25 
 

0,00 
A. 3  Regular management reporting on recruitment 
 

1. Regular management reporting on recruitment is done. 
2. Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available. 

 
 

0,50 
0,50 

B. Skills Development  
B.1  The existence of a skills development plan 
 

1. A skills development plan is in place. 
2. The skills development plan is based on a thorough skills needs analysis. 

 
 

0,50 
0,50 

B.2  Performance against the skills development plan 
 

1. Two thirds of planned skills development activities have been implemented. 
2. Two thirds of planned skills development activities’ impact on service delivery has been assessed. 

 

 
0,50 
0,50 

Maximum possible score  5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. The existence 
of a human 
resource pol-
icy on re-
cruitment 

Overview: 
 

Clearly described procedures 
 

The Department does have a HRM recruitment policy in place to encourage good prac-
tice in the recruitment and selection of employees, thereby assisting the Department in 
appointing high quality candidates. The policy has not been updated since 2008, and it 
refers to the Department of Land Affairs.  
 

Responsibility delegation 
 

The delegation of powers in terms of HRD rest with the Misters. Delegation 19 of the 
departmental delegation states that, creating of post and filling of any vacancy is the 
responsibility of the Minister delegated to the DG, DDG, and CD with specific remark on 
the power to approve an appointment includes the power to sign the relevant contract in 
the case of contract employee.  
 

Matching of skills with post requirements 
 

The Department also conduct skills search through recruitment agencies and head hunt-
ing. This is done to identify candidates for senior positions where skills are scarce after 
labour market has been tested. Once the candidate has been identified the principle of 
selection on merit shall apply.  
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Open process 
 

The policy states that all post must be advertised nationwide with the exception of struc-
tures affirmative action and special bursary programme posts.  The policy states that the 
recruitment process shall be an open process, affording all potential candidates the op-
portunity to apply and compete for positions.  
 

Transparent decision-making 
 

The policy also states that the process shall be fair and free from practices that are likely 
to prejudice any applicant. 
 

Recruitment strategies 
 

Recruitment processes for the Department include advertisement, short-listing, inter-
views of candidate and selection process.  The practice of head-hunting is strictly appli-
cable where a selection committee could not find a suitable candidate under regular 
processes.  Skills search in consultation with HRM may be used to identify candidates 
for senior post or where skills are scares after labour market has been tested.  
 
 

Rating: 1.00 out of 1.00 
 

A detailed recruitment and selection policy is in place that complies with good practice 
and with a detailed procedure spelled out.  The policy complies with all the legislative 
frameworks governing recruitment and selection in the Public Service. A full score of 
1.00 out of 1.00 is awarded. 
 

5. Recruitment 
times 

Overview: 
 

Table 8.1 at the end of this chapter summarises the 20 most recent appointments within 
the Department. Based on the information contained in the said table, it takes the De-
partment on average 141 days (20 weeks) to fill a post.  The shortest period taken to fill 
a vacancy was 59 days.  The longest time taken to fill a vacancy was 299 days (43 
weeks).  Three of the most recently filled posts were filled within 12 weeks.  Twelve 
weeks represent a generally acceptable standard for the filling of any vacancy according 
to the PSC’s Transversal M&E System. 
 

The Department has indicated that the long time taken to fill vacancies is due to delay in 
the filling of vacant post and that there is a wide gap between the dates advertised and 
date of interviews.  
 

Considering the guideline of 12 months on maximum to fill a vacancy set by PSCBC 
Resolution 1 of 2007, all 20 (or 100%) of the twenty sampled posts were filled within the 
time frame of 12 months. 
 

Filling of funded vacant posts after 30 June 2007 (PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2007) 
 

Considering the guideline of 12 months on maximum to fill a vacancy set by PSCBC 
Resolution 1 of 2007, all 20 (or 100%) of the twenty sampled posts were filled within the 
time frame of 12 months. 
 

The time taken between the date the post became vacant and the date of advertising 
the post 
 

The Department did not provide information on the date the post became vacant.  
 

The time taken between the closing date and the date of the interviews 
 

The closing date for applications as well as the date for interviews was provided for only 
all the 20 sampled posts submitted for assessment.  An analysis shows that it takes the 
Department on average one month from the closing date of applications to the date 
when interviews are conducted.   
 

The time taken between the date of the interviews and the date on which the decision 
for appointment was taken 
 

An analysis of table 8.1 shows that it taken the Department  at less than one month to 
make a decision on appointment  
 
 

Rating: 0.00 out of 1.00 
 

The average time taken to fill a vacant post is 141 days (5 months).  This is far beyond 
the standard of 3 months or less set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  Three of 
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the twenty most recently filled posts were finalised within the standard time frame of 90 
days set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A score of 0.00 out of 1, 00 is 
awarded.  However, considering the guideline of 12 months on maximum to fill a va-
cancy set by PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2007, 20 (or 100%) of the posts were filled within 
the time frame of 12 months. 
 

Area for improvement: 
 

The Department should, before the end of the 2011/12 financial year, review its proc-
esses for the filling of posts and put in place measures that will improve performance on 
the time spent to fill funded vacant posts. 
 

6. Management 
reporting on 
recruitment 

Overview: 
 

Management reporting on recruitment, selection and appointment 
 

Regular management reporting on recruitment, selection and appointments is done 
weekly and monthly and captured in the quarterly performance report of the Depart-
ment.  Various other reports are also prepared, for example, quarterly review reports on 
leave audit, updating of the data base on PERSAL in respect of the number of appoint-
ments, number of acting allowances, promotions, transfers, death, and resignations 
 

What is reported to whom? 
 

The reporting on recruitment, skills development and other HRM related issues is done 
to the executive committee.  The Directorate Human Resources Development prepares 
a quarterly plan that outlines the strategic objective of the Chief Directorate, the tasks, 
demand of the task, activities, cost per activity, mode of service delivery and quarterly 
targets.  The reports outlines progress against the plan quarterly such as, the output, 
key tasks, targets, progress demand met yes/no, expenditure, key challenges and 
planned intervention.  
 

What action is taken on the basis of the reports? 
 

The report is presented to the executive committee of the department and interventions 
are recommended to responsible managers and a target date for completion is indi-
cated.  The minutes of the quarterly meetings submitted indicate discussion and deci-
sion taken by the department.  
 
 

Rating: 1.00 out of 1.00  
 

The Department does report on recruitment to management on a regular basis and ap-
propriate management action is taken on the reports. 
 

7. Skills devel-
opment plan 

Overview: 
 

The Department’s Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) for the 2010/11 financial year, and the 
2009/10 Annual Report was reviewed.  
 

Essential skills required to execute the activities of the Department 
 

All the competencies/skills that are required to enable the Department to fulfil its vision 
and mission and to achieve the set strategic objectives are listed in the WSP.  The WSP 
highlights the following scares skills needed by the Department to perform its functions, 
namely; 
 

 Agricultural and Development Economist 
 Land Surveyors 
 Legal Practitioners 
 Town and Regional Planners 
 Professional Values 
 Researchers  
 Computer Systems Technician 
 ICD business Analyst 
 ICT Security Specialist and  
 ICT Customer Support Officer 

 

The plan further outlines the training priorities for the Departments, which includes the 
essential skills and additional skills such as cropping, livestock farming, policy develop-
ment, comprehensive rural development programme, cartography, project management, 
monitoring and evaluation, HIV/AIDS on vulnerable household, and skilled Artisan.  
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Skills already possessed by staff per post 
 

According to the WSP for the financial year 2010/11 skills already possessed by staff 
include, managers, professionals, technicians, community and personal services, The 
total number of employees is 4 239.  
 

Measures to acquire the skills to close the skills gap 
 

The Department has listed a number of planned training courses for employees. Most of 
the courses outlined are aligned with the strategic objectives of the departments.  This 
are courses such as Comprehensive Rural Development Programme, Land Survey-
ing/geometrics, policy development and implementation, Monitoring and evaluation and 
livestock farming and cropping.  
 

Description of the training and development plans for previously disadvantaged groups 
 

The Department did not specify any training courses for previously disadvantaged group 
such as ABET.  
 

Prioritising, costing and providing of a budget to execute the plan 
 

The overall training budget was R10 722 490 and comprises 1% of the annual person-
nel budget.  A separate amount is allocated for bursaries, internships and NQF aligned 
short courses.  
 

Overall quality of the plan 
 

The plan outlines all the critical skills needed by the Department, planned training for the 
year 2010/11, however, no training was planned for previously disadvantaged group.  
The WSP includes crucial data such as the costs of specific planned training interven-
tions, timeframes for such interventions and the scarce skills required per occupational 
category.  The skills development plan is aligned to the strategic objectives for the de-
partment especially the Comprehensive Rural Development Programme.  
 
 

Rating: 1,00 out of 1,00 
 

A skills development plan is in place. A score of 0,50 is awarded  
 

The WSP is based on a thorough skills needs analysis, which is aligned with the strate-
gic objectives for the Department.  A score of 0,50 are awarded. 
 

8. Performance 
against skills 
development 
plan 

Overview: 
 

Summary of the department’s skills development activities planned 
 

The Department has planned 2 983 activities according to the Annual Report for the 
2009/10 financial year, of which all activities (100%) have been implemented – refer to 
Table 8.2 at the end of this chapter. 
 

The Department did not outline any challenges experience in the implementation of 
training identified at the start of the reporting period since 100% was achieved.  
 

Extent to which planned skills development activities are implemented and whether their 
impact on service delivery is assessed 
 

Although all the activities identified were implemented no impact assessment was con-
ducted by the Department.  No evidence in the form of impact assessment report was 
provided.  
 
 

Rating: 
 

The Department was able to implement all (or 100%) of the 2 983 planned activities.  
However, no evidence could be found that the impact of staff development on service 
delivery is assessed.  The Department only partially complied with this standard of the 
PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A score of 0, 50 is awarded.  
 

Rating 
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9. Score  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
A. Recruitment  
A.1  The existence of a policy on recruitment 
 

A recruitment policy is in place that complies with good practice standards and spells out a detailed 
recruitment procedure. 

 

 
1,00 

 

A. 2  Time taken to fill a vacancy 
 

Less than 50% of vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time. 

 

 
0,00 

A. 3  Regular management reporting on recruitment 
 

 Regular management reporting on recruitment is done. 
 Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available. 

 

 
0,50 
0,50 

B. Skills Development  
B.1  The existence of a skills development plan 
 

 A skills development plan is in place. 
 The skills development plan is based on a thorough skills needs analysis. 

 

 
0,50 
0,50 

B.2  Performance against the skills development plan 
 

 Two thirds of planned skills development activities have been implemented. 
 Two thirds of planned skills development activities’ impact on service delivery has been assessed. 

 

 
0,50 
0,00 

Total score 3,50  
 
 

Sources 
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11. Useful 
sources to 
consult on 
this principle 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Public Service and Administration. Strate-
gic Human Resource Planning Guideline and Toolkit. March 2007. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Provincial Government Western Cape. Training Impact 
Assessment Report for the Department of Transport and Public Works. 7 Septem-
ber 2007. 

 

3. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. A Toolkit on Recruitment and 
Selection. Pretoria. Formeset Printers Cape. Undated. 

 

4. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Evaluation of 
the Training Needs of Senior Managers in the Public Service. January 2008. 

 
 
 

Table 8.1 – Time taken for recruitment process of the most recently filled posts 
 

 

 A B C D E F G H 

Post Date vacant Date ad-
vertised 

Closing 
date 

Date of 
interviews 

Decision on 
Appoint-

ment 
Appoint-

ment date 
Days to fill 

the post  
G - B 

1. Deputy Manager: Provincial Security Coordina-
tor: Eastern Cape  

Not available 19/02/10 05/03/10 25/05/10 06/07/10 16/08/10 179 

2. Senior Provisioning Clerk : Mpumalanga  Not available 11/02/10 26/02/10 17/06/10 12/07/10 02/08/2010 173 
3. Office Assistant: STRIF  Not available 14/06/10 28/06/10 20/07/10 10/08/10 01/09/10 171 
4. Messenger Driver: RID Not available 02/07/10 16/07/10 11/08/10 31/08/10 01/10/10 92 
5. Admin Officer: North West  Not available 14/05/10 28/05/10 27/07/10 27/08/10 01/09/10 111 
6. Senior Human Capital Practitioner  Not available 05/07/10 16/07/10 12/08/10 03/09/10 01/10/10 89 
7. Deputy Manager: Provincial Security  Not available 19/02/10 05/03/10 24/05/10 29/07/10 01/09/10 195 
8. Messenger  Not available 11/06/10 25/06/10 12/08/10 02/09/10 13/09/10 95 
9. Chief Human Capital: Practitioner Not available 14/05/10 28/05/10 13/07/10 13/08/10 18/08/10 97 
10. Deputy Manager: Financial Operations  Not available 28/06/10 09/0710 27/07/10 04/08/10 01/09/10 66 
11. Deputy Manager: Admin Support: RID  Not available 05/07/10 16/07/10 06/08/10 20/08/10 01/09/10 59 
12. Executive Manager: Institutional Building and 

Mentoring  
Not available 06/12/09 18/12/09 23/02/10 12/08/10 01/10/10 299 

13. Senior Organizational Development Practitioner  Not available 14/05/10 28/05/10 19/07/10 13/08/10 04/10/10 111 
14. Office Assistant : Financial Management  Not available 07/05/10 21/05/10 10/08/10 17/08/10 01/09/10 118 
15. Registry Clerk: Legal Services  Not available 18/06/10 02/07/10 13/08/10 27/08/10 04/10/10 109 
16. Manager: Financial Reporting and Receivables  Not available 12/02/10 26/02/10 13/05/10 28/06/10 01/10/10 232 
17. Legal Administration Officer: Legal Services Not available 18/06/10 02/07/10 11/08/10 06/09/10 01/10/10 106 
18. Executive Manager: M&E and Strategic Planning  Not available 20/02/10 05/03/10 22/07/10 22/07/10 01/09/10 193 
19. Senior Manager: Financial Management  Not available 20/02/10 05/03/10 20/11/10 22/06/10 01/09/10 193 
20. Secretary/Receptionist Not available 28/03/10 08/05/10 28/05/10 09/07/10 01/08/10 123 

TOTAL NUMBER OF DAYS 2 811 
AVERAGE NUMBER OF DAYS 141 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF WEEKS 20 

 

AVERAGE NUMER OF MONTHS 5 
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Table 8.2 – Skills development activities planned and implemented 
 

 

Training needs identified at start of reporting period Training provided within the reporting period 

Occupational Categories Gender 
Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 

Number of 
learnerships 

Number of skills 
programmes & 

other short 
courses 

Number of 
other forms 
of training 

Total Number of 
learnerships 

Number of skills 
programmes & 

other short 
courses 

Number of 
other forms 
of training 

Total How was impact assessed? 

Female 40 0 24 0 24 0 24 0 24  1. Legislators, senior 
officials and managers Male 65 0 42 0 42 0 42 0 42  

Female 1165 0 352 0 352 0 352 0 352  2. Professionals 
Male 1221 0 508 0 508 0 508 0 508  
Female 359 0 420 0 420 0 420 0 420  3. Technicians and 

associate profession-
als 

Male 288 0 450 0 450 0 450 0 450  

Female 608 0 514 0 514 0 514 0 514  4. Clerks  
Male 301 0 514 0 514 0 514 0 514  
Female 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  5. Service and sales 

workers Male 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Female 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  6. Craft and related 

trades workers Male 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Female 49 0 70 0 70 0 70 0 70  7. Elementary occupa-

tions Male 61 0 89 0 89 0 89 0 89  
8. Employees with dis-

abilities. 
           

Female 2 235 0 1 380 0 1 380 0 1 380 0 1 380  Sub-total 
Male 1 985 0 1 603 0 1 603 0 1 603  1 603  

Total 4 220 0 2 983 0 2 983 0 2 983 0 2 983/100%  
 
Source: Republic of South Africa. The National Treasury. Guide for the preparation of annual reports. National/Provincial Departments for the year ended 31 March 2009. 
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Principle 9:  Representivity 
 

 

Background 
 

1. Constitutional 
principle  

Public administration must be broadly representative of South African people, with em-
ployment and personnel management practices based on ability, objectivity fairness and 
the need to redress the imbalances of the past to achieve broad representation. 

2. Performance 
indicator  

The Department is representative of the South African people and is implementing diver-
sity management measures. 

3. Standards   

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. The existence of an employment equity policy and plan 
 

 An approved employment equity policy that complies with section 1 of the EEA is in place. 
 An approved employment equity plan that complies with section 20 of the EEA is in place. 

 

 
0,50 
0,50 

2. The achievement of representivity targets 
 

 All three national employment equity targets have been met. 
OR 

 Two of the three national employment equity targets have been met. 
OR 

 One of the national employment equity targets has been met. 

OR 
 None of the national employment equity targets have been met. 

 

 
2,00 

 
1,00 

 
0,50 

 
0,00 

3. Regular management reporting on representivity 
 

 Apart from reporting to the Department of Labour, implementation of the employment equity plan 
is reported to management at least twice a year. 

 Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available. 

 

 
0,50 

 
0,50 

4. The implementation of diversity management measures 
 

 Comprehensive (80% to 100%) diversity management measures are implemented. 
OR 

 Some (50% to 79%) diversity management measures are implemented. 
OR 

 Less than 50% diversity management measures are implemented. 

 

 
1,00 

 
0,50 

 
0,00 

Maximum possible score 5,00 
 
 

Assessment 
 

4. Employment 
equity policy 
and plan 

Overview: 
 

Compliance of the employment equity policy with section 1 of the EEA 
 

The Department submitted an EE Transformation Plan, which complies with the re-
quirements of the Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998) and it has been 
formally approved and implemented. The EEP is guided by the principle of redress, fair-
ness and diversity. According to Table 9,2 the Department complied with all the require-
ments for a EE Plan.  
 

The EE Policy Statement signed by the Director-General was also submitted.  The De-
partment complied with all requirements of an EE Policy. The EE transformation policy 
commit to among others the following values: 
 

 Ensure fair, non-disciplinary practices which respect the rights and dignity of all our 
employees irrespective of colour , race , gender or disability; 

 Attain equitable representation throughout the organisation; 
 Ensure  implementation of best people management practices; and  
 Give preferential treatment to persons from designated groups in recruitment and 

selection in accordance with the Departmental EE policy.  
 

To ensure the implementation of the policy, the roles and responsibilities of the Director-
General as the head of the Department, the Employment Equity manager, Human re-
sources manager and line managers were clarified in relation to the departmental trans-
formation processes. The Department indicated in the quarterly report that they are cur-
rently about 825 vacant positions to be filled during a five year period.  
 

Compliance of the employment equity plan with section 20 of the EEA 
 

The Departments Employment Equity Plan (EEP) for 1st April 2009 to March 20104 
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complies with the requirements set in section 20 of the EEA.  The plan is signed by the 
Director-General to show that it has been approved and adopted.   EE reports to the De-
partment of Labour are submitted as required. The EE Plan outlines in detail the affirma-
tive action measures to be put in place over the duration of the plan to facilitate the 
achievements of EE targets.  These are issues such as RH strategy, Skills development, 
promotion, accommodation of people with disabilities, performance management, occu-
pational dispensation, employee relations, leadership, HR planning, employee wellness  
and organisational values.  
 

The plan also outlined the process of monitoring and evaluation.  The Department will 
formally monitor and review the EE plan on an annual basis, together with all stake-
holders in the organisation.  Each Chief Directorate will assess progress against its plan 
on a quarterly basis.  
 

The Department has designed an accountability framework that outlines the roles and 
responsibilities of stakeholders in designing implementing and monitoring the plan.  
Consultative framework has been designed and structured identified based on the foun-
dation of the Workplace Employment Equity Committees which will be established in 
each directorate and Chief Directorates, escalating up to a national departmental WEEC. 
 

Communication plan is in place to ensure EE plan is successfully implemented. The du-
ration of the plan is five year, starting 1 April 2009-31 March 2014.  
 
 

Rating: 1,00 out of 1,00  
 

The Department does have an Employment Equity Plan (EEP) and EE policy, which 
comply with the requirements of the Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998) 
and have been formally approved and implemented.  A full score of 1.00 is awarded. 
 

5. Achievement 
of represen-
tivity targets 

Overview: 
 

The Department’s progress on employment equity according to figures provided in the 
DAR for 2009/10 is captured in Tables 9.3 and 9.4 at the end of this chapter.  The De-
partment’s compliance with the national representivity targets was as follows: 
 

National Targets Department’s compliance 
75% Black at senior management level at the end of April 2005. 77% Blacks in Senior Management – 2% above the required 

standard of 75% set for April 2005. 
At least 50% at all senior management level s should be 
women by 31 March 2009. 

37% women at senior management – 13% above/below the 
required standard of 50% set for 31 March 2009. 

Disability target of 2% to be achieved by 31 March 2010. 2,1% people with disability – did meet the required standard of 
2% set for March 2010. 

 

Disability 
 

Comparing to the prescribed 2%, the Department at the end of the 2009/10 financial 
year had 2.1% persons with disabilities in its employ.  The Department has developed 
strategic plan for the recruitment and employment of people with disabilities. 
 
 

Rating: 1,00 out of 2,00  
 

At the end of the 2009/10 financial year the Department had 77% Blacks at senior man-
agement level, which exceeds the target of 75% set for 30 April 2005.  Women at all sen-
ior management levels comprise 37%, which represents a deficit of 13% against the tar-
get of 50% set for 31 March 2009.  People with disability comprise 2,1% which margin-
ally exceeds the target of 2%.  The Department thus achieved two of the three national 
targets, which translates to a score of 1,00 out of 2,00 in the PSC’s Transversal M&E 
System. 
 

6. Management 
reporting on 
representivity 

Overview: 
 

Management reporting on representivity 
 

Employment Equity reports are submitted on a quarterly basis. Copies of the First and 
Fourth quarterly Employment Equity reports 2009/2010 were submitted as proof. Al-
though quarterly reports were submitted, the Department did not provide evidence on 
action taken by management on the submitted reports.  
 

What is reported to whom? 
 

The Employment Equity Manager reports all issues regarding transformation, employ-
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ment equity, and diversity management to the D-G.  Quarterly review meetings are held 
and chaired by the D-G. All reports are discussed at the QRM and decisions are taken 
responsible persons are appointed and time frame allocated.  
 

What action is taken on the basis of the reports? 
 

Actions are taken after the reports are submitted to the D-G, for example, a decision was 
taken by the D-G to allow deviation in appointments at the regional level in order to fast 
track the process of appointments. The D-G also took a decision to withdraw the devia-
tion powers due to some challenges. 
 

Relevance between the time taken to achieve representivity targets and management 
actions taken/not taken on these reports 
 

According to the targets, it is clear that compliance in terms of gender happening at a 
slower pace. The department achieved 37% target by 31 March 2009, under representa-
tion of 13%.  
 
 

Rating: 1,00 
 

Apart from the prescribed reporting to the Department of Labour, the implementation of 
the EEP is reported quarterly to the Director-General (D-G) and top management.  Man-
agement action is taken on the basis of the report to ensure that employment equity re-
quirements are met. A score of 1,00 is therefore awarded.  
 

7. Diversity 
management 
measures 

Overview 
 

The Department’s progress with implementing diversity management measures was as-
sessed against the checklist of standards in Tables 9.5 for good diversity management 
measures at the end of this chapter.  Following is a brief discussion on Department’s 
progress with diversity management against these standards: 
 

A number of frameworks such as the older person’s rights mainstreaming framework and 
gender policy framework guideline, and children’s rights mainstreaming framework were 
developed by the department to enforce diversity management and implementation 
within the department.  
 

The Older person’s rights mainstreaming framework was approved in 2009 as a guide-
line tool in addressing land needs and interests of the older persons through planning 
and implementation of the department’s core business.  
 

In terms of Table 9.5 the Department has implemented 17 (74%) out of 23 (100%) re-
quirements of the diversity management checklist. It is not clear whether the department 
is advertising in four of the eleven official languages in South Africa.  The department did 
not submit any information on training on cultural preferences, behaviours and skills that 
help people bridge and leverage difficulties identified. It is not clear whether the conduct 
impact on the general mood and morale of the workforce twice a year.  Regarding em-
ployee wellness, it is not clear whether the workplace and ergonomics are conducive to 
employee well-being, and the office buildings are in all respect accessible to people with 
disabilities.  
 
 

Rating: 0,50  
 

The Department implemented some measures aimed at managing diversity, for example 
the Department’s recruitment and selection policy addresses representivity in the work-
force. The Department complied with at least 74% of the diversity management checklist 
of the PSC’s M&E transversal system, therefore a score of 0, 50 is awarded. 
 

Rating 
 

8. Score  

DESCRIPTION POINTS 
1. The existence of an employment equity policy and plan 
 

 An approved employment equity policy that complies with section 1 of the EEA is in place. 
 An approved employment equity plan that complies with section 20 of the EEA is in place. 

 

 
0,50 
0,50 

2. The achievement of representivity targets 
 

 Two of the three national employment equity targets have been met. 

 

 
1,00 
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3. Regular management reporting on representivity 
 

 Apart from reporting to the Department of Labour, implementation of the employment equity plan 
is reported to management at least twice a year. 

 Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available. 

 

 
0,50 

 
0,50 

4. The implementation of diversity management measures 
 

 Some (50% to 79%) diversity management measures are implemented. 

 

 
0,50 

Total score 3,50 
 
 

Sources 
 

9. References Sources consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Documents: 
 

1. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Chil-
dren’s Rights Mainstreaming Framework. Pretoria 2010.   
 

2. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Em-
ployment Equity Plan for the period 1st April 2009 to 31st March 2014.  Pretoria 2009.  

 

3. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Em-
ployment Equity Act (EEA2) report to the Department of Labour. Pretoria. 2010. 
 

4. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
Fourth Quarterly Employment Equity report 2009/2010. Pretoria. 2010. 
 

5. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Draft 
Gender Policy Framework Guideline. Pretoria. 2010. 

 

Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. Draft 
Older Persons Rights Mainstreaming Framework. Pretoria 2010. 
 

6. Republic of South Africa. Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. First 
Quarterly Employment Equity report 2010/2011. Pretoria. 2010. 

 

10. Useful 
sources to 
consult on 
this principle 

1. Republic of South Africa. Ministry for Public Service and Administration. Head of De-
partment’s 8- Principle Action Plan for Promoting Women’s Empowerment and Gen-
der Equality within the Public Service Workplace. Undated. 

 

2. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Gender Mainstreaming Initia-
tives in the Public Service. November 2006. 

 
 

Table 9.1 – Compliance with EE policy requirements 
 

 

Policy Requirements  
1. Recruitment procedures, advertising and selection criteria. √ 
2. Appointments and appointment process. √ 
3. Job classification and grading. √ 
4. Remuneration. √ 
5. Remuneration, employment benefits and terms of conditions of employment. √ 
6. Job assignments. √ 
7. The working environment and facilities. √ 
8. Training and development. √ 
9. Performance evaluation systems. √ 
10. Promotion. √ 
11. Transfer. √ 
12. Demotion. √ 
13. Disciplinary measures other than dismissal. √ 
14. Dismissal. √ 

Total Requirements to comply with 14 
Number of Requirements met (yes) 14 

Number of Requirements not met (no) 0 

 

% of requirements met 100% 
 

Source: Republic of South Africa. Department of Labour. Employment Equity Act 1998, Act Number 55 of 1998, 

Section 1 - Definitions. 
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Table 9.2 – Compliance with EE plan requirements 
 

 

Plan Requirements √  
1. The objectives to be achieved for each year of the plan. √ 
2. The affirmative action measures to be implemented as required by section 15(2) of the Act.  √ 
3. Where under representation of people from designated groups has been identified, the numerical goals to achieve the equitable 

representation of suitable qualified people from designated groups within each occupational category and level, the timetable and s-
trategies to achieve these numerical goals. 

√ 

4. The timetable for each year of the plan for the achievement of goals and objectives other than numerical goals. √ 
5. The duration of the plan: not shorter than 1 year; and not longer than 5 years. √ 
6. The procedures that will be used to monitor and evaluate the implementation of the plan and the progress towards implementing 

employment equity. √ 

7. Internal procedures to resolve any dispute about the interpretation/implementation of the plan.   √ 
8. The persons – including senior managers – responsible for monitoring and implementing the plan. √ 
9. A copy of the plan is freely available to all employees. √ 
10. Establishment records are available.  √ 

Total Requirements to comply with 10 
Number of Requirements met (yes) 10 

Number of Requirements not met (no) 0 

 

% of requirements met 100% 
 
Source: Republic of South Africa. Department of Labour. Employment Equity Act 1998, Act Number 55 of 1998, 
Section 20 - Definitions. 
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Table 9.3 – Number of staff by gender and population group 
 

 

Male Female Occupational Bands Statistics African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 

14 Actual 8 1 0 0 4 1 0 0 1. Top management 
Target          
Actual 41 4 4 22 30 1 4 7 113 2. Senior management Target          

946 Actual 384 27 15 98 306 29 12 75 3. Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management Target          
Actual 979 79 18 95 1136 159 42 312 2820 4. Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foreman and super-

intendents. Target          
489 Actual 239 29 2 8 180 26 2 3 5. Semi-skilled and discretionary decision- making Target          

Actual 5 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 7 6. Unskilled and defined decision-making Target          
Actual 1656 141 39 223 1657 216 60 397 4389 Total Target          

 

Source: Republic of South Africa. The National Treasury. Guide for the Preparation of Annual Reports. National/Provincial Departments for the year ended 31 March 2008. 
 
 

Table 9.4 – Number of staff by disability 
 

 

Male Female 
Occupational Bands Statistics African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 

% of total 
Establish- 

ment 
Actual           1. Top management Target           
Actual           2. Senior management Target           
Actual           3. Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management Target           
Actual           4. Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foreman and superinten-

dents   Target           
Actual           5. Semi-skilled and discretionary decision- making Target           
Actual           6. Unskilled and defined decision-making Target           
Actual 24 5 2 20 21 4 1 19 96 2.1% Total Target           

 

Source: Republic of South Africa. The National Treasury. Guide for the preparation of annual reports. National/Provincial Departments for the year ended 31 March 2009. 
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Table 9.5 – Diversity management checklist 
 

 

Standard  
1. The department’s recruitment and selection policy addresses representivity in the workforce. √ 
2. The department’s employment equity plan addresses strategies, targets and a time table to achieve a representative workforce. √ 
3. Representivity targets are cascaded through all occupational categories and job levels in the department √ 
4. The achievement of representivity targets at all occupational categories and job levels in the department is monitored at least on a 

quarterly basis. √ 

5. The department’s workforce reflects the population demographics of the province. √ 
6. Vacant posts are widely advertised in specific publications where minorities and women are expected to seek jobs. √ 
7. Vacant posts are advertised in at least four of the eleven languages that are predominantly spoken in the specific area/province. X 
8. Underutilisation of occupational categories and job levels is identified. √ 
9. Goals are established to reduce underutilisation of occupational categories and job levels. √ 
10. Employee development is integrated and in line with the critical skills needed to advance in service delivery (for example through job 

rotation and/or job enrichment). √ 

11. Diversity competencies such as how to deal with different cultures, religions, diverse work teams and understanding the impact of 
diversity on business relationships and service delivery, form part of SMS members’ performance agreements. √ 

12. Training on cultural awareness/differences among people (for example religion, habits, feasts) is provided at least once a year 
throughout the year. X 

13. Cultural preferences, behaviour and skills that help people bridge the, and leverage differences have been identified. X 
14. The general mood and morale of the department’s workforce and the impact on service delivery are assessed at least twice a year. X 
15. The recruitment/promotion/resignation of employees from designated groups is carefully monitored in terms of the overall targets of 

the employment equity plan. √ 

16. The recruitment/promotion/resignation of employees from designated groups is carefully monitored to establish trends for implement-
ing corrective measures. √ 

17. Ways such as scholarships, learnerships and bursaries to access candidates from designated groups and occupational categories 
are considered and acted upon. √ 

18. The department’s workplace conditions are focussed on the health and wellness of the workforce by actively addressing and implementing the 
following: 

a. The workplace design and ergonomics are conducive to employees’ wellbeing. X 
b. There is a definite balance between work and family. √ 
c. Employees have access to kitchen facilities.  √ 
d. A policy for smokers is in place. √ 
e. A policy on workplace bullying and sexual harassment is in place. √ 
f. The department’s office buildings are in all respects (parking, entrances, lifts, rest rooms, waiting rooms, offices, equip-

ment) accessible to people with disabilities. X 

Total Requirements to comply with 23 
Number of Requirements met (yes) 17 

Number of Requirements not met (no) 6 

 

% of requirements met 74% 
 

(Checklist Numbers 1 – 14). 
Source: Reichenberg, Neil, R. United Nations Expert Group Meeting on Managing Diversity in the Civil Service. Best Practice in Diver-

sity Management. Executive Director. International Personnel Management Association. United Nations Head Quarters. New 
York. 3 – 4 May 2001. 

 
(Checklist Numbers 15 – 18). 
Source: Republic of South Africa. Department of Public Service and Administration. Draft Strategic Human Resource Planning Guide 

and Toolkit. Version 1.0. March 2007. 
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APPENDIX A: List of values, performance indicators, standards and applicable policies/regulations per principle 
 

Constitutional Principle and Value Performance Indicator Standards Applicable Legislation and Regulations 
1. Professional ethics. 
 

Value:  A high standard of professional ethics 
must be promoted and maintained. 

Cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing 
has been conducted, comply with the provisions 
of the DCPPS. 

1. A procedure is in place for reporting, re-
cording and managing cases of misconduct. 

2. All the managers surveyed have a working 
knowledge of the system. 

3. Management reporting is done on cases of 
misconduct and acted upon. 

4. All of the most recent cases of misconduct in 
which a disciplinary hearing is conducted are 
finalized within the time frame of 20 – 80 
working days. 

5. All the managers are capable to deal with 
cases of misconduct. 

6. Frequent training is provided on the handling 
of cases of misconduct. 

 Disciplinary Codes and Procedures for the 
Public Service. 

 Public Service Coordinating Bargaining 
Council (PSCBC) Resolution 2 of 1999 as 
amended by Public Service Coordinating 
Bargaining Council Resolution 1 of 2003. 

 Code of Conduct for the Public Service. 

2. Efficiency economy and effectiveness. 
 

Value: Efficient, economic and effective use of 
resources must be promoted. 

1. Expenditure is in accordance with the 
budget. 

2. Programme outputs are clearly defined and 
there is credible evidence that they have 
been achieved. 

 

1. Expenditure is as budgeted for and material 
variances are explained. 

2. More than half of each programme’s Per-
formance Indicators (PIs) are measurable in 
terms of quantity, quality and time dimen-
sions. 

3. Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked 
with each other as they appear in the SP, 
estimates of expenditure and the AR for the 
year under review. 

4. Programmes are implemented as planned or 
changes to implementation are reasonably 
explained. 

 Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 
1999, Sections 38 to 40. 

 Treasury Regulations.  Part 3:  Planning 
and Budgeting. 

 Public Service Regulations.  Part III/B.  
Strategic Planning. 

 Treasury Guidelines on preparing budget 
submissions for the year under review. 

 Treasury Guide for the Preparation of ARs 
of departments for the financial year ended 
31 March. 

 National Planning Framework. 

3. Development oriented Public Admini-
stration. 

 

Value: Public administration must be develop-
ment-oriented. 

The Department is effectively involved in pro-
grammes/projects that aim to promote develop-
ment and reduce poverty. 
 

1. Beneficiaries play an active role in the gov-
ernance, designing and monitoring of pro-
jects. 

2. A standardised project plan format is used 
showing: 

 

a) All relevant details including measur-
able objectives. 

b) Time frames (targets).  
c) Clear governance arrangements. 
d) Detailed financial projections. 
e) Review meetings. 
f) Considering issues such as gender, 

the environment and HIV/AIDS. 
 

3. Poverty reduction projects are aligned with 
IDPS. 

Section 195 (c) of the Constitution. 
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Constitutional Principle and Value Performance Indicator Standards Applicable Legislation and Regulations 
4. Organisational learning takes place. 
5. Projects are successfully initiated and/or 

implemented. 

4. Impartiality and fairness. 
 

Value: Services must be provided impartially, 
fairly, equitably and without bias. 

There is evidence that the Department follows the 
prescribed procedures of the Promotion of Admin-
istrative Justice Act (PAJA) when making adminis-
trative decisions. 
 

1. All decisions are taken in accordance with 
prescribed legislation/policies and in terms 
of delegated authority. 

2. All decisions are justified and fair consider-
ing the evidence submitted in this regard. 

3. The procedures required in the PAJA in 
communicating administrative decisions are 
duly followed. 

 Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 
Act No 3 of 2000. 

 Regulations on Fair Administrative Proce-
dures, 2002. 

 Departmental delegations of authority. 

5. Public participation in policy-making. 
 

Value: People’s needs must be responded to 
and the public must be encouraged to participate 
in policy-making. 

The Department facilitates public participation in 
policy-making. 

1. A policy and guideline on public participation 
in policy-making is in place.  

2. A system for soliciting public inputs on key 
matters is in use and effectively imple-
mented. 

3. All policy inputs received from the public are 
acknowledged and formally considered.  

White Paper for Transforming Public Service 
Delivery (Batho Pele). 

6. Accountability. 
 

Value: Public administration must be account-
able. 

7. Adequate internal financial controls and 
performance management are exerted over 
all departmental programmes. 

8. FPPs, based on thorough risk assessments, 
are in place and are implemented. 

 

1. The A-G’s assessments of internal financial 
controls conclude that they are adequate 
and effective. 

2. A performance management (M&E) system 
on all departmental programmes is in opera-
tion. 

3. FPPs are based on a thorough risk assess-
ment. 

4. FPPs are in place and are comprehensive 
and appropriate, and are implemented. 

5. Key staff for ensuring implementation of 
FPPs, especially investigation of fraud, are 
in place and operational. 

 

 Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 
1999. 

 Treasury Regulations.  Part 3:  Planning 
and Budgeting. 

 White Paper for Transforming Public Ser-
vice Delivery (Batho Pele). 

 Public Service Regulations.  Part III/B.  
Strategic Planning. 

 Treasury Guidelines on preparing budget 
submissions, 2002. 

 Treasury Guide for the Preparation of ARs 
of departments for the financial year ended 
31 March. 
National Planning Framework. 

7. Transparency. 
 

Value: Transparency must be fostered by provid-
ing the public with timely, accessible and accu-
rate information. 

A. Departmental AR 
 

The departmental AR complies with NT’s guide-
line on Annual Reporting. 
 

B. Access to Information 
 

The Department complies with the provisions of 
the Promotion of Access to Information Act 
(PAIA). 
 

A. Departmental AR 
 

2. The Report is attractive and clearly pre-
sented and is well written in simple accessi-
ble language. 

3. The content of the AR covers in sufficient 
detail at least 90% of the areas prescribed 
by NT and the DPSA. 

4. The AR clearly report on performance 
against predetermined outputs in at least 
two thirds of the programmes listed. 

 

B. Access to Information 
 

 Public Finance Management Act 1999, Act 
1 of 1999. 

 NT’s guideline for the Preparation of ARs. 
 The Department of Public Administration’s 

guide for an Oversight Report on Human 
Resources. 

 PSC.  Evaluation of Departments’ ARs as 
an Accountability Mechanism.  October 
1999. 

 White Paper for Transforming Public Ser-
vice Delivery (Batho Pele). 

 Promotion of Access to Information Act 
2000, Act 2 of 2000. 
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Constitutional Principle and Value Performance Indicator Standards Applicable Legislation and Regulations 
1. The department has at least one deputy 

information officer with duly delegated au-
thority. 

2. A manual on functions of and index of re-
cords held by the department that complies 
with the requirements of the PAIA is in 
place. 

3. Systems for managing requests for access 
to information are in place. 

 Departmental delegations of authority. 

8. Good human resource management and 
career development practices. 

 

Value: Good human resource management and 
career development practices, to maximize 
human potential, must be cultivated. 

A. Recruitment  
 

Vacant posts are filled in a timely and effective 
manner. 
 

B. Skills Development  
 

The Department complies with the provisions of 
the Skills Development Act. 
 

A. Recruitment 
 

1. A recruitment policy complying with good 
practice standards and spelling out a de-
tailed procedure is in place.  

2. Vacant posts are filled within 90 days – 
including advertisement time. 

3. Regular management reporting on recruit-
ment is done. 

 

B. Skills development  
 

1. A skills development plan, based on a thor-
ough skills needs analysis, is in place  

2. Activities planned for are implemented  
3. The results achieved through skills devel-

opment are monitored and recorded. 

 Public Service Regulations, 2001 as 
amended. 

 Public Service Act. 
 

9. Representivity. 
 

Value: Public administration must be broadly 
representative of SA people, with employment 
and personnel management practices based on 
ability objectivity fairness and the need to re-
dress the imbalances of the past to achieve 
broad representation. 

The Department is representative of the South 
African people and is implementing diversity man-
agement measures. 
 

1. EE policies and plans are in place and re-
ported upon. 

2. All representivity targets are met. 
3. Diversity management measures are imple-

mented. 
 

 Part VI Public Service Regulations, 2001 
as amended. 

 EE Act, Act 55 of 1998. 
 White Paper on the Transformation on 

Public Service – 15/11/1995. 
 White Paper on Affirmative Action in the 

Public Service, 2001. 
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APPENDIX B: Performance overview & list of recommendations 
 

 

Name of de-
partment be-
ing monitored 

Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. 
 

Overview of 
performance 
per principle 

The Department’s performance against all nine principles is reflected in the graph below.  
Measurement is done by weighting and scoring the performance of the Department against 
specific standards linked to the performance indicator(s) for a particular principle.  A de-
partment can thus be scored between 0% (none of the standards have been met) and 100% 
(excellent performance on all the standards) per principle. 
 

Performance per principle
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According to the above figures the Department’s performance and compliance with the nine 
Constitutional values and principles for the 2010/11 evaluation cycle is 74%, which means 
that performance is good against most of the standards.  
 

Recommenda-
tions 

The PSC made 7 recommendations in this report that need to be implemented within spe-
cific time frames. Within six months of receipt of this report the PSC will do a follow-up on 
the progress made with the implementation of these recommendations.  The number of rec-
ommendations per principle is captured in the Table below, followed by the specific recom-
mendation(s) per principle. 
 

Principle 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Total 
Recommendations 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 7 

 
 

 

Principle  Recommendations  
Principle 1: 
Professional 
Ethics 

1. Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct 
 

The Department should, within six months of the receipt of this report, put measures in 
place that will ensure that all cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing has been 
conducted are finalised within 20 - 80 working days as required by the Disciplinary Code 
and Procedures for the Public Service. 
 
 

Principle 3: 
Development 
Orientation 

Good project management standards 
 

The Department should, before the end of the 2011/12 financial year, include a section in 
land reform project plans, which spells out the monitoring and evaluation arrangements for 
the project. 
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Principle  Recommendations  
Principle 4: 
Impartiality 
and Fairness 

The communication of administrative decisions 
 

The Department should, with immediate effect, adhere to the requirements of the PAJA with 
regard to the communication of administrative decisions, namely that the communication 
should indicate the opportunity to make representations, the right to appeal or review or the 
right to request reasons for decisions. 
 

Principle 6: 
Accountability 

The implementation of the fraud prevention plan 
 

The Department should, within six months of receipt of the approved Report: 
 

 Ensure that all the FPP strategies are implemented. 
 Determine its exact capacity requirements for the handling of fraud cases. 
 Ensure that the necessary training in the handling of fraud cases is provided. 

 

Principle 7: 
Transparency 

The content of the departmental AR 
 

The content of the Department’s AR for 2010/11 must fully comply with the requirements for 
annual reporting set by the National Treasury and the DPSA. 
 

Principle 8: 
Good Human 
Resource 
Management 
and Career 
Development 
Practices 

Recruitment – Time taken to fill a vacancy 
 

The Department should, before the end of the 2011/12 financial year review its processes 
for the filling of posts and put in place measures that will improve performance on the time 
spent to fill funded vacant posts. 
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